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DEAR SHAREHOLDERS, 2 E
On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”). of Goldin
Properties Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to
present the annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended
31 March 2014 (the “Year").

During the Year, we marked milestones in our mega-integrated
property development flagship project, Tianjin Goldin Metropolitan
("Goldin Metropolitan” or the “Project”). We recorded the
initial sales of residential properties in Phase One of Fortune Heights
(“Fortune Heights”) of Goldin Metropolitan, which is a great
stride in the Group’s development. The high quality of its property
project and performance had earned the Group accolades and led
to the inclusion of the Company’s shares in the list of the Morgan
Stanley Capital International (“MSCI”) China Small Cap Index on 30
May 2014. MSCI measures the performance of the small-cap stocks
based in China. This has demonstrated the market’s recognition of
the Group’s solid foundation, growth potential and its endeavours in
property development and has enhanced the Group’s reputation on
[ [ ital markets.
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BUSINESS REVIEW
Market Overview

The Company has capitalized on the vibrant economy of the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC") by embarking on Goldin Metropolitan in
Tianjin in 2007. Among all the major cities in the PRC, Tianjin once
again proved its economic vigour as it recorded a 12.5% growth in
gross domestic product to about RMB1.44 trillion in 2013. Its status
as an economically open city and a magnet for both domestic and
foreign investment was also reaffirmed --- it ranked fifteenth among
“Mainland China’s 100 Best Cities for Business” in Forbes China’s
listing in 2013, and over 160 enterprises of the Fortune Global 500
companies had already set up operations in the city by the end of
the Year. The strong showing bodes well for the city’s high-end
commercial and residential property development.

In addition, it is expected that Tianjin's property sector will also stand
to benefit from the Central Government’s Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei
Coordinated Development Program. Under the directive, Tianjin
has been marked out for taking over some municipal functions
(including culture and entertainment, commerce and finance) from
Beijing to relieve the pressure of the national capital which has
been overburdened with population and affected by the bottleneck
of uneven urban and industrial developments. The program will
probably lead to migration of the headquarters of more large and
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international enterprises to Tianjin which will in turn generate
solid demand for premium properties in the city. As part of the
move to support the program, a new airport in Beijing will be built
north of the bank of Yongding River, according to an official media
report. The travelling time from the new airport of Beijing to Goldin
Metropolitan will be 45 minutes by car. This will facilitate traffic of
passengers and cargos for both cities. The comprehensive municipal
and inter-city transportation networks will benefit our property
project.

Tianjin’s comprehensive municipal and inter-city transportation also
facilitates the development of Goldin Metropolitan’s central business
district (“CBD"). To the south of the Project lies the Tianjin South
Station of the Beijing-Shanghai High-speed Railway. It will connect
the Project with Beijing and its major surrounding districts as well
as Shanghai, while the newly opened Metro Line Number Three will
also connect Tianjin South Station with the local urban transit in
Tianjin. Other means of transport available to the CBD are the Jinji
(Tianjin-Ji County) Expressway and the Tianjin Station of the Beijing-
Tianjin Intercity Railway.

According to the figures of National Bureau of Statistics of the
PRC, Tianjin saw steady rises in the property prices in downtown
areas in 2013, with 7.4% increment at the end of December 2013
when compared with the previous year. This happened while the
Central Government tried to strike a balance between stimulating
the country’s economic growth and restraining property speculation
with stringent property market control measures. After the
implementation of restriction on home purchases in more than 40
cities for four years, local media reported that several Chinese cities
are mulling over whether to ease the restriction. The relaxation, if
implemented, will be able to lift the market sentiment and release
the pent-up demand.
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Goldin Metropolitan

Positioned as a mega-integrated property development flagship
project, Goldin Metropolitan targets the high-end property market
and is designed to meet the needs of leading domestic and foreign
corporations. Total investment in the Project is estimated to be
US$10 billion and will be completed by 2016 in phases. Just a 20
minutes’ drive from Tianjin’s downtown area, the Project consists
of an international CBD, a luxury residential zone called Fortune
Heights and Tianjin Goldin Metropolitan Polo Club (“Goldin
Metropolitan Polo Club”) which is complemented by Tianjin
Goldin Metropolitan Polo Club Hotel (the “Goldin Metropolitan
Polo Club Hotel”). The Goldin Metropolitan Polo Club helps
promote Goldin Metropolitan as a prestigious property project by
hosting international polo tournaments regularly each year.

An architectural masterpiece of unprecedented scale undertaken by
internationally acclaimed architectural consultancies, construction
companies and the Group’s professional team, Goldin Metropolitan
will have gross floor areas (“GFA”) of approximately 1,890,000
square metres. Its CBD will feature an iconic skyscraper Goldin
Finance 117, a grade-A office building which will probably become
the world’s fifth tallest building when it is completed by 2016.
Meanwhile, the Group recorded revenue from the initial sales of
the residential properties in Phase One of Fortune Heights during
the Year. In addition, both Goldin Metropolitan Polo Club and its
ancillary facilities Goldin Metropolitan Polo Club Hotel are now in
full operation. Construction of the remaining parts of the Project is
well on schedule. Overall, the Project will be a new metropolis-like
- zone offering comprehensive residential and business facilities for its
residents and tenants. By executing the Project with high standards,
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Central Business District

Showcasing Goldin Metropolitan’s state-of-the-art architecture,
the CBD will consist of the 597 metre-high grade-A office building
Goldin Finance 117, high-rise twin towers, a luxury shopping mall,
cultural and recreational facilities, an international convention and
exhibition center, a distinctive boutique hotel and deluxe serviced
apartments. In light of the construction scale and uniqueness of the
Project, Goldin Finance 117 was rated as one of China’s new iconic
buildings in the “2013-2014 China New Landmark Constructions in
100 Cities” (2013-2014 # B & H @ &£ #4Z), an annual study of
new landmarks under construction in the country which was jointly
organized by China Index Academy and China Real Estate Index
System.

By the end of the Year, we made significant progress in the
construction of the CBD. The basement and construction of over
300 metres in height of Goldin Finance 117 were completed. The
entire grade-A office building is scheduled to be finished by 2016.
Meanwhile, the piling works and construction of the diaphragm wall
of the basement of the second phase of CBD (including the Twin
Towers, Concert Hall, Boutique Hotel and International Convention
and Exhibition Centre) were well underway. The Company will solicit
multinational corporations for tenancy in the CBD by 2016 once
all buildings there are available for sale or lease. Notably, Goldin
Finance 117 will become the home of the regional headquarters of
international and sizeable domestic enterprises as the CBD is poised
to become a new commercial hub of Tianjin.
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Fortune Heights

Fortune Heights, as one of the signature projects of the Group,
consists of about 700 residential units in the form of villas,
townhouses and high-rise apartment buildings with combined GFA
of approximately 208,800 square metres in Phase One of Fortune
Heights. The Group recorded sales of the properties in its Phase
One, which were apartments in high-rise buildings and received
enthusiastic responses from buyers. The management believes that
the outstanding performance of Phase One bodes well for Phase
Two of Fortune Heights, which will have GFA of about 501,000
square metres and is scheduled to be completed by 2015. This high-
end residential property project will be built in a low-density layout,
and the home owners or tenants there will be able to enjoy a wide
range of community facilities. Notably, the Maple Leaf International
School-Tianjin Huayuan will be located at the site and its
construction is on schedule. Fortune Heights is the luxury residential
zone of the Project, and will embody the Group’s idea that “Elite
Community Counts”. This also reaffirms Fortune Heights as Tianjin's
most desirable residence.

Fortune Heights was named as one of the most promising property
projects in 2013 by “The Sixth Jinghua Property Annual Ranking
2012" for its luxurious artistic design and excellent craftsmanship.
Other accolades relating to Fortune Heights included the “China
Property Awards - Annual City Award (Tianjin)” from China Business
News, a reputable financial media corporation in China, in November
2013. All these awards demonstrated the market’s acclaim for the
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During the Year, Goldin M:étr‘ap itan Polo

organized some of the world’s most prestlglous polo tournaments
including “Fortune Heights Snow Polo World Cup 2014" in
January 2014, “Maserati Metropolitan Polo Classic 2013"” in June
2013, "Metropolitan Intervarsity Polo 2013” in July 2013, and the
“Fortune Heights Super Nations Cup 2013"” in October 2013 with
the Federation of International Polo and the Chinese Equestrian
Association.

In particular, “Metropolitan Intervarsity Polo 2013" was the first ever
international varsity polo tournament in China showcasing the most
prestigious university teams from England and the United States of
America, including those from University of Cambridge, University
of Oxford, Harvard University and Yale University. “Fortune Heights
Super Nations Cup 2013", which was one of the most spectacular
tournaments in international polo, brought together again the four
elite polo teams from Argentina, England, Hong Kong of China and
the USA to compete for the trophy. The “Fortune Heights Snow Polo
World Cup 2014" which was held in January 2014 was another
exciting sport event where contesting teams from England and Hong
Kong China gave a brilliant performance in the final.

PROSPECTS

The economic data for April of 2014 indicated that China’s economy
has stabilized and the United States has shown signs of economic
recovery. These improvements shall continue to facilitate foreign
investment in China in which Tianjin looks set to benefit from the
Central Government’s plan to integrate its economy with those of
Beijing and Hebei Province, and the State Council’s pending plan
to set up “an integrated and innovative zone for reform” in Tianjin
which will exceed the scope and functions of Shanghai’s free trade
zone. These policies, if |mp|emeq_’_e W||I give a fresh i ?petus to
the port city’s economic restrucprl “and development. The bright
prospects for Tianjin's developm_ oup’s premium
property development project ile, with the
ongoing urbanization and expa
attract foreign investment, thus
offices in prime locations. Th
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Grand in scale and visionary in design, Goldin Metropolitan is
intended to be a mega-integrated property development flagship
project in China. Close to the downtown area, the premium
integrated project of residential and commercial properties is geared
towards the needs of buyers in the high-end market and those of
the leading domestic and international enterprises. The successful
sale of the apartments in Phase One of Fortune Heights during the
Year suggested a bright prospect for the upcoming residential and
commercial property projects in Goldin Metropolitan. Construction
of the other parts of the Project is progressing on schedule, and we
look forward to a greater success when the entire flagship project
is completed. We aspire to become a world-class metropolitan
integrated property developer, and will do our best to realize the
visionary project with the highest standard.

The Group will also seek new opportunities to replenish new land
banks in prime locations elsewhere with an aim of sustaining its
long-term business development.
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Group's shareholders, investors and business partners for their trust
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shareholders’ returns.

e ¥ \a
~ Pan Sutong

12

.

MRE BRATHRERAN RFFEL BEK
RTBEAMGAMEZREERE - EEASAK
SEEWEREHOATH LR - REWE DM
BERRBEANBERACENTE -RAFE - 5
ESRE - REEMENHEENEKY - BTRIR
2 BRATISHELNEEREYEBRBASE
B - AR R A0 MEZETIRINAETT - FEE
EERBRTE - HPHERARISE S BAK
B ARBEHBENRBEREERNDEREMER X
EREBEENARSEEEREHAARRZAE AR
B o

R - AEETSEEMEHEE  AETSHE
A LI  BRERRAEGERR

Bt

AAERENLBEAARELR KEEREBRH
HAEEWEERFHBARDRED - RARER
LDREHEFERC  FREERBEERREZEETH
TREBN - BEAERRRAREBEELNER -
REARE  RPIEBHERFAEENER - BER
RFRAEER -




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

AND ANALYSIS
B i T




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

AND ANALYSIS
B S s B o3 M

RESULTS

For the year ended 31 March 2014 (the “Year”), the Group’s
revenue rose by approximately 21 times to approximately HK$2,793
million (31 March 2013: approximately HK$129 million). The increase
was mainly attributable to the recognized revenue of approximately
HK$2,680 million from the sales of residential properties in
Phase One of Fortune Heights during the Year. The property sales
accounted for 96% of the total revenue for the Year (31 March
2013: Nil). Net profit for the Year grew by approximately 12 times
to approximately HK$856 million (31 March 2013: approximately
HK$68 million). The Board is confident about the success of the
high-end integrated flagship project Goldin Metropolitan in the
coming years.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES
Working capital and debts

The Group’s working capital as of 31 March 2014 was approximately
HK$4,585,710,000, representing a decrease of 6.6% when
compared with the approximately HK$4,911,541,000 as of 31
March 2013. The current ratio of the Group changed from 2.20
times as of 31 March 2013 to 1.84 times as of 31 March 2014.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSISﬁ

A principal amount of HK$226,736,000 in outstanding Convertible
Bonds due 2014 was redeemed by the Company at 100%
on the maturity date (i.e. 21 January 2014) at approximately
HK$226,736,000 during the Year. None of the convertible bonds of
the Group was outstanding as at 31 March 2014 (31 March 2013:
principal amount of HK$226,736,000).

During the Year, a shareholder’s loan of US$426,038,000 (equivalent
to HK$3,303,500,000)), together with principal sum advanced
to the Group from Goldin Group (Investment) Limited (“Goldin
Group (Investment)”), which is wholly and beneficially owned by
Mr. Pan Sutong, and the respective interest payable was assigned,
and the Group’s and the Company’s rights, benefits and obligations
contemplated under the original loan agreement and supplemental
loan agreements with Goldin Group (Investment) were transferred
to a related company, Goldin Special Situations Limited (”Goldin
Special Situations”), in which Mr. Pan Sutong has a beneficial
interest. Goldin Special Situations is a private fund company which
is mainly engaged in the investment in physical assets and financial
instruments, including real estate property, equities, equity-linked
products and fixed income bonds. It also involves in investment
relating to mergers and acquisitions of listed or private companies.
The loan advanced from Goldin Special Situations was approximately
HK$5,019,123,000 as at 31 March 2014 (31 March 2013: Nil).

Gearing ratio (total debt to total assets) of the Group was
maintained at a healthy level of 19.0% (31 March 2013: 13.5%).
On the other hand, as at 31 March 2014, the ratio of total liabilities
(including total trade and construction cost payables, bank
borrowing, obligations under finance leases, convertible bonds and
loan from a related company/a shareholder) to total equity was
56.0% (31 March 2013: 40.95%).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B PR i e 3 A

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

The Group’s transactions and assets are primarily denominated in
Renminbi. The Group does not expect any materially adverse effects
of the exchange rate fluctuation. Nevertheless, the Group continues
to monitor closely its exposure to the exchange rate risk, and is
prepared to manage against its exchange rate risk, if necessary.
The Group continues to exercise a strict control policy and did not
engage in any speculative trading in debt securities or financial
derivatives during the Year.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

As of 31 March 2014, the Group had contingent liabilities of
approximately HK$2,000,000 and commitments of approximately
HK$17,914,000,000 (31 March 2013: HK$2,000,000 and
HK$14,699,000,000 respectively).

For the commitments, the future committed capital
expenditures which are to be incurred mainly for properties for
sale and those for investment properties under construction
up to 2015 and 2016 are HK$4,435,000,000 (31 March
2013: HK$5,213,000,000) and HK$13,454,000,000
(31 March 2013: HK$9,484,000,000), respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 March 2014 (31 March 2013: Nil).

EMPLOYMENT AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As of 31 March 2014, the Group had 1,059 employees (31 March
2013: 1,185 employees). Staff costs for the Year (including directors’
emoluments) amounted to approximately HK$301,142,000
(31 March 2013: approximately HK$313,486,000). The Group
offers competitive remuneration to its employees. Subject to the
performance of the employees, the Group may provide discretionary
bonuses and/or grant share options to the employees as an incentive
for their continued contribution. In addition to using an industry
average as reference for setting remuneration, other benchmarks
which are used include prevailing market conditions within the
general framework of the Group’s remuneration system.
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R EIRHRE

Code on Corporate Governance Practices

The board of directors of Goldin Properties Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) are committed to the establishment and maintenance
of good corporate governance practices and procedures to
safeguard the interests of all shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”) and to enhance accountability and transparency.

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2014 (the “Year”), the
Company has applied the principles and complied with all code
provisions and, where applicable, the recommended best practices of
Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report (the
“CG Code") as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), except for the
following deviations:

(a) Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code

Under this code provision, the roles of chairman and chief
executive should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual for a balance of power and authority.

Currently, Mr. Pan Sutong is serving both as the Company’s
chairman and chief executive officer. However, the Board
considers that this situation will not impair the balance of
power and authority between the Board and the management
of the Company. This is because the balance of power and
authority is ensured by the operations of the Board which
comprises experienced and high caliber individuals with
demonstrated integrity. Further, decisions of the Board are
made by way of majority voting. The Board believes that
this structure is conductive to strong, prompt response and
efficient management and implementation.

(b) Code Provision A.4.1 of the CG Code

Under this code provision, non-executive directors should be
appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election.
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Code on Corporate Governance Practices (Continued)

(b) Code Provision A.4.1 of the CG Code
(Continued)

Currently, the independent non-executive directors of the
Company (“"INEDs"”) are not appointed for a specific term
but are subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years at the Company’s annual general meeting in
accordance with the articles of association of the Company
under their appointment letters. The Board believes that such
practice will offer stability at the Board level while at the
same time, independence is safeguarded by the necessary
rotation, retirement and re-election procedures which involves
shareholders’ approval.

Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors and Relevant Employees

The Company has adopted the terms of the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own
code of conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions. The
Company has made specific enquiry of each of its directors (the
"Directors”) regarding any non-compliance with the Model Code
during the Year, and all Directors confirmed that they have fully
complied with the required standards set out in the Model Code
throughout the Year.

Relevant employees of the Company, who are likely to be in
possession of unpublished inside information in relation to the
Company or its securities, have been requested to comply with
provisions similar to those terms in the Model Code.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
e FRR:

Board of Directors

Board Composition

During the Year and up to the date of this annual report, the Board
comprises the following Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. Pan Sutong (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Zhou Xiaojun

Mr. Ting Kwang Yuan, Edmond

Mr. Li Huamao

Mr. Wong Hau Yan, Helvin

Mr. Lee Chi Chung, Harvey (resigned on 28 February 2014)

Ms. Chan Sau Yin, Anita Teresa (appointed on 28 February 2014)

INEDs

Mr. Lai Chi Kin
Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen
Dr. Cheng Kwan Wai

The Board members have no financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationships with each other. The biographical
details of the Directors are set out in the section headed “Directors
and Senior Management” of this annual report.

Role and Function

The Board is responsible for overall strategic formulation and
performance monitoring of the Group. It delegates day-to-day
operations of the Company to the management team within the
control and authority framework set by the Board. In addition,
the Board has also delegated various responsibilities to the audit
committee (the “Audit Committee”), remuneration committee
(the “Remuneration Committee”), nomination committee
(the “Nomination Committee”) and executive committee (the
“Executive Committee”) of the Company. Further details of these
committees are set out in this corporate governance report.

The Board is collectively responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements of the Group which were prepared
on a going concern basis. There are no material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Also, there
is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee
regarding the selection and appointment of the auditor.
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Board of Directors (Continued)

INEDs

Pursuant to rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules, the
Company has appointed three INEDs. All of the INEDs have
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise.

The Company has received from each of the INEDs an annual
confirmation of independence pursuant to rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules and the Company considers that all of the INEDs are
independent.

For INEDs who has served the Company for more than 9 years, his/
her further appointment will be subject to a separate resolution to
be approved by the Shareholders at the general meeting and the
papers to the Shareholders accompanying that resolution will include
the reasons why the Board believes he/she is still independent and
should be re-elected.

Corporate Governance Function

The Board has delegated the following duties and responsibilities in
respect of the corporate governance functions of the Company to
the Executive Committee:

1. to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Board;

2. toreview and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management of the
Company;

3. to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

4. to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
directors of the Company; and

5.  to review the Company’s compliance with the code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
e FRR:

Board of Directors (Continued)

Corporate Governance Function (Continued)

During the Year and up to the date of this report, the Executive
Committee has performed the corporate governance duties in
accordance with its terms of reference.

During the Year, the Chairman of the Board held a meeting with
the INEDs without the presence of the Executive Directors. Details of
their attendance record are set out in the following table:

EEE (&)

EEERME (&)
RAFENEEAREDM  $ITEEGCRIER
BOEREE TR EARAL -

RAFER - EEGEHEBERNITEERED
R TR TR B o 152 AR
T

Number of Meetings Attended/

Number of Meetings Held
HESERY ERETRE

Mr. Pan Sutong EEE A
Mr. Lai Chi Kin RREER S
Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carman REXIEL
Dr. Cheng Kwan Wai BEFHET

Board Meetings

The Board meets regularly throughout the Year. Additional meetings
would be arranged, if and when required. Notices of at least 14 days
are given for regular Board meetings and the Company also aims at
giving reasonable notice for all other Board meetings.

During the Year, four regular Board meetings were held. At the
Board meetings, the Directors discussed and formulated overall
strategies for the Company, discussed and approved annual and
interim results, and other material transactions and developments of
the Group. Draft and final versions of the minutes of the Board were
sent to all Directors for their comment and records respectively in a
timely manner.
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Board Meetings (Continued)

Details of each Director’s attendance record during the Year are set
out in the following table:

EFRE R

ExEge3 (A

TREJIRAFEARTES ZHFLEAFS

Number of Meetings Attended/
Number of Board Meetings Held

HESHEAE ESEERETRE

Mr. Pan Sutong EERS A
Mr. Zhou Xiaojun RIS S
Mr. Ting Kwang Yuan, Edmond TRERAE
Mr. Li Huamao FEXSE
Mr. Wong Hau Yan, Helvin HEREAE
Mr. Lee Chi Chung, Harvey* FHBELE
Ms. Chan Sau Yin, Anita Teresa® PRAE 2042
M. Lai Chi Kin IREERSE
Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen REXEL
Dr. Cheng Kwan Wai BEFHET
* Mr. Lee Chi Chung, Harvey resigned as Executive Director on

28 February 2014. Therefore, he did not attend two Board meetings
subsequently held after his resignation.

A Ms. Chan Sau Yin, Anita Teresa was appointed as Executive Director
on 28 February 2014. Therefore, she did not attend two Board
meetings held before her appointment.

Directors’ Training

In order to ensure the Directors’ contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant and to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills, the Company has encouraged and funded suitable
trainings for Directors to participate in continuous professional
developments. The Directors have provided to the Company their
records of continuous professional development during the Year.

Besides, the Company Secretary also provides Directors with (i)
updates on significant development and amendments in the Listing
Rules and other relevant legal and regulatory requirements from time
to time and (ii) monthly updates on the Company’s performance,
position and the latest development to enable the Board to
discharge its duties.
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3/4
4/4
3/4
2/4
2/4
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4/4
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e FRR:

Board Meetings (Continued)

Directors’ Training (Continued)

A summary of training received by Directors during the Year
according to the records provided by the Directors is set out in the
table below:

ExEe3 (A

B (&)

TREFIRBEFRMR 2 EERAFERM
BRBIIZHE

Type of
continuous
professional
development

Name of Directors EEEB BEEXREZER
(Note 1)
(KizE1)
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Pan Sutong BRI A A
Mr. Zhou Xiaojun BT 4 A
Mr. Ting Kwang Yuan, Edmond TERESE A
Mr. Li Huamao TERSA A
Mr. Wong Hau Yan, Helvin =EZRELE A, B
Mr. Lee Chi Chung, Harvey* ZFEBEE* A
Ms. Chan Sau Yin, Anita Teresa®  BREB L 14 A, C
INEDs BE
Mr. Lai Chi Kin REERSE A, B
Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen REXIEL A, B
Dr. Cheng Kwan Wai BAERIEL A, B
3 Resigned as Executive Director on 28 February 2014 * RZZ—NF_A=+/\ABERTES

5 Appointed as Executive Director on 28 February 2014

Notes:

T A: Reading regulatory updates

B: Attending relevant seminars, workshops, conferences and/or forums
C: Receiving one-to-one training from external solicitor

2. All of the abovementioned trainings are relevant to the Group’s
business, the corporate governance, rules and regulations,

accounting, financial or professional skills and/or directors’ duties and

responsibilities.
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Board Committees

Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee with written
terms of reference, which may be modified from time to time, in
accordance with the provisions set out in the CG Code. The Audit
Committee comprises three INEDs, namely, Mr. Lai Chi Kin, Dr. Ng
Lai Man, Carmen and Dr. Cheng Kwan Wai, with Mr. Lai Chi Kin acts
as the chairman. The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient
resources to discharge its duties and can access to independent
external professional advice in accordance with the Company’s policy
if considered necessary.

The major role and function of the Audit Committee are:

1. to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of the external auditor, and to
approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditor, and any questions of resignation or dismissal
of that auditor;

2. to review and monitor the external auditor’s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards;

3. to monitor the integrity of the Company’s financial statements,
annual and interim reports and accounts, and to review
significant financial reporting judgments contained therein;
and

4.  to oversee the Company’s financial reporting system and
internal control procedures.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available from
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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Board Committees (Continued)

Audit Committee (Continued)

During the Year, two meetings of the Audit Committee were held
for, amongst other things, considering and reviewing the annual and
interim results and reports, the external auditor’s audit findings and
other audit issues, financial reporting and compliance procedures,
the effectiveness of the internal control system and the re-
appointment of the external auditor. The chief financial officer of the
Company was present at each of such meetings to report, explain
to and answer questions from the members of the Audit Committee
regarding the financial reporting findings and effectiveness of the
internal control systems implemented by the Company. Draft and
final versions of the minutes of such meetings were sent to the Audit
Committee’s members for their comment and records respectively in
a timely manner.

Details of each Audit Committee member’s attendance record during
the Year are set out in the following table:
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FIE

Number of Committee Meetings Attended/
Number of Committee Meetings Held

HEZESSEAE ZEESRETRE

REBKLE ()
REXiEt
BERBL

Mr. Lai Chi Kin (Chairman)
Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen
Dr. Cheng Kwan Wai

Remuneration of External Auditor

The Company has engaged Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
("Deloitte”) as its external auditor. During the Year, fees paid/
payable to Deloitte and PRC local auditors of the Group for audit
services was approximately HK$4,177,000 and HK$491,000,
respectively and for non-audit services was approximately
HK$1,937,000, which included fees for the provision of tax services
and financial due diligence.
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Board Committees (Continued)

Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee with
written terms of reference, which may be modified from time to
time, in accordance with the provisions set out in the CG Code. The
Remuneration Committee comprises three members, namely, Dr. Ng
Lai Man, Carmen (INED), Mr. Pan Sutong (Chairman of the Board)
and Mr. Lai Chi Kin (INED), with Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen acts as the
chairman. The Remuneration Committee is provided with sufficient
resources to discharge its duties and can access to independent
external professional advice in accordance with the Company’s policy
if considered necessary.

The major role and function of the Remuneration Committee are:

1. to formulate and make recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s remuneration policy and structure for all Directors
and the senior management and on the establishment of a
formal and transparent procedure for developing remuneration

policy;

2. to review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board's corporate goals and
objectives;

3. to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management. This should include benefits in kind,
pension rights and compensation payments, including any
compensation payable for loss or termination of their office or
appointment; and

4.  to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
of non-executive Directors.

During the Year, a meeting of the Remuneration Committee was
held for reviewing, considering and endorsing the remuneration
packages proposed for all Directors and senior management of the
Company. Draft and final versions of the minutes of such meeting
were sent to the Remuneration Committee members for their
comment and records respectively in a timely manner.
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Board Committees (Continued)

Remuneration Committee (Continued)

On 28 March 2014, the Remuneration Committee reviewed and
recommended to the Board for approval the grant of 9,000,000
share options to the executive Directors under the 2012 Share
Option Scheme of the Company, details of which are set out in the
section headed “Share Options” contained in the Directors’ Report
of this annual report.

Details of each Remuneration Committee member’s attendance
record during the Year are set out in the following table:

FHEEE ()

R-ZT—ME=ZA-+/\B ' FHEZESEEL M
EEORBMAERBAAR Y S — —FHRE
B (B BERAFRETERET [BRE] —
£1) MEFTEF1¥H 9,000,000 A% EERALHE

B -

Number of Committee Meeting(s) Attended/

Number of Committee Meeting(s) Held
HEZES2BRE ZESSRRTAE

Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen (chairman) REiEt (FE)
Mr. Pan Sutong #*
:EE

Mr. Lai Chi Kin B

G2

y i
yied

R BH

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are available
from the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 30 March
2012 with written terms of reference. The Nomination Committee
comprises three members, namely Mr. Pan Sutong (Chairman of
the Board), Mr. Lai Chi Kin (INED) and Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen
(INED), with Mr. Pan Sutong acts as the chairman. The Nomination
Committee is provided with sufficient resources to discharge its
duties and can access to independent external professional advice in
accordance with the Company’s policy if considered necessary.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are, inter alias, to
review the structure, size and diversified composition of the Board,
identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members,
assess the independence of INEDs and make recommendations to
the Board on the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors.
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Board Committees (Continued)

Nomination Committee (Continued)
Board Diversity

In compliance with the requirement set out in new code provision
A.5.6 of the CG Code which became effective on 1 September
2013, the Company adopted a board diversity policy (the “Policy”)
which aims to set out the approach to achieve diversity on the
Board. The Policy is summarized as follows:

1. In designing the Board’'s composition, diversity of Board
members will be achieved through consideration of a number
of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service (the “Objective Criteria”).

2. The candidate(s) for all Board appointments will be considered
against the Objective Criteria, having due regard for the
benefits of the Board diversity.

3. The ultimate decision on the appointment of Board members
will be based on merits and contributions that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board.

During the Year, a meeting of the Nomination Committee was held
for (a) evaluating the performance and contribution of each of the
retiring Directors during the last financial year of the Company and
the period thereafter up to the date of evaluation; and (b) assessing
the independence of INEDs.

On 27 February 2014, the Nomination Committee reviewed and
recommended to the Board for approval the appointment of
Ms. Chan Sau Yin, Anita Teresa as executive Director with effect
from 28 February 2014.
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Board Committees (Continued)

Nomination Committee (Continued)

Details of each Nomination Committee’s member’s attendance
record during the Year are set out in the following table:

REZEE (&)
TERBIINAEENRAEARERE S HE L
S -

Number of Committee Meeting(s) Attended/

Number of Committee Meeting(s) Held
HEZESERAY ZESGRETAY

Mr. Pan Sutong (Chairman) EEGRIE (FE)
Mr. Lai Chi Kin REBRSAE
Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen REXIEL

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are available
from the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

Executive Committee

The Board established the Executive Committee on 30 March 2012
with written terms of reference. The Executive Committee comprises
two members, namely Mr. Pan Sutong (Chairman of the Board)
and Mr. Wong Hau Yan, Helvin (Executive Director), with Mr. Pan
Sutong acts as the chairman. The Executive Committee is provided
with sufficient resources to discharge its duties and can access to
independent professional advice in accordance with the Company’s
policy if considered necessary.

The Executive Committee meets periodically or by way of circulation
to discuss/deal with the daily and ordinary operating matters of the
Company as well as to perform the corporate governance functions
of the Group, details of which are set out in the terms of reference
of the Executive Committee which are available on the Company’s
website.

During the Year, a meeting of the Executive Committee was held for
the purpose of performing the corporate governance duties.
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Number of Committee Meeting(s) Attended/

Number of Committee Meeting(s) Held
HEZES2BNRE ZESSERTAH

Mr. Pan Sutong (Chairman) EEGRICE (FE)
Mr. Wong Hau Yan, Helvin =ERLE
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Company Secretary

The Company Secretary is a full-time employee of the Company and
reports to the Chairman of the Board. She is responsible for advising
the Board for corporate governance matters, and ensuring the Board
activities are efficiently and effectively conducted.

For the Year, the Company Secretary has confirmed that she has
complied with paragraph 3.29 of the Listing Rules by taking no less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training.

Internal Controls

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining sound and
effective internal control system of the Group in order to safeguard
the shareholders’ investment and the Group’s assets.

During the Year, the Board has assessed and strengthened the
effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group. The Audit
Committee conducted periodic reviews of their assessment and
provided valuable recommendations on the internal control system
of the Group. The assessment covers all material controls including
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk management
functions. The Board is not aware of any significant areas of concern
which may affect the shareholders.

The internal audit department of the Group performs regular audit
reviews on internal control system in order to identify any business
risks, control deficiencies and safeguard the interests of the Group.

The Group will use its best endeavor to further improve the
Company’s internal control system to ensure achievement of the
Group’s objectives.

Shareholders’ Right

Shareholders’ enquiries

To ensure effective communication between the Board and
the Shareholders, the Company has adopted a shareholders’
communication policy on 29 March 2012 (the “Shareholders’
Communication Policy”).
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Shareholders’ Right (Continued)

Shareholders’ enquiries (Continued)

Shareholders should direct their questions about their shareholdings,
share registration and related matters to the Company’s share
registrar, Tricor Secretaries Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong.

Shareholders who wish to put enquiries to the Board and relating to
the Group’s corporate matters shall send their enquiries in writing
to the Company Secretary at the Company’s registered office at
22/F, Two International Finance Centre, 8 Finance Street, Central,
Hong Kong or by email at info@goldinppt.com who will ensure
these enquiries to be properly directed to the Board. Besides,
Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the general
meetings of the Company.

Shareholders’ meetings

Shareholders may request the Company to convene general
meetings in accordance with the Companies Ordinance (Chapter
622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) as well as the provisions set out
in the Company’s articles of association, a copy of which has been
uploaded on the websites of the Company at www.goldinppt.com
and the Stock Exchange at www.hkex.com.hk.

Shareholders who wish to put forward proposals for the Company’s
consideration at the general meetings can send their written
proposals stating the objects therein to the Company Secretary at
the Company’s registered office. However, Shareholders must hold at
least 5% of the total voting rights of all the members having a right
to vote at general meetings as at the date of submitting the proposal
in order to qualify for sending the proposal. Collective number of
shares can be from a single person or multiple shareholders.

Communication with Shareholders

The Board recognises the value of strong communication with its
Shareholders, both individual and institutional and its potential
investors. The Company believes that effective communication with
the Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investors’ understanding of the Company’s business performance
and strategies.
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Communication with Shareholders (Continued)

The Company formulated the Shareholders Communication Policy
internally to ensure that Shareholders and potential investors are
provided with ready, equal and timely access to balanced and
understandable information about the Company, in order to enable
Shareholders to exercise their rights in an informed manner, and to
allow Shareholders and potential investors to engage actively with
the Company.

In order to develop and maintain a continuing Shareholders and
investors’ relationship programme, the Company has established
various channels of communication with Shareholders and potential
investors including but not limited to (i) the annual general meeting
which provides a forum for Shareholders to raise comments and
exchange views with the Board directly; (ii) printed copies of
corporate communication required under the Listing Rules; and
(iii) updated and key information about the Group as well as
information released by the Company to the Stock Exchange are all
made available on the Company’s website.

The Board shall maintain an on-going dialogue with Shareholders
and potential investors, and will regularly review the Shareholders’
Communication Policy to ensure its effectiveness.

During the Year, the Company held an annual general meeting on
30 August 2013 and the attendance record of the Directors is set
out in the table below:

Name of Directors E=E8
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Pan Sutong TRAERIB ST A
Mr. Zhou Xiaojun T L -
Mr. Ting Kwang Yuan, Edmond TRERAE
Mr. Li Huamao RERSLE
Mr. Wong Hau Yan, Helvin H=ERALE
Mr. Lee Chi Chung, Harvey* TEBILE
Ms. Chan Sau Yin, Anita Teresa® PRAEE 2212
Independent Non-executive Directors ﬁ.‘i‘ HHITEE
Mr. Lai Chi Kin RERSLE
Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen REXIEL
Dr. Cheng Kwan Wai BE BB+
- Resigned as Executive Director on 28 February 2014

o Appointed as Executive Director on 28 February 2014
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Corporate Governance Enhancement

Enhancing corporate governance is not simply a matter of applying
and complying with the CG Code of the Stock Exchange but also
about promoting and developing an ethical and healthy corporate
culture. We will continue to review and, where appropriate, improve
our current practices on the basis of our experience, regulatory
changes and developments. We welcome any views or suggestions
from our Shareholders to promote and improve the Company’s
transparency.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR

Executive Directors

Mr. Pan Sutong, aged 51, is the founder of the Group. Mr. Pan is a
controlling shareholder, the Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive
Officer, an Executive Director, the Chairman of the Nomination
Committee and the Executive Committee and a member of the
Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. Pan is also a director
of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Pan is responsible for the
overall strategic planning of the Group. Mr. Pan has accumulated
extensive experience in finance and property development in Hong
Kong and the RPC over the years. Mr. Pan is also a controlling
shareholder, the chairman of the board of directors and a non-
executive director of Goldin Financial Holdings Limited, a company
incorporated in Bermuda with its shares listed on the main board
of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 530). In addition, Mr. Pan is
also the majority shareholder of Gigaset AG, a listed company in
Germany, holding more than 50% shareholding thereof.

Mr. Zhou Xiaojun, aged 40, joined the Group in 2006 as General
Manager of China Division, oversees the Group’s China businesses.
Mr. Zhou was appointed as an Executive Director of the Company
in April 2008. Mr. Zhou is also a director of certain subsidiaries of
the Company. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Zhou acted as legal
counsel and held senior management posts in various corporations
in the PRC, Hong Kong and Singapore. Mr. Zhou graduated from
Dalian Maritime University with a bachelor degree in International
Maritime Law. Mr. Zhou has accumulated extensive experience in
corporate administration, finance, legal, international trade and
public relations.

Mr. Ting Kwang Yuan, Edmond, aged 55, was appointed as an
Executive Director of the Company in August 2008. Mr. Ting is also
a director of a subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Ting is a registered
architect of the State of California, the United States and the
Architects Registration Board of Hong Kong. Mr. Ting obtained a
bachelor degree in Science (Architecture) and Architecture from the
University of Southern California, and is a member of the American
Institute of Architects, the National Council of Architectural
Registration Board, the United States and the Hong Kong Institute
of Architect. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Ting was a director of
P&T Group Limited. Mr. Ting has over 30 years of experience in
architecture, and in the management and co-ordination of a variety
of projects in South East Asian region, especially Hong Kong, the
PRC and Taiwan.
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ERMAEBAEHAR

Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Li Huamao, aged 45, was appointed as an Executive Director of
the Company in August 2010. Mr. Li graduated from the business
faculty of Tianjin University with a bachelor degree in Construction
Management. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Li was a director of
Tianjin Hi-Tech Development Company Limited, a company listed
in the PRC. Mr. Li was also a general manager of Tianjin Hi-Tech
Property Development Company Limited and a general manager
of the operating department of Tianjin Hi-Tech Holding Group
Company Limited. Mr. Li has accumulated extensive management
experience in the development and investment in real estate industry
in the PRC.

Mr. Wong Hau Yan, Helvin, aged 40, was appointed as an
Executive Director of the Company in August 2010. Mr. Wong joined
the Company in 2008 and is a member of the Executive Committee
of the Company and also a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr. Wong is the general counsel of the Company and
responsible for overseeing the Group’s legal, corporate and merger
and acquisition matters. Mr. Wong obtained a bachelor degree in
Laws from The Manchester Metropolitan University in the United
Kingdom and was admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong and in
England and Wales. Mr. Wong is also a graduate of Stanford
University Senior Executive Leadership Program. Mr. Wong is also an
executive director and general counsel of Goldin Financial Holdings
Limited, a company incorporated in Bermuda with its shares listed
on the main board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 530).
Besides, Mr. Wong is also the deputy chairman of the supervisory
board of Gigaset AG, a listed company in Germany. Prior to joining
the Company, Mr. Wong was a special counsel of Baker & McKenzie
specializing in real estate mergers and acquisitions, corporate joint
ventures and public corporate compliance matters.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Executive Directors (Continued)

Ms. Chan Sau Yin, Anita Teresa, aged 47, re-joined the Group in
2013 and was appointed as an Executive Director of the Company
in February 2014. Ms. Chan is also a director of certain subsidiaries
of the Company. Ms. Chan is responsible for property investment,
property management and sales and marketing in the property
sector of the Group. Prior to re-joining the Group, Ms. Chan was
an executive director of certain group companies of Wing Tai
Properties Limited (listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange,
Stock Code: 369). Ms. Chan holds a Master of Science Degree in
Marketing from Edinburgh Napier University. Ms. Chan is a fellow
member of The Chartered Institute of Marketing, associate members
of The Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors and The Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lai Chi Kin, aged 78, was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company in November 2002. Mr. Lai is
also the Chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee of the
Company. Mr. Lai is a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and CPA Australia, and has extensive
experience in accounting and auditing sectors.
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Independent Non-executive Directors
(Continued)

Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen, aged 49, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in February
2004 and is the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee, a
member of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee
of the Company. Dr. Ng has more than 25 years of experience in
professional accounting and corporate finance in Hong Kong, the
PRC, the United States and Europe. Dr. Ng is a practicing certified
public accountant in Hong Kong, a fellow member of The Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and The Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom, and
an associate member of The Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales. Dr. Ng received her Doctor of Business
Administration Degree from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University,
Juris Doctor Degree from The Chinese University of Hong Kong,
Master of Laws Degree in Corporate and Financial Laws from The
University of Hong Kong, Master of Business Administration Degree
from The Chinese University of Hong Kong, Master of Professional
Accounting Degree from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and
Master of Science in Global Finance from The Hong Kong University
of Science and Technology and Leonard N. Stern School of Business
of New York University. Dr. Ng is currently an independent non-
executive director of Cheong Ming Investments Limited (Stock Code:
1196), eSun Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 571) and 1010 Printing
Group Limited (Stock Code: 1127), all being listed companies in
Hong Kong.

Dr. Cheng Kwan Wai, aged 61, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in September 2004 and
is a member of the Audit Committee of the Company. Dr. Cheng
obtained a Doctor of Science Degree from the Massachusetts
Institute of Technology, the United States and a Master of Business
Administration Degree from the University of Western Ontario,
Canada. Dr. Cheng had held management positions in various
technology companies, and was in charge of funding technology
companies when he was with the Government of Hong Kong. Dr.
Cheng is currently engaged in environmental protection projects.

Senior Management

The abovementioned Executive Directors of the Company are
members of senior management of the Group.

GOLDIN PROPERTIES HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2014

BYFHTES ()

REXHELT 495 R_ZTWUF_AEZER
RRREVIFATES BARARRFMEESX
o BRZEERREREEGZKE - RELIRE
B hE - XERBNEEBRSSFEES D
ERELR RBLREFBUNESE - BEGF
B A REBEFFARETMAGERE B NER
MM BBHEEt A ASMNEEE - RELRE
ERBIREBIHEBRELIRM BB XKREE
BB - EAAXEEEBEL (RRVARSEX)
B  BAPXARBIEHERBRLTSM - FEET
REHESHET 20 - URBBRIRKZEALD
ABHFREBR RS BIESRL - RIELR
EERREARLR (ROAK : 119) - Bi2E
ERERAR (BRMHRSE : 571) REEZNREERSE
RARE (BRMHARSE - 1127) 2 BYUERITESF - &
ERREREBBLTIAR -

BERBL 61 R_ZETNFHLARZES
RRRVEMIFNTES BARRRERZEENX
8 o B8 T EUSERTE 12 T2 RHE T 20 &
MERTELARERETHERBR LM - L
ZREZREBEAREEERBN - MREBEFE
BEAEERHEPNMRARIZER - BELEA
EREZERRIER -

ERARRRATESFRAKBESREREABZK
=



R, DIRECTORS' REPORT

The board of directors (“Board” or “Directors”) of Goldin
Properties Holdings Limited (the “Company”) presents the annual
report together with the audited consolidated financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 March 2014 (the “Year").

Principal Activities

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are set out in
Note 46 to the consolidated financial statements.

Results and Dividend

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a dividend.

Share Capital

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the
Year are set out in Note 38 to the consolidated financial statements.

Share Premium and Reserves

Movements in the share premium and reserves of the Company and
the Group during the Year are shown in Note 39 to the consolidated
financial statements and consolidated statement of changes in
equity.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Movements of property, plant and equipment of the Company and
the Group during the Year are shown in Note 17 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Ponies

Movements of ponies during the Year are shown in Note 18 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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BREY=

Movements of investment properties during the Year are shown in  EMERARFE RNz FEERERE P EREKM T
Note 19 to the consolidated financial statements. 19 ¢

Investment Properties

PBHME

AEEE EAEMBRFR RENEERAERR
BNAFHE191H -

Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 191 of this
annual report.

S

RAFEARBEEAREZTEARILE2ESEM

Directors

The Directors who held office during the Year and up to the date of

this report are: N

Executive Directors HITEE

Mr. Pan Sutong (Chairman & Chief Executive Officer) EERIE (FEFTEARE)
Mr. Zhou Xiaojun [ElEE S

Mr. Ting Kwang Yuan, Edmond TREREE

Mr. Li Huamao FERGE

Mr. Wong Hau Yan, Helvin BTERLE

FERRE (R=F-—OF=A=1/NHAFHT)
MEBL L (R-E—mE= =1/ HESE)

Mr. Lee Chi Chung, Harvey (resigned on 28 February 2014)
Ms. Chan Sau Yin, Anita Teresa (appointed on 28 February 2014)

Independent Non-executive Directors BYEHITES
Mr. Lai Chi Kin RERSE
Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen REXEL
Dr. Cheng Kwan Wai BERIHE LT

Pursuant to Article 96 of the articles of association of the Company

REARFRASSRAN ((ERMAA]) E96 1%

REBLZLT (RARRZZE—=FRRAFAGHE
BLREZHES) TREZEAQ BN T —HNF
NAZTHEASTZEERREFAE ((ZF—N
FRRBERE]) BRI ERFAERLRTREE

(the "Articles”), Ms. Chan Sau Yin, Anita Teresa, being the new
Director appointed after the 2013 annual general meeting of the
Company, will hold office only until the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to be held on 25 August 2014 (the “2014

40

AGM") and, being eligible, offer herself for re-election at the 2014
AGM.
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Directors (Continued)

Pursuant to article 105 of the Articles, Mr. Zhou Xiaojun, Mr. Li
Huamao and Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen will retire from office at the
2014 AGM by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election at the 2014 AGM.

The term of office of each Director, including the Independent Non-
executive Directors (“INEDs"), is for a period up to his/her retirement
by rotation in accordance with the Articles.

Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company or
any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

Biography of Directors and Senior Management

Biography of Directors and senior management are set out in the
section headed “Directors and Senior Management” of this annual
report.
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests in
Shares and Underlying Shares

As at 31 March 2014, the interests of the Directors and chief
executive of the Company in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO"))
which were notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests which they were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or
which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or which were required,
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code") as set out in Appendix 10 of
the Rules (the “Listing Rules”) Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange, to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange, were as follows:

(a) Interests in ordinary shares

EERBESITRAERKRA RAEERK
7z Em

R-ZT—NE=ZA=+—H EERADNFIRSIT
BABRARRHEFMBEEZE (TERLFTHFR
HEED ((BHFERBESKRE ) EXVI) MHK &
HERD P BAEREES R SEFEXVHET R
ESHBANGARAREAHERSMBER AR
([BRAT]) Mt (BIERSRIEES R E KD
ZHREGERBSIEBEE 2 ER)  REER
APARIREH R E &GS 352 8 BB 172 B
REHER - IR BE R ATES EmRA ([ LEHR
Bl MR+ E MR ITAESETELER S 2 IZ
A<PR ([ZBESFA ) B AR E R AR
ERy NN

(a) REBERzEDS

Approximate

Long position/ Number of percentage
Name of Director short position Capacity shares held of shareholding
BEx=pg R/ KR 227) BFERBHE BRESLNE DL
(Note 1)
(fet1)
Mr. Pan Sutong Long position Interests held as beneficial 2,295,302,998 64.34%
owner and through (Note 2)
controlled corporations
EHATE e ERERRAEAR (Hrst2)
RRIEERE 2 R
Mr. Zhou Xiaojun Long position Beneficial owner 280,000 0.01%
[EREE £ 59) BB A
Mr. Ting Kwang Yuan, Edmond  Long position Beneficial owner 900,000 0.03%
TERRE e ERERAA
Mr. Wong Hau Yan, Helvin Long position Beneficial owner 1,200,000 0.03%

=ERE R EslEEA
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests in
Shares and Underlying Shares (Continued)

(b) Interests in underlying shares

As at 31 March 2014, there were share options held by the
Directors. Details of such share options, duly granted to
the Directors pursuant to the share option schemes of the
Company, which constitute interests in underlying ordinary
shares of equity derivatives of the Company under the SFO
are set out in the section headed “Share Options” of this
Directors’ report.

Notes:

As at 31 March 2014, the total number of ordinary shares of
the Company in issue was 3,567,380,426 shares.

As at 31 March 2014, 167,791,571 shares were held by Mr.
Pan Sutong (“Mr. Pan”) in his personal capacity, 2,011,741,427
shares were held by Goldin Group (Investment) Limited (“Goldin
Group (Investment)”), the immediate holding company of
the Company and 115,770,000 shares were held by Clear Jade
International Limited (“Clear Jade”). Clear Jade was 100%
owned by Mr. Pan and Goldin Group (Investment) was 100%
owned by Goldin Real Estate Financial Holdings Limited (“Goldin
Real Estate Financial”), the ultimate holding company of the
Company, and Goldin Real Estate Financial was 100% owned
by Mr. Pan. Accordingly, Mr. Pan was deemed to be interested
in 2,011,741,427 shares held by Goldin Group (Investment)
and 115,770,000 shares held by Clear Jade. Goldin Group
(Investment), being a holding company of the Company, is also
an associated corporation of the Company within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors had, as at 31 March
2014, any other interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
would have to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which they were taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 352

of the SFO,

or which were required to be notified to the Company

and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS' REPORT
B

ESRESTHRARRRG RHEEK
iz iEm (&)

(b) RHEBAKAD 2%
R-Z—ME=ZA=+—1 EFHERER
- ARSI IREA R A A
BIEX B TES - QREEHRAEIED
WA AR AT AR 2 T BN 2 18

wm HFBIERAEETeRE [BRE] —

& o

Mi3E

1. RZZE—NF=A=1+—8H ' AREIBEFET
L3RS AE 815 3,567,380,426 A% -

2. RZTE—mMF=A=+—H 167,791,571

Bk fn B E AR ST A ([BRE]) UEAAF
BB 2,011,741, 827 BB HHAR R H
BEERARGRER (BE) ARAR ([
SREME (&E))) 5% - ™M 115,770,000 i
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Substantial Shareholder’s Interests under SFO

As at 31 March 2014, the substantial shareholder (other than
Directors or chief executive of the Company) who had interests or
short positions in the shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3
of Part XV of the SFO, or which was recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO was as
follows:

FERRBREESFRBERD 2w

R-ZE—MF=A=1+—8  RARARDTES
BAEB AR EERE XV B 2 R E 30 BIEX
BRAD BB HNAR AR RS RS 1§
FEIBRBETZELMANESSIARZEER
B (ARBESHHEITERABRIN 10T -

Approximate

Long position/ Number of percentage of

Name of shareholder short position Capacity shares held shareholding

RRER BE/ KA 227) BFEROHE REBNT DL

(Note 1)

(Fiz1)

Goldin Group (Investment) (Note 2) Long position Beneficial owner 2,011,741,427 56.39%

SIREE (RE)(HiZ2) 1A ESEEA 2,011,741,427 56.39%
Notes: ks

1y As at 31 March 2014, the total number of ordinary shares of the
Company in issue was 3,567,380,426 shares.

2. As at 31 March 2014, Goldin Group (Investment) was 100% owned
by Goldin Real Estate Financial, which in turn was 100% owned by
Mr. Pan.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2014, the Company has
not been notified by any persons (other than Directors or chief
executive of the Company) who had interests or short positions in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.
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Share Options

The share option scheme of the Company adopted on 27 August
2002 (the "2002 Share Option Scheme”) was terminated by
the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) at the
Company’s annual general meeting held on 23 August 2012 (the
“2012 AGM") before its expiration on 26 August 2012. At the
2012 AGM, the Shareholders have approved the adoption of a new
share option scheme of the Company (the “2012 Share Option
Scheme”) in substantially similar terms and conditions as those of
the 2002 Share Option Scheme.

A summary of those terms applicable to the outstanding Share
Options under the 2002 Share Option Scheme has been disclosed
in the Company’s 2012 Annual Report, while a summary of the
principal terms of the 2012 Share Option Scheme is set out below:

The 2012 Share Option Scheme is designed to (a) provide incentives
or rewards to the grantees for their contribution to the Group and
motivate them to strive for future development and expansion of the
Group; (b) strengthen the relationship between the Group and its
employees and executives; and (c) enable the Group to recruit and
retain high-calibre employees and attract human resources that are
valuable to the Group and any invested entity. On 28 March 2014,
a total of 52,900,000 Share Options were granted under the 2012
Share Option Scheme.

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all Share Options to be granted under the 2012 Share Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of the Company shall
not in aggregate exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as at the date
of the adoption of the 2012 Share Option Scheme provided that
the Company may seek approval from the Shareholders to refresh
such limit. Moreover, the maximum number of Shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding Share Options granted and
yet to be exercised under the 2012 Share Option Scheme and any
other share option scheme(s) of the Company shall not exceed 30%
of the Shares in issue from time to time. The maximum entitlement
of each participant under the 2012 Share Option Scheme in any
12-month period is 1% of the Shares in issue from time to time. Any
further grant of Share Options in excess of this 1% limit must be
separately approved by the Shareholders in general meeting with the
grantees and his/her associates abstaining from voting.
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Share Options (Continued)

The period during which a Share Option may be exercised will be
determined by the Board at its absolute discretion, save that no
Share Option may be exercised more than 10 years from the date on
which the Share Option is granted. The minimum period for which a
Share Option must be held before it can be exercised is determined
by the Board upon the grant of a Share Option. Each grantee is
required to pay HK$1 as a consideration for the grant of Share
Options.

The subscription price of the Share Options under the 2012 Share
Option Scheme shall not be less than whichever is the highest of
(a) the closing price of the Shares on the Stock Exchange on the
date of grant of Share Options; and (b) the average of the closing
prices of the Shares on the Stock Exchange for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of grant of Share Options.

The 2012 Share Option Scheme will expire on 22 August 2022.
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Share Options (Continued)

The following tables disclose details of the Company’s share options
movements during the Year:

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EHFHE

B (&)

TREBBEAFEAARANBRIEZSFHE

- —_— R — a
(a) 2002 Share Option Scheme (a) —EZE_FiERETE
(i) Directors (i) =E=
Number of share options
BREHE
Reclassified
from
Exercise “Directors” to Granted Exercised Lapsed
Name of price per Exercisable Outstanding “Other during during during  Outstanding
Director Date of grant share period at1.4.2013 participants” the Year the Year the Year  at31.3.2014
RZ%-Z%F fEE) R-g-mF
mA-B  ENARE  MAEER RAEER  MAEER ZA=t-R
E3ps REEH SRIRE %8 HAfTE  [HftgRE] BRI 5014 B4R HATE
HKS (Note 2)
AT (Hit2)
(Note 1)
(Wit1)
Mr. Zhou Xiaojun 3.8.2009 327 38201010 2.8.2019 302,727 - - - - 302,727
ABERE 382010%2.82019
3.8.2009 321 3.82011102.8.2019 302,727 - - - - 302,727
3820112282019
3.8.2009 327 38201210 2.8.2019 403,636 5 S e - 403,636
3820122282019
273.2012 2.69 279.20121026.3.2022 333333 - - - - 333333
27.9.2012%26.3.2022
273.2012 2.69 27.12.2013 10 26.3.2022 333333 - - - - 333333
21.12.2013£263.2022
2732012 2.69 273.2015026.3.2022 333334 = = = =, 333334
27.3.2015%26.3.2022
2,009,090 - - - - 2,009,090
Mr. Ting Kwang Yuan, Edmond ~ 3.8.2009 327 3.8.2011102.8.2019 605,454 - - - - 605,454
Btk 3820112282019
3.8.2009 327 3.82012102.8.2019 807,272 - - - - 807,272
382012282019
2732012 2.69 27.9.20121026.3.2022 333333 - = - = 333333
279.2012£263.2022
2732012 2.69 2712201310 26.3.2022 333333 - - - - 333333
21.12.2013%263.2022
273.2012 2.69 27.3.20151026.3.2022 333334 - - - - 333334
21.3.2015%26.3.2022
2,412,726 - - - - 2,412,726

1R A EE P I A ] R — O
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Share Options (Continued) BRE (&)
(a) 2002 Share Option Scheme (Continued) (a) —SZT_FEREE (&)
(i) Directors (Continued) (i) =E= (&)

Number of share options
BRERA

Redlassified
from
Exercise "Directors” to Granted Exercised Lapsed
Name of price per Exercisable Outstanding "Other during during during  Outstanding
Director Date of grant share period at14.2013  participants” the Year the Year the Year  at31.3.2014
RZB-Z§ mIEE] RZF-MF
mA-B  EHNRE  WMREER WAFER RAEER  ZA=t-A
f £4:3 REAH BRITRE 5 AR [HibgRE] BRY Bfif BAY HATE
HK$ (Note 2)
AR (Hit2)
(Note 1)
(Wit1)
Mr. Li Huamao 3.8.2009 327 3.82010t02.8.2019 302,727 = = = = 302,727
FERE 3820102282019
3.8.2009 32 38.2011102.8.2019 302,727 - - - - 302,727
382011%282019
3.8.2009 327 382012t028.2019 403,636 - - - - 403,636
382012282019
2732012 2.69 27.9.2012 10 26.3.2022 333333 = £ S = 333333
279.2012£263.2022
2732012 269 27.12.2013t0 26.3.2022 33333 - - - - 333333
27.12.2013£263.2022
2732012 2.69 273201510 26.3.2022 333334 - - - - 333334
21.3.2015%26.3.2022
2,009,090 - - - - 2,009,090
Mr. Wong Hau Yan, Helvin 3.8.2009 32 38.2010t02.8.2019 216,127 = & (216,127) - -
BZR5k 3820102282019
38.2009 32 38.2011102.8.2019 363,272 - - (363.272) - -
3820112282019
3.8.2009 32 3820120282019 484,363 - - (87,268) - 397,095
382012282019
2732012 2.69 27.9.2012 10 26.3.2022 33333 = 5 (333333) - -
21.9.2012%26.3.2022
2732012 2.69 27.12.2013 10 26.3.2022 333333 - - - - 333333
21.12.2013£263.2022
2732012 2.69 273201510 26.3.2022 333334 - - - - 333334
21.3.2015%26.3.2022
2,063,762 - - (1,000,000 - 1,063,762
Mr. Lee Chi Chung, Harvey 2732012 2.69 27.9.2012 10 26.3.2022 666,666 (666,666) - - - -
(Note 2) 27.9.2012%26.3.2022
FRB%E (Hi2) 2732012 2.69 27.12.2013 t0 26.3.2022 666,666 (666,666) - - = =
21.12.2013£26.3.2022
2132012 2.69 273201510 26.3.2022 666,668 (666,668) - - - -
21.3.2015%26.3.2022

2,000,000 (2,000,000) g 4 = -

10,494,668 (2,000,000) - (1,000,000) = 7,494,668

GOLDIN PROPERTIES HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2014



Share Options (Continued)

Bre ()

DIRECTORS' REPORT
B

(a) 2002 Share Option Scheme (Continued) (a) —EZ_FHEREE (8)
(ii) Employees (other than Directors) (i) 1EE (E=SBRHM)
Number of share options
BREHA
Exercise Granted Exercised Lapsed
price Outstanding during during during Outstanding
Date of grant pershare  Exercisable period at 1.4.2013 the Year the Year the Year at31.3.2014
R-B-ZF R-Z-OF
mA—H REFER  REAFER  REAFER ZA=+-H
B8 BROHEE  TEH i RATE (258 217 2A¥ e RATE
HKS
BT
(Note 1)
(Bizt1)
5.2.2004 1.19 5.2.2005t04.2.2014 678,745 S (50,454) (628,291) =
5.2.2005%4.2.2014
20.4.2004 1.41 20.4.2004 to0 19.4.2014 572,945 - - - 572,945
20.4.2004 £19.4.2014
28.9.2005 1.31 28.9.2005 t0 27.9.2015 1,968 - - - 1,968
28.9.2005 % 27.9.2015
27.11.2007 6.50 27.11.2007 t0 26.11.2017 8,072,727 % 5 = 8,072,727
27.11.2007 £26.11.2017
3.8.2009 3.27 3.8.2010t0 2.8.2019 1,220,350 - (50,000 (45,409) 1,124,941
3.8.2010%2.8.2019
3.8.2009 327 3.8.2011t02.8.2019 1,937,450 - - (45,409) 1,892,041
3.8.2011£2.8.2019
3.8.2009 327 3.8.2012t02.8.2019 2,597,362 = = (62,499) 2,534,863
3.8.2012%2.8.2019
21.4.2010 (Note 3) 3.14 21.4.2011 t0 20.4.2020 1,289,173 - (60,545) (18,163) 1,210,465
(Hit3) 21.4.2011%20.4.2020
21.4.2010 (Note 3) 3.14 21.4.2012 t0 20.4.2020 1,313,821 - (60,545) (18,163) 1,235,043
(Frit3) 21.4.2012%20.4.2020
21.4.2010 (Note 3) 3.14 21.4.2013 t0 20.4.2020 1,889,043 = (76,694) (125,129 1,687,220
(Hit3) 21.4.2013%20.4.2020
10.8.2010 (Note 3) 3.72 10.8.2011 t0 9.8.2020 366,298 - - - 366,298
(Hit3) 10.8.2011%9.8.2020
10.8.2010 (Note 3) 3.72 10.8.2012 10 9.8.2020 366,298 - - - 366,298
(Frit3) 10.8.2012%9.8.2020
10.8.2010 (Note 3) 3.72 10.8.2013 t0 9.8.2020 500,510 = = (12,110 488,400
(Hi3) 10.8.2013%9.8.2020
27.3.2012 2.69 27.9.2012 t0 26.3.2022 7,126,644 - - (683,330) 7,043,314
27.9.2012%26.3.2022
27.3.2012 2.69 27.12.2013 t0 26.3.2022 7,126,644 - - (683,330) 7,043,314
27.12.2013%26.3.2022
27.3.2012 2.69 27.3.2015 t0 26.3.2022 7,726,712 = = (683,340) 7,043,372
27.3.2015 % 26.3.2022
43,986,690 S (298,238)  (3,005,173) 40,683,279
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Share Options (Continued)

Bre ()

(a) 2002 Share Option Scheme (Continued) (a) —SZT_FEREE (&)
(iii) Other participants (iii) HapzmEE
Number of share options
BRESE
Reclassified
from
Exercise “Directors” Granted Exercised Lapsed
price Outstanding to “Other during during during  Outstanding
Date of grant per share Exercisable period at1.4.2013  participants” the Year the Year the Year at31.3.2014
R-B-= HIES] R-2-mEF
mA-A BN RE REFER REFER REFER =ZA=t+-H
REBH BRITRE Eitid HALTE [Eth2 8% | 2R [2%5:d BEXK AT
HK$ (Note 2)
B (Hrit2)
(Note 1)
(Faz1)
5.2.2004 1.19 5.2.2005 t0 4.2.2014 2,682,037 - - - (2,682,037) -
5.2.2005%4.2.2014
20.4.2004 1.41 20.4.2004 to 19.4.2014 371,037 - - - - 371,037
20.4.2004£19.4.2014
3.8.2009 3.27 3.8.2010102.8.2019 2,123,305 - - - - 2,123,305
3.82010%2.8.2019
3.8.2009 327 3.8.2011102.8.2019 2,346,132 - - - - 2,346,132
3.82011%2.8.2019
3.8.2009 3.27 3.8.2012 10 2.8.2019 3,128,182 - - - - 3,128,182
3.8.2012%2.8.2019
21.4.2010 3.14 21.4.2011 t0 20.4.2020 3,410,665 - - - (1,438) 3,409,227
2142011 £20.4.2020
21.4.2010 3.14 21.4.2012 t0 20.4.2020 3,575,178 — = - - 3,575,178
21.4.2012%20.4.2020
21.4.2010 3.14 21.4.2013 t0 20.4.2020 4,766,984 - - - - 4,766,984
21.4.2013£20.4.2020
10.8.2010 372 10.8.2011 t0 9.8.2020 605,454 - - - - 605,454
10.8.2011 £9.8.2020
10.8.2010 372 10.8.2012 t0 9.8.2020 605,454 = = - - 605,454
10.8.2012%9.8.2020
10.8.2010 3%2, 10.8.2013 t0 9.8.2020 807,273 - - - - 807,273
10.8.2013%9.8.2020
27.3.2012 2.69 27.9.2012 t0 26.3.2022 10,149,989 666,666 - - (66,666) 10,749,989
27.9.2012526.3.2022
27.3.2012 2.69 27.12.2013 10 26.3.2022 10,149,989 666,666 = - (66,666) 10,749,989
27.12.2013%26.3.2022
27.3.2012 2.69 27.3.2015 t0 26.3.2022 10,150,022 666,668 - - (66,668) 10,750,022
27.3.2015£26.3.2022
54,871,701 2,000,000 - - (2,883,475) 53,988,226
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Share O

ptions (Continued)

(a) 2002 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Notes:

The exercise prices and the number of share options granted
on 5 February 2004, 20 April 2004, 28 September 2005,
27 November 2007, 3 August 2009, 21 April 2010 and 10
August 2010 under the 2002 Share Option Scheme had been
adjusted upon the rights issue, as announced by the Company
on 16 February 2012, becoming unconditional on 20 March
2012. Details of which were disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 23 March 2012.

Mr. Lee Chi Chung, Harvey resigned as executive Director on
28 February 2014. Therefore, share options held by Mr. Lee
Chi Chung, Harvey were re-classified from the category of
“Directors” to “Other participants” on the same date.

Share options granted on 21 April 2010 and 10 August 2010
were conditionally granted to the employees (other than
Directors) of the Company, subject to the achievement of the
performance targets as determined by the Board.
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EHEHS

Share Options (Continued)

Bre ()

- — == - a
(b) 2012 Share Option Scheme (b) —E——FERETS
(i) Directors (i) E=
Number of share options
BREHE
Exercise Granted Exercised Lapsed
price per Exercisable Outstanding during during during  Outstanding
Name of Director Date of grant share period at 1.4.2013 the Year the Year the Year  at31.3.2014
RZB-=% RZZ-IF
mA-RA REEER REEER REFER =A=t-H
EEp REAH BRITRE TR HRTE [2%:4: [2X3t:d BANM HRTE
HK$
BT
Mr. Zhou Xiaojun 28.3.2014 335 28.3.201510 27.3.2024 - 600,000 - - 600,000
FRERE 283.2015%227.3.2024
2832014 335 28.3.2016 10 27.3.2024 - 600,000 - - 600,000
28.3.2016%£27.3.2024
2832014 335 28.3.2017 10 27.3.2024 - 800,000 - - 800,000
28.3.2017%27.3.2024
- 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000
Mr. Ting Kwang Yuan, Edmond ~ 28.3.2014 3.35 28.3.201510 27.3.2024 - 600,000 - - 600,000
TEREE 28.3.2015%27.3.2024
2832014 335 28.3.2016 t0 27.3.2024 - 600,000 - - 600,000
28.3.2016%27.3.2024
2832014 335 28.3.2017 t0 27.3.2024 - 800,000 - - 800,000
28.3.2017%27.3.2024
- 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000
Mr. Li Huamao 2832014 335 28.3.2015 t0 27.3.2024 - 600,000 - - 600,000
FEREE 283.2015%227.3.2024
2832014 335 28.3.2016 t0 27.3.2024 - 600,000 - - 600,000
28.3.2016%£27.3.2024
2832014 335 28.3.2017 t0 27.3.2024 - 800,000 - - 800,000
28.3.2017£27.3.2024
- 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000
Mr. Wong Hau Yan, Helvin 2832014 335 28.3.2015 t0 27.3.2024 - 600,000 - - 600,000
EZR%4E 28.3.2015%27.3.2024
2832014 3.35 28.3.2016 t0 27.3.2024 - 600,000 - - 600,000
28.3.2016%£27.3.2024
2832014 335 28.3.2017 t0 27.3.2024 - 800,000 - - 800,000
28.3.2017%£27.3.2024
- 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000
Ms. Chan Sau Yin, Anita Teresa ~~ 28.3.2014 3.35 28.3.2015 t0 27.3.2024 - 300,000 - - 300,000
RABLT 28.3.2015%27.3.2024
2832014 335 28.3.2016 t0 27.3.2024 - 300,000 - - 300,000
28.3.2016%£27.3.2024
2832014 3.35 28.3.2017 t0 27.3.2024 - 400,000 - - 400,000
28.3.2017£27.3.2024
- 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000
- 9,000,000 - - 9,000,000
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Share Options (Continued)

(iii)

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
R

Bre ()

(b) 2012 Share Option Scheme: (Continued) (b) —E——FHEREE : (&)
(ii) Employees (other than Directors) (i) 1EE (E=SBRHM)
Number of share options
BREHA
Exercise Granted Exercised Lapsed
price Outstanding during during during Outstanding
Date of grant pershare  Exercisable period at 1.4.2013 the Year the Year the Year at31.3.2014
R-B-ZF R-Z-OF
mA—H REFER  REAFER  REAFER ZA=+-H
B8 BROHEE  TEH i RATE (258 217 2A¥ e RATE
HKS
BT
28.3.2014 335 28.3.201510 27.3.2024 - 8,520,000 - - 8,520,000
28.3.2015%27.3.2024
28.3.2014 3.35 28.3.2016 to 27.3.2024 - 8,520,000 = = 8,520,000
28.3.2016 £27.3.2024
28.3.2014 335 28.3.2017 t0 27.3.2024 - 11,360,000 - - 11,360,000
28.3.2017%27.3.2024
- 28,400,000 - - 28,400,000
Other participants (i) HthzmEE
Number of share options
BREHA
Exercise Granted Exercised Lapsed
price Outstanding during during during Outstanding
Date of grant pershare  Exercisable period at 1.4.2013 the Year the Year the Year at31.3.2014
R-B-ZF R-Z-IF
mA—H REFER  REFER  REAFER ZA=+-H
B8 BROHEE  TEH e RATHE (28] 217 24K i RATHRE
HKS
B
28.3.2014 335 28.3.2015 10 27.3.2024 = 4,650,000 = = 4,650,000
28.3.2015%27.3.2024
28.3.2014 335 28.3.2016 10 27.3.2024 - 4,650,000 = = 4,650,000
28.3.2016 £27.3.2024
28.3.2014 335 28.3.2017 t0 27.3.2024 - 6,200,000 - - 6,200,000
28.3.2017%27.3.2024
- 15,500,000 - - 15,500,000
Note: PH&E

Share Options granted on 28 March 2014 were conditionally
granted to all eligible grantees of the Company (the
“Grantees”) subject to the satisfactory performance/

contribution of the Grantees as determined by the Board.
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BIFRER TARBRARERARA ([
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Share Options (Continued)

The vesting period of the share options of the Company is from the
date of grant until the commencement of the exercisable period.

The closing price of the Company’s shares immediately before 28
March 2014, the date on which the share options were granted was
HK$3.34.

The weighted average closing price of the Company’s shares
immediately before the date on which the share options were
exercised was HK$4.30 per share.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Directors’ and Chief
Executive’s Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares” and “Share
Options” above, at no time during the Year was the Company,
any of its subsidiaries or its holding companies a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts of Significance

During the Year, the Group had transactions with related companies
in which a Director has beneficial interests, details of which are set
out in Note 45 to the consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, no contract of significance to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which any of
the Directors had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the Year.

Directors’ Interests in Competing Business

As at 31 March 2014, none of the Directors are considered to be in
businesses which compete or are likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the businesses of the Group.

Distributable Reserves of the Company

Details of distributable reserves of the Company are set out in Note
39 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Emolument Policy

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by
the remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration
Committee”) on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the Remuneration
Committee, having regard to the Group’s operating results,
individual performance and prevailing market conditions.

Major Customers and Suppliers

For the Year, the aggregate amount of revenue attributable to the
Group's five largest customers represented approximately 95.74% of
the Group’s revenue for the Year. The aggregate amount of revenue
for the Year attributable to the Group’s largest customer for the Year
was 34.34%.

For the Year, the aggregate amount of construction costs attributable
to the Group’s five largest suppliers represented approximately
93.73% of the Group’s total construction costs for the Year. The
aggregate amount of construction costs for the Year attributable to
the Group’s largest supplier for the Year was 54.17%.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders, which
to the knowledge of the Directors, owns more than 5% of the
Company's shareholding, has interests in these customers and
suppliers during the Year.
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Continuing Connected Transactions

On 18 May 2012, the Company and Goldin Financial Holdings
Limited (“GFHL") entered into a framework agreement (the
“Framework Agreement”) which sets out the principal framework
upon which the GFHL and its subsidiaries (the “GFHL Group”) will
sell and the Group will purchase the wine products (including all
bottles of wines, alcoholic liquors, spirits and/or other liquors fit and
intended for consumption as beverage to be transacted between the
GFHL Group and the Group under the Framework Agreement) (the
“"Wine Products”) for a term commencing from 18 May 2012 and
ending on 31 March 2015.

The annual caps of the Company for the period from 18 May 2012
to 31 March 2013 and the two financial years ending 31 March
2014 and 31 March 2015 are HK$9.58 million, HK$11 million and
HK$11 million respectively.

During the Year, GFHL Group sold and the Group purchased the
Wine Products at the amount of approximately HK$6,718,000.
Details of which is set out in Note 45 to the consolidated financial
statements.

As Mr. Pan (personally and through his wholly-owned companies)
was beneficially interested in approximately 64.21% and 70.26%
of each of the issued share capital of the Company and GFHL
respectively as at 18 May 2012, the Group is an associate of a
connected person of GFHL and the GFHL Group is also an associate
of a connected person of the Company. As such, the Company and
GFHL are connected persons of each other under the Listing Rules.
Accordingly, the respective sales and purchases of the Wine Products
by the GFHL Group and the Group constitute continuing connected
transactions for the Company under the Listing Rules.

Details of the above continuing connected transactions were
disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 18 May 2012.
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Continuing Connected Transactions (Continued)

Pursuant to rule 14A.37 of the Listing Rules, the continuing
connected transactions mentioned above have been reviewed by the
INEDs who have confirmed that the transactions have been entered
into:

1. inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Company;

2. either on normal commercial terms or, if there are not
sufficient comparable transactions to judge whether they are
on normal commercial terms, on terms no less favourable to
the Company than terms available to or from (as appropriate)
independent third parties; and

3. in accordance with the relevant agreement governing the
transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the aforesaid
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, and has issued its unqualified letter containing
its findings and conclusions in respect of the aforesaid continuing
connected transactions in accordance with rule 14A.38 of the
Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange.

Related Party Transactions

Details of the related party transactions undertaken by the Group
in the normal course of business are set out in Note 45 to the
consolidated financial statements. Those related party transactions
which constituted connected transaction or continuing connected
transactions under the Listing Rules have complied with Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.
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Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s
Listed Securities

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained a sufficient public float as required under the Listing
Rules throughout the Year and up to the date of this report.

Management Contract

No contract for management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of any business of the Company was entered into or
existed during the Year.

Corporate Governance

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices. Information on the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Company is set out in the
“Corporate Governance Report” of this annual report.

Audit Committee

The audited consolidated financial statements for the Year have been
reviewed by the Audit Committee. Information on the work of the
Audit Committee and its composition are set out in the “Corporate
Governance Report” of this annual report.

Auditor

The consolidated financial statements for the Year have been audited
by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, who will retire at the conclusion of the
2014 AGM. A resolution for the re-appointment of Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company will be proposed at the 2014
AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Pan Sutong
Chairman
Hong Kong, 26 June 2014
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INDEPENDENT

AUDITOR'S REPORT

Deloitte.
9

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF GOLDIN PROPERTIES HOLDINGS
LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Goldin
Properties Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 62 to
190, which comprise the Group’s consolidated and the Company’s
statements of financial position as at 31 March 2014, and the
Group's consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
predecessor Companies Ordinance, Cap. 32, and for such internal
controls as the Directors determine are necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B 7 A% B o8

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 141 of the
predecessor Companies Ordinance, Cap. 32, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report. We conducted
our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal controls relevant to the Group’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal controls. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

GOLDIN PROPERTIES HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2014

BB 2 BAE

AZHE 2 EERRBEA B EZ TIEZER
HREFAVBRRIELER - XRIEE R EMA
BEDIZE 141 RIZR B BEBIRIRE  FRULIASN - K
REEN R EBIEEME B - ARBEN T ERARE
ZAR > BEAEMALTRRSAEETMERE - K
REMERBETESHMASRM 2 BEEEL
EITEZ - RFERIB KA E T BIERE
WA B RITE - A IBETE Z S0 A MR
REBTNFREMEAFRRAL -

BEF RITIRFIAERE R e B mEmE s
BREBENZERRE - IET 2 EFEURIZ
2 HE - BREEANRFFRERMERERS
MERERFEEASEREUL Z A - EHEZER
REF - ZBEEZEE BERERREMFLIEEATR
BRZ #R B TS IRR AR 2 MERIES] - URFHEE 2
BIZAER  BXERYE BEREANEES 2 MEEHE
RER -BRNTERIEBEEEMRASTBERZ
BEMRAER At 2 AR - URFIERS
MsmE 2 EEIHmA RN

AIZBENRIE - ARBEIT RS 2 BRREENT
R NUEE AL 2 BALE IR AR -



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as
at 31 March 2014 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
predecessor Companies Ordinance, Cap. 32.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

26 June 2014
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR
LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

S 16 g B Lt 2 i WA i e R

For the year ended 31 March 2014
HE-Z—NF=A=1+—HILFE

2014 2013
—Z—MF —T—=F
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
BaE FET FAET
Revenue e 7 2,793,413 128,976
Cost of sales SHER A (1,406,995) (70,824)
Gross profit EF 1,386,418 58,152
Other income = ON 9 17,254 15,703
Marketing costs MZHEEAR (131,939) (69,216)
Hotel and polo club other operating BE R B RE g ER
expenses (270,989) (236,926)
Administrative expenses THEAR (320,226) (309,142)
Foreign exchange gain (losses), net INEWES (E518) F58 16,637 (11,255)
Finance costs B ER 11 (24,689) (25,197)
Increase in fair value of investment BB 2 A FEEM
properties 19 708,312 855,332
Gains on derivatives PTET A Was 2 20,549 4,350
Profit before tax BREE RT3 A 13 1,401,327 281,801
Income tax expense 8RB 14 (545,739) (213,833)
Profit for the year attributable NG NEIEFERT
to owners of the Company 855,588 67,968
Other comprehensive Hitt2m (Bk) s
(expense) income
Item that may be reclassified EZnpe B 2 R o HE -
subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange difference arising MEIBINESFEEE N 250
on translation (79,972) 203,056
Other comprehensive (expense) income AFEEMEHE (%) Waa
for the year (79,972) 203,056
Total comprehensive income RNRRIEE NEIEFEE
for the year attributable T HE AR
to owners of the Company 775,616 271,024
Earnings per share BREF 16
— basic — BEX 23.99 HK cents 1.91 HK cents
23.99 El 1.91 %4
— diluted — #E 22.86 HK cents 1.81 HK cents

22.86 /&1l

1.81 781

GOLDIN PROPERTIES HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2014



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT

OF FINANCIAL POSITION

% S B 5IR Dl e e

At 31 March 2014
R-F-—MFE=A=+—H

2014 2013
—E—mF =
NOTES HK$'000 HK$’000
PEE FHERT FHT
Non-current assets FEMBNE EE
Property, plant and equipment M - BB K& 17 2,479,908 2,900,937
Ponies j=5jus 18 40,938 50,864
Investment properties LAY 19 14,823,132 10,690,129
Other assets HiERE 20 357,632 358,091
Prepaid lease payments TERTHEERIE 21 245,151 251,861
Intangible assets m AE 22 90 90
Deposits paid for acquisition of BEWE  WEMR
property, plant and equipment ZBEfRE 23 11,289 7,223
17,958,140 14,259,195
Current assets MENEE
Inventories "E 24 75,582 68,747
Properties for sale HEME 26 8,038,911 7,322,431
Prepaid lease payments TETHERIE 21 6,388 6,396
Trade and other receivables, JFEE L B R e L A PR MR RO
prepayments and deposits T RIERIES 27 481,334 268,343
Amount due from a related company M —FEIRIE R RIFUA 28 - 864
Cash and cash equivalents ReMREEEY 30 1,453,579 1,341,536
10,055,794 9,008,317
Current liabilities mEAE
Trade and other payables JRE1F R R R HL A FE A5 SR IE 31 4,971,872 3,785,544
Amounts due to related companies e BRE A RIRIE 32 44,978 12,882
Tax payable FESFIIA 396,949 29,917
Bank borrowing SRITIEF 33 56,205 42,208
Obligations under finance leases BEMSES
— amount due within one year - —FRRIERK 34 80 72
Convertible bonds (including AR ES (’FE%
conversion option derivatives) RIRHESTE T A) 35 = 226,153
5,470,084 4,096,776
Net current assets MEEEFE 4,585,710 4,911,541
Total assets less current liabilities BERERRDERE 22,543,850 19,170,736

o SR E PR AT PR A T R — AR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

B BB DL H R

At 31 March 2014
R-F-—MFE=A=1+—H

2014 2013
—E-IF ZE—=F
NOTES HK$’'000 HK$'000
k3 FHERT FHTT

Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Bank borrowing SRITIEIK 33 238,871 295,454

Obligations under finance leases BEREEY

— amount due after one year - — &R EARIE 34 250 330
Loan from a shareholder R E 36 - 2,568,966
Loan from a related company HEARIER 36 5,019,123 -
Deferred tax liabilities RERIEE & 37 1,320,485 1,144,872
6,578,729 4,009,622
15,965,121 15,161,114

Capital and reserves RS R G
Share capital AR 38 10,923,728 178,304
Reserves it 39 5,041,393 14,982,810
Total equity g 15,965,121 15,161,114

The consolidated financial statements on pages 62 to 190 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 26
June 2014 and are signed on its behalf by:

Pan Sutong
B
DIRECTOR
BFE
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STATEMENT OF

FINANCIAL POSITION

S 551 O # R

At 31 March 2014

e = e e s ]
2014 2013
—F-mF S e
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
Mo 5E FET FAET
Non-current assets IERBEE
Property, plant and equipment mE - B RRE %7 567 737
Intangible assets B EE 22 90 90
Investments in subsidiaries WEBRARIERE 25 2,579,458 2,366,346
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUR BT N B FIA 29 14,057,426 10,875,489
16,637,541 13,242,662
Current assets MENEE
Other receivables, prepayments H A EYGRIE - FERTFRIR
and deposits Rige 36 66
Cash and cash equivalents Re MRS EEY 30 4,777 1,416
4,813 1,482
Current liabilities mEAE
Other payables E b e RIE 31 2,088 3,485
Amounts due to related companies FETRRE QT FIAR 32 35,940 11,019
Convertible bonds (including AR ES (B1E
conversion option derivatives) HIGHRRESTAE T A) 35 = 226,153
Amounts due to subsidiaries RN PNGIE 2 29 140,617 140,617
Tax payable FESFIIA 1,996 1,939
180,641 383,213
Net current liabilities mEBEFE (175,828) (381,731)
Total assets less current liabilities BEREBERRIDEE 16,461,713 12,860,931
Non-current liabilities 3E§ﬁ§b§1§
Loan from a shareholder IR E K ‘ 36 = 1,157,307
Loan from a related company BEARIER 36 5,019,123 -
5,019,123 1, 15980/
11,442,590 11,703,624
Capital and reserves MR K &
Share capital &N 38 10,923,728 178,304
Reserves i 39 518,862 11,525,320
Total equity W BEE 11,442,590 11,703,624
Pan Sutong Zhou Xiaojun
BB ARE
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
2 EF

1R A EE P I A ] R — O
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES
IN EQUITY
oSy X Lk &

For the year ended 31 March 2014
HE-Z—NF=A=1+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KAREEAEL
Share-based Equity Capital
Share Share compensation Translation participant redemption  Retained
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total
R e Bx
BE  ROEE  HeRE  AERE SEARE  BERE KRR &3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThL TAL T AL AL T T AT
(note 39)
(Fi3£39)
At 1 April 2012 RZE-Z#MmA-A 178,073 10,721,416 115,784 806,352 7,692 173 2978158 14,807,648
Profit for the year RERRH = = = L = S 67,968 67,968
Exchange difference arising TR
on translation FEEERER S = = 203,056 S S = 203,056
Total comprehensive income AR REUEEE
for the year - - - 203,056 - - 67,968 271,024
Recognition of equity-settled  TERBMRAEE RARIA
share-based payments BER AR = — 67,767 - S S S 67767
Exercise of share options rieREE 124 8,010 (2,892) = = S S 5,242
Lapse of share options ERELH = S (8,095) = = - 8,095 -
Conversion of convertible bonds S ATk E 107 9,326 S S 1,064 = (1,064) 9,433
Redemption of convertible bonds B AT E = L = 3 7,186 S (7,186) =
At 31 March 2013 RZB-=5=A=1-H 178304 10,738,752 172,564 1,009,408 15,942 173 3045971 15,161,114
Profit for the year REREH o = e 5 = = 855,588 855,588
Exchange difference arising mEBNER
on translation FEEERZS g = - (79.972) - - - (79.972)
Total comprehensive (expense) ~ AEE2HE (F%)
income for the year Gas - A - (79.972) - - 855588 775,616
Recognition of equity-settled BB E ARG
share-based payments BRI = s 24,470 d = = g 24,470
Exercise of share options {7l iR E 65 6,434 (2,578) 3 L = e 3921
Lapse of share options ﬂ%ﬁﬁféﬂ( = E (2,895) 2 = - 2,895 -
Transfer upon abolition of BEFATRAER
par value under the new RAEERER
Companies Ordinance (note) (&) 10,745,359 (10,745,186) = C = (173) = S
At 31 March 2014 RZE-ME=A=1+-A 10,923,728 - 191,561 929,436 15,942 - 3,904,454 15,965,121

Note: The Company has no authorised share capital and its shares
have no par value since the commencement date of the
new Companies Ordinance (i.e., 3 March 2014). As of 3
March 2014, share premium and capital redemption reserve
amounted to approximately HK$10,745,186,000 and
HK$173,000, respectively were transferred to share capital
upon abolition of par value under the new Companies

Ordinance.
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., CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT

OF CASH FLOWS
A Bl SRR

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BHE-_Z—NF=A=1+—HILFE

2014 2013
—E-OF —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FAET
Operating activities RS
Profit before tax BREERT A 1,401,327 281,801
Adjustments for: TEETHIREE
Increase in fair value of investment properties "EME L AFEEMN (708,312) (855,332)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment M - BRERERETE 122,509 120,226
Depreciation of ponies BrHmeE 9,049 9,279
Finance costs 975 & 24,689 25,197
Gains on derivatives PTET Az Wz (20,549) (4,350)
Interest income on bank deposits IRITERZFBUWA (4,588) (3,103)
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, plant HEYE - BEREE
and equipment ZEE () 26 (117)
Ponies written off 5 UT 38 815 1,314
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments TR E IR 5 6,388 6,396
Share-based payments expenses ARR D RETET R B A 24,470 67,767
Unrealised exchange difference REIREH E5E (5,454) (2,706)
Operating cash flows before Rt EEEEHA
movements in working capital ZEEReRE 850,370 (353,628)
(Increase) decrease in inventories FE (3Egm) md (767) 7,804
Increase in properties for sale SHE VI ZEIZ N (2,043,894) (1,261,721)
Increase in trade and other receivables, JFEURBR SR R oAb W RTR
prepayments and deposits FERERIE K i 1N (167,802) (58,592)
Decrease (increase) in amount due ek —EIREE A FIFRIE
from a related company A (3g0n) 864 (864)
Increase in trade and other payables AT BR S5 e EL At JRE A<F FRIE I N 990,806 274,878
Decrease in amounts due to related companies R RRE N R FIRER L (1,383) £
Cash used in operation LETARE (371,806) (1,392,123)
Tax paid BEAHRIA (1,666) 24
Net cash used in operating activities L TREFTAIR S F 5 (373,472) (1,392,123)
Investing activities RERE
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment BEVE  BELRE (20,562) (24,508)
Acquisition of ponies BESIT = (261)
Deposits paid for acquisition of HBEVE  BEKREE
property, plant and equipment ZBftiEE (6,198) (2,219)
Construction costs paid in respect of RERREYHEEH
investment properties under construction JES AN (1,378,762) (1,510,287)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME  BEK
plant and equipment RAEPTSIE - 235
Interest received on bank deposits RITFERZERFIE 4,588 3,103
Net cash used in investing activities B EEF AR E5E (1,400,934) (1,533,937)

SR E R A RA T R PO
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HABemEmg

For the year ended 31 March 2014
HE-Z—NF=A=1+—HILLFE

2014 2013
—Z—MF —E—=F
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Financing activities MEED
Interest and finance charges paid BENFE NI EER (39,409) (104,812)
Repayments of obligations under finance leases ~ {B&FEHEER (72) (153)
New bank loan raised FIBIRITE R = 337,662
Repayment of bank loans BEBRITER (42,154) -
Redemption of convertible bonds MBI AR ES (226,736) (58,078)
Proceeds from issue of shares upon EI TR 1 TAR (D
exercise of share options FTiS50A 3,921 5,242
Repayment to a related company [ —fAIRAE A FIE R - (27,805)
Loan advanced from a shareholder R B 4,874,354 4,098,150
Repayment of loan advanced from a shareholder {EZERFRE (4,238,500) (1,551,886)
Loan advanced from a related company BEAREZER 2,598,837 -
Repayment of loan advanced ERBENRER
from a related company (987,314) -
Net cash from financing activities BB EBMEREGFHE 1,942,927 2,698,320
Net increase (decrease) in cash BeMReEEY 2N
and cash equivalents CR) F5 168,521 (227,740)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of FUzHRERREEEY
the year 1,341,536 1,540,129
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes GNEE T R B R B (56,478) 29,147
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year FRZH & RHEFEY 1,453,579 1,341,536
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General

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in
Hong Kong and its shares are listed on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Its parent
is Goldin Group (Investment) Limited (“Goldin Group
(Investment)”), a private limited company incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands, and its ultimate parent is Goldin
Real Estate Financial Holdings Limited (“Goldin Real Estate
Financial”), a private limited company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands, which is ultimately owned by Mr. Pan
Sutong (“Mr. Pan”), a Director and Chairman of the Company,
who has controlling interest in the Company. The addresses
of the registered office and principal place of business of
the Company are disclosed in the “Corporate Information”
included in the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is different from the functional currency of
the Company, Renminbi (“RMB"), as the Company is a public
company incorporated in Hong Kong with its shares listed on
the Stock Exchange, where most of its investors are located
and therefore, the Directors consider that Hong Kong dollars
is preferable in presenting the operating results and financial
position of the Company and the Group. The majority of the
Company’s subsidiaries are operating in the People’s Republic
of China (“PRC") with RMB as their functional currency.

The Company is an investment holding company. The activities
of its principal subsidiaries at 31 March 2014 are set out in
note 46.

s, NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
T FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S o B 5 e Wi
For the year ended 31 March 2014
HE-F-ME=A=T-ALFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B £ BV 255 e o P

For the year ended 31 March 2014
HE-Z—NF=A=1+—HILLFE

2. Application of New and Revised Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards

(“HKFRS(s)")

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new
and revised HKFRS(s) and amendments to HKFRS(s) issued

FE R#TR] RAIERT B R MBS
ZR ([HFRMBHREER])

RAEFRE - AEBEEAU T BB &
NE (BREHGAR)) B2 HTRE
AT BB I IR S B R BB B R 8

by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“"HKICPA"):

Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRS 1 Government Loans

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures — Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities
Consolidated Financial
Statements, Joint
Arrangements
and Disclosure of Interests
in Other Entities:
Transition Guidance

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12

HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial
Statements

HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement
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: NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
oL )

i P e T

Application of New and Revised Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRS(s)"”) (Continued)

HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011) Employee Benefits
HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011) Separate Financial Statements

HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011) Investments in Associates
and Joint Ventures

Stripping Costs in the
Production Phase of a
Surface Mine

HK(IFRIC) — Int 20

Except as described below, the application of the new and
revised HKFRS(s) and amendments to HKFRS(s) in the current
year has had no material impact on the Group’s financial
performance and positions for the current and prior years and/
or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first
time the package of five standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures comprising HKFRS
10 Consolidated Financial Statements, HKFRS 11 Joint
Arrangements, HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities, HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011) Separate Financial
Statements and HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011) Investments in
Associates and Joint Ventures, together with the amendments
to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12 regarding transitional
guidance.

B £ BV 255 e o Pk

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BHEZ—NF=A=1+—HILFE

FERFTR] RAIERT B R B | E
R ([FRMBHREER ] (F)

ARG EAE 195  EERF
(ZF——FKIEF)
EREHERE 27 BUMEHR
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BAGRTEAE 285 REERARKAE

(ZZ——F&E5T) EZERE
B (AR BRE BRESEERE

REZEY) ZFIBRR AR

- REFE 209

BRI XAt &SN - RAE R ERFTR] REE
FREVBRERARBEY B RE LR
(BRIA) LB AEERAFE R BEFE
ZHBRBARAMRAR,RZEHEEPBERE
FrERBEE B EARTE -

AEERAFEEREALRARBSEAK
B Bakh BMEARAREEZEN.
BREEBEMBRELERFI0R/FLHK
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Application of New and Revised Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRS(s)"”) (Continued)

The impact of the application of these standards is set out
below.

Impact of the application of HKFRS 10

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27 Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements that deal with consolidated
financial statements and HK(SIC) Int-12 Consolidation — Special
Purpose Entities. HKFRS 10 changes the definition of control
such that an investor has control over an investee when a) it
has power over the investee, b) it is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee and ¢)
has the ability to use its power to affect its returns. All three of
these criteria must be met for an investor to have control over
an investee. Previously, control was defined as the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as
to obtain benefits from its activities. Additional guidance has
been included in HKFRS 10 to explain when an investor has
control over an investee.

As a result of adoption of HKFRS 10, the Group has changed
its accounting policy with respect to determining whether it
has control over an investee. The adoption does not change
any of the control conclusions reached by the Group in respect
of its investment with other entities as at 1 April 2013.

Impact of the application of HKFRS 12

HKFRS 12 is a new disclosure standard and is applicable to
entities that have interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements,
associates and/or unconsolidated structured entities. As all of
the Group’s subsidiaries are wholly owned subsidiaries and
the Group does not have any interests in joint arrangements
and associates, the application of HKFRS 12 has not had any
material impact on the disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
£ A 25 A B

For the year ended 31 March 2014
HE-Z—NF=A=1+—HILLFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Application of New and Revised Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRS(s)"”) (Continued)

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

The Group has applied HKFRS 13 for the first time in the
current year. HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance
for, and disclosures about, fair value measurements. The
scope of HKFRS 13 is broad: the fair value measurement
requirements of HKFRS 13 apply to both financial instrument
items and non-financial instrument items for which other
HKFRSs require or permit fair value measurements and
disclosures about fair value measurements, except for share-
based payment transactions that are within the scope of
HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that are
within the scope of HKAS 17 Leases, and measurements that
have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value (e.g.,
net realisable value for the purposes of measuring inventories
or value in use for impairment assessment purposes).

HKFRS 13 defines the fair value of an asset as the price
that would be received to sell an asset (or paid to transfer
a liability, in the case of determining the fair value of a
liability) in an orderly transaction in the principal (or most
advantageous) market at the measurement date under current
market conditions. Fair value under HKFRS 13 is an exit price
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. Also, HKFRS 13
includes extensive disclosure requirements.

HKFRS 13 requires prospective application. In accordance with
the transitional provisions of HKFRS 13, the Group has not
made any new disclosures required by HKFRS 13 for the 2013
comparative period (see note 19 for the 2014 disclosures).
Other than the additional disclosures, the application of
HKFRS 13 has not had any material impact on the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial statements.
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Application of New and Revised Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRS(s)"”) (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Items
of Other Comprehensive Income

The Group has applied the amendments to HKAS 1
Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income.
Upon the adoption of the amendments to HKAS 1, the
Group’s ‘statement of comprehensive income’ is renamed
as the 'statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income’. The amendments to HKAS 1 retain the option to
present profit or loss and other comprehensive income in
either a single statement or in two separate but consecutive
statements. Furthermore, the amendments to HKAS 1 require
additional disclosures to be made in the other comprehensive
income section such that items of other comprehensive
income are grouped into two categories: (a) items that will
not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss and (b) items
that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when
specific conditions are met. Income tax on items of other
comprehensive income is required to be allocated on the same
basis — the amendments do not change the option to present
items of other comprehensive income either before tax or net
of tax. The amendments have been applied retrospectively,
and hence the presentation of items of other comprehensive
income has been modified to reflect the changes. Other than
the above mentioned presentation changes, the application
of the amendments to HKAS 1 does not result in any impact
on profit or loss, other comprehensive income and total
comprehensive income.
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Application of New and Revised Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRS(s)"”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet

effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised

HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRSs

HKFRS 9
HKFRS 14
Amendments to HKFRS 9

and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27

Amendments to HKFRS 11

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle®

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle?

Financial Instruments®

Regulatory Deferral Accounts*

Mandatory Effective Date of
HKFRS 9 and Transition
Disclosures®

Investment Entities’

Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations®

Clarification of Acceptable

and Methods of Depreciation

and Amortisation®
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For the year ended 31 March 2014
HE-Z—NF=A=1+—HILLFE

2. Application of New and Revised Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRS(s)"”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans:
Employee Contributions?

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities’

Amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable Amount Disclosures
for Non-Financial Assets'

Amendments to HKAS 39 Novation of Derivatives
and Continuation of Hedge
Accounting’

HK(IFRIC) — Int 21 Levies'

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2014.
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014.
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014,

with limited exceptions.
i Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements beginning
on or after 1 January 2016.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2016.
g Available for application — the mandatory effective date will

be determined when the outstanding phases of HKFRS 9 are
finalised.
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Application of New and Revised Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRS(s)"”) (Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012
Cycle

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle include
a number of amendments to various HKFRSs, which are
summarised below.

The amendments to HKFRS 2 (i) change the definitions
of 'vesting condition’ and ‘'market condition’; and (ii) add
definitions for ‘performance condition’ and ‘service condition’
which were previously included within the definition of
‘vesting condition’. The amendments to HKFRS 2 are effective
for share-based payment transactions for which the grant date
is on or after 1 July 2014.

The amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify that contingent
consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability should
be measured at fair value at each reporting date, irrespective
of whether the contingent consideration is a financial
instrument within the scope of HKFRS 9 or HKAS 39 or a non-
financial asset or liability. Changes in fair value (other than
measurement period adjustments) should be recognised in
profit and loss. The amendments to HKFRS 3 are effective for
business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or
after 1 July 2014.

The amendments to HKFRS 8 (i) require an entity to disclose
the judgements made by management in applying the
aggregation criteria to operating segments, including a
description of the operating segments aggregated and the
economic indicators assessed in determining whether the
operating segments have ‘similar economic characteristics’;
and (ii) clarify that a reconciliation of the total of the reportable
segments’ assets to the entity’s assets should only be provided
if the segment assets are regularly provided to the chief
operating decision maker.
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Application of New and Revised Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRS(s)"”) (Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012
Cycle (Continued)

The amendments to the basis for conclusions of HKFRS
13 clarify that the issue of HKFRS 13 and consequential
amendments to HKAS 39 and HKFRS 9 did not remove the
ability to measure short-term receivables and payables with
no stated interest rate at their invoice amounts without
discounting, if the effect of discounting is immaterial.

The amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 remove
perceived inconsistencies in the accounting for accumulated
depreciation/amortisation when an item of property, plant and
equipment or an intangible asset is revalued. The amended
standards clarify that the gross carrying amount is adjusted in a
manner consistent with the revaluation of the carrying amount
of the asset and that accumulated depreciation/amortisation
is the difference between the gross carrying amount and
the carrying amount after taking into account accumulated
impairment losses.

The amendments to HKAS 24 clarify that a management
entity providing key management personnel services to a
reporting entity is a related party of the reporting entity.
Consequently, the reporting entity should disclose as related
party transactions the amounts incurred for the service paid
or payable to the management entity for the provision of key
management personnel services. However, disclosure of the
components of such compensation is not required.

The Directors do not anticipate that the application of the
amendments included in the Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2010-2012 Cycle will have a material effect on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.
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Application of New and Revised Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRS(s)"”) (Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013
Cycle

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle include
a number of amendments to various HKFRSs, which are
summarised below.

The amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify that the standard does
not apply to the accounting for the formation of all types
of joint arrangement in the financial statements of the joint
arrangement itself.

The amendments to HKFRS 13 clarify that the scope of the
portfolio exception for measuring the fair value of a group of
financial assets and financial liabilities on a net basis includes
all contracts that are within the scope of, and accounted for in
accordance with, HKAS 39 or HKFRS 9, even if those contracts
do not meet the definitions of financial assets or financial
liabilities within HKAS 32.

The amendments to HKAS 40 clarify that HKAS 40 and HKFRS
3 are not mutually exclusive and application of both standards
may be required. Consequently, an entity acquiring investment
property must determine whether:

(@)  the property meets the definition of investment property
in terms of HKAS 40; and

(b) the transaction meets the definition of a business
combination under HKFRS 3.

The Directors do not anticipate that the application of the
amendments included in the Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2011-2013 Cycle will have a material effect on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 March 2014
HE-Z—NF=A=1+—HILLFE

2. Application of New and Revised Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRS(s)"”) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial assets.
HKFRS 9 amended in 2010 includes the requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial liabilities and for
derecognition, and further amended in 2013 to include the
new requirements for hedge accounting.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows:

o All recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement are subsequently measured at amortised
cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that
are held within a business model whose objective is
to collect the contractual cash flows, and that have
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal outstanding
are generally measured at amortised cost at the end
of subsequent accounting periods. All other debt
investments and equity investments are measured at
their fair values at the end of subsequent reporting
periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may make
an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes
in the fair value of an equity investment (that is not held
for trading) in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Application of New and Revised Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRS(s)"”) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

o With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS
9 requires that the amount of change in the fair value
of the financial liability that is attributable to changes
in the credit risk of that liability is presented in other
comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the
effects of changes in the liability's credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair
value of financial liabilities attributable to changes in
the financial liabilities’ credit risk are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss. Under HKAS 39, the entire
amount of the change in the fair value of the financial
liability designated as fair value through profit or loss
was presented in profit or loss.

The new general hedge accounting requirements retain the
three types of hedge accounting. However, greater flexibility
has been introduced to the types of transactions eligible
for hedge accounting, specifically broadening the types of
instruments that qualify for hedging instruments and the types
of risk components of non-financial items that are eligible for
hedge accounting. In addition, the effectiveness test has been
overhauled and replaced with the principle of an ‘economic
relationship’. Retrospective assessment of hedge effectiveness
is also no longer required. Enhanced disclosure requirements
about an entity’s risk management activities have also been
introduced.

The Directors of the Company anticipate that the adoption
of HKFRS 9 in the future will not have significant impact on
amounts reported in respect of the Group’s financial assets
and financial liabilities based on the analysis of the Group’s
financial instruments as at 31 March 2014.

The Directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of the other new and revised HKFRS(s) will have no material
impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and
by the predecessor Companies Ordinance, Cap. 32.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for investment properties and
certain financial instruments, that are measured at fair values,
as explained in the accounting policies set out below. Historical
cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration
given in exchange for goods.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the scope
of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are within the scope of
HKAS 17, and measurements that have some similarities to
fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in
HKAS 2 or value in use in HKFRS 36.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below:

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

o has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if

facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated
as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.
Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in profit or
loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except
that:

o deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or assets
related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised
and measured in accordance with HKAS 12 Income
Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits respectively;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payments arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment at the acquisition date (see the
accounting policy below); and

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for
sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured
in accordance with that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after re-assessment,
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase
gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s
net assets in the event of liquidation may be initially measured
either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement
basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other
types of non-controlling interests are measured at their fair
value or, when applicable, on the basis specified in another
HKFRS.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes assets or liabilities resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value and
included as part of the consideration transferred in a business
combination. Changes in the fair value of the contingent
consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments
are adjusted retrospectively, with the corresponding
adjustments made against goodwill. Measurement period
adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional
information obtained during the “measurement period” (which
cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date) about facts
and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that do not qualify as measurement
period adjustments depends on how the contingent
consideration is classified. Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting
dates and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity. Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset
or a liability is remeasured at subsequent reporting dates in
accordance with HKAS 39, or HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets, as appropriate, with the
corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group's previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e., the date
when the Group obtains control), and the resulting gain or
loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts arising from
interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date that have
previously been recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss where such treatment would be
appropriate if that interest were disposed of.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
statement of financial position at cost less any identified
impairment loss.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts received and
receivable from sales of properties and services rendered in the
normal course of business, net of discounts and sales related
taxes.

Sales of properties

Revenue from sale of properties in the ordinary course of
business is recognised when the respective properties have
been completed and delivered to the buyers. Deposits and
instalments received from purchasers prior to meeting the
above criteria for revenue recognition are included in the
consolidated statement of financial position under current
liabilities.

Hotel operation

Revenue from hotel accommodation, food and beverage sales
and other ancillary services in the hotel are recognised when
the relevant services have been rendered.

Polo club operation

Advertising, VIP Box and ticketing income from polo
tournaments are recognised when the polo events are held.

Revenue from the sale of polo club membership is recognised
on the straight-line basis over the expected life of the
membership.

Project management fee

Project management fee is recognised when service is
rendered.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Interest income

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest
income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which
is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation (including properties under
construction for such purposes).

Properties under construction or development for future use
as investment properties are classified as investment properties
under construction.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at their fair
values. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value
of investment properties are included in profit or loss for the
period in which they arise.

Construction costs incurred for investment properties under
construction are capitalised as part of the carrying amount of
the investment properties under construction.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected from
its disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included
in the profit or loss in the period in which the property is
derecognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services, or
for administrative purposes are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses,
if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their
expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets.
However, when there is no reasonable certainty that ownership
will be obtained by the end of the lease term, assets are
deprecated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful
lives.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Ponies

Ponies held for provision of polo club related service are
stated at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of ponies
less their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using
the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Ponies (Continued)

Ponies are derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued
use of ponies. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or
retirement of ponies is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of ponies and is
recognised in profit or loss.

Other assets

Other assets representing the land use rights being acquired
through the acquisition of assets and liabilities of a subsidiary
of the Company in previous years, which were subject to
completion of the disposal (see note 20 for details), were
carried at costs less any accumulated impairment losses and
were shown as non-current assets. Cost included the cost of
land, construction cost and other development expenditure
and other attributable expenses.

Prepaid lease payments

The cost of acquiring land under an operating lease is
amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease
term except where the properties are classified and accounted
for as investment properties under the fair value model, other
assets and properties for sale.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation
for intangible assets with finite useful lives is provided on
a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed
at the end of the each reporting period, with the effect of
any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective
basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at cost less any subsequent
accumulated impairment losses (see the accounting policy in
respect of impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
below).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)
Intangible assets acquired separately (Continued)

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of intangible assets
are measured at the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognised in profit or loss in the period when the asset is
derecognised.

Properties for sale

Completed properties for sale and properties under
development for sale which are intended to be held for sale
in the ordinary course of business are carried at the lower of
cost and net realisable value and are shown as current assets.
Cost includes the cost of land, construction cost and other
development expenditure and other attributable expenses.
Upon completion, the properties under development for sale
are transferred to completed properties for sale.

Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for
properties for sale less all estimated costs of completion and
costs necessary to make the sale.

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. When
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
Where a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the
smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable
and consistent allocation basis can be identified.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets (Continued)

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible
assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment at
least annually, and whenever there is an indication that they
may be impaired. Recoverable amount is the higher of fair
value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash
flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are calculated using the weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of
completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of
the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset/liability and of allocating
interest income/expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts/payments (including all fees paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial asset/liability, or, where appropriate,
a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Interest income/expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into loans and
receivables.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans
and receivables (including trade and other receivables and
deposits, amount due from a related company, amounts due
from subsidiaries and cash and cash equivalents) are carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
any identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on
impairment of financial assets below).
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at
the end of the reporting period. Financial assets are considered
to be impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a
result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the financial assets, the estimated future cash
flows of the financial assets have been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

. breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

o disappearance of an active market for the financial asset
because of financial difficulties.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
the impairment loss recognised is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, amount due from a related
party and amounts due from subsidiaries where the carrying
amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are
recognised in profit or loss. When a trade receivable, amount
due from a related party and amounts due from subsidiaries
are considered uncollectible, they are written off against
the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of
its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Convertible bonds contain liability and conversion option
derivative

Convertible bonds issued by the Group that contain both
liability and conversion option components are classified
separately into respective items on initial recognition.
Conversion option that will be settled other than by the
exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset
for a fixed number of the Company’s own equity instruments
is a conversion option derivative. At the date of issue, both the
liability and conversion option components are recognised at
fair value.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Convertible bonds contain liability and conversion option
derivative (Continued)

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the
convertible bonds is carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. The conversion option derivative is
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in
profit or loss.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
bonds are allocated to the liability and conversion option
derivative in proportion to the allocation of the proceeds.
Transaction costs relating to the conversion option derivative is
charged to profit or loss immediately. Transaction costs relating
to the liability component are included in the carrying amount
of the liability portion and amortised over the period of the
convertible bonds using the effective interest method.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including trade and other payables,
amounts due to subsidiaries, amounts due to related
companies, bank borrowing, loan from a shareholder and
loan from a related company) are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at
the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

If the fair values of the convertible bonds issued to existing
shareholders of the Company upon initial recognition are in
excess of the proceeds received, such excess is recognised as a
distribution to equity participants in equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or
loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in
the respective functional currency (i.e., the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates)
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit or
loss for the period.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s entities
are translated into the presentation currency of the Group
(i.e., Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates prevailing at
the end of the reporting period. Income and expenses items
are translated at the average exchange rates for the year,
unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period,
in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity under the heading of translation reserve.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of
the Group at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if
lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments.
The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the
consolidated statement of financial position as a finance lease
obligation.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Leasing (Continued)
The Group as lessee (Continued)

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses
and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a
constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability. Finance expenses are recognised immediately in profit
or loss, unless they are directly attributable to qualifying assets,
in which case they are capitalised in accordance with the
Group’s general policy on borrowing costs (see the accounting
policy below). Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses
in the periods in which they are incurred.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term. Contingent rentals
arising under operating leases are recognised as an expense in
the period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability.
The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a
reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance
or an operating lease separately based on the assessment as
to whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of each element have been transferred to the
Group, unless it is clear that both elements are operating
leases in which case the entire lease is classified as an
operating lease. Specifically, the minimum lease payments
(including any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated
between the land and the building elements in proportion to
the relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the land
element and building element of the lease at the inception of
the lease.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Leasing (Continued)
Leasehold land and building (Continued)

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of financial position
and is amortised over the lease term on a straight-line basis
except for those that are classified and accounted for as
investment properties under the fair value model, other assets
and properties under development for sale. When the lease
payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land and
building elements, the entire lease is generally classified as
a finance lease and accounted for as property, plant and
equipment.

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans,
state-managed pension schemes and the Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme are recognised as an expense when employees
have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost
of those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Government grants (Continued)

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants
are intended to compensate. Specifically, government grants
whose primary condition is that the Group should purchase,
construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets are
recognised as deferred income/a deduction from the carrying
amount of the relevant asset in the consolidated statement
of financial position and transferred to profit or loss on a
systematic and rational basis over the useful lives of the related
assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future
related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they become receivable.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from “profit before tax” as reported
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because it excludes items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets for investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts of
such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely through
sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The presumption is
rebutted when the investment property is depreciable and is
held within a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment property over time, rather than through sale. If the
presumption is rebutted, deferred tax liabilities and deferred
tax assets for such investment properties are measured in
accordance with the above general principles set out in
HKAS 12 (i.e., based on the expected manner as to how the
properties will be recovered).

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting
for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for a business combination.

B 7 B e A P

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BHEZ—NF=A=1+—HILFE

FESFEE (&)

BiE (&)

RAEREVE RAXTFERAGE) ZE
ERBEAEIECHREEMS - AAYME
ZEEEDRFREBHEEAT2HKE - RIE
ZBRBEHEBRIRI - EREVMEATIHE
REBERMERRE (MIBEEHE) HRRE
MERABE ZRANID BN EHER
ARER  ARERRSRESR - HEBRRK
RIER A ERREMEZRERBERER
ERERABERBEBGTERNE 1258
Z bt — AR IR A (BVAR 35 40 47T 4 (21 75 8 47
XA FE -

BN SRFE IR ME s T SR - EREBLIR
EREMpEEN RN ERNERER AR
BRARRSN  RILBERT - BVE SR IER ]
TR AR ERER N SRR -
WEAEBE B2 N F St BEIRE LB IR
HIELEIR - EARBEEAARBEHZ
BETRIEA

SR E R A RA T R PO

103



104

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to Directors of the Company
and employees and others providing similar
services

Share options granted after 7 November 2002 and
vested before 1 April 2005

The financial impact of share options granted is not recorded
in the Group’s consolidated financial statements until such
time as the options are exercised, and no charge is recognised
in profit or loss in respect of the value of options in the
year. Upon the exercise of the share options before the
commencement date of the new Companies Ordinance (i.e.,
3 March 2014), the resulting shares issued are recorded by the
Company as additional share capital at the nominal value of
the shares and the excess of the exercise price per share over
the nominal value of the share is recorded by the Company
as share premium. Upon the exercise of the share options
on or after the commencement date of the new Companies
Ordinance (i.e., 3 March 2014), the resulting shares issued are
recorded by the Company as additional share capital. Options
which lapse or are cancelled prior to their exercise date are
deleted from the register of outstanding options.

Share options granted after 7 November 2002 and
vested on or after 1 April 2005

The fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the grant date is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, with
a corresponding increase in equity (share-based compensation
reserve) or recognised as an expense in full at the grant date
when the share option granted vest immediately.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised in
profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the
revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to share-
based compensation reserve.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Share-based payment transactions (Continued)

Share options granted to Directors of the Company
and employees and others providing similar
services (Continued)

Share options granted after 7 November 2002 and
vested on or after 1 April 2005 (Continued)

Upon the exercise of the share options before the
commencement date of the new Companies Ordinance (i.e.,
3 March 2014), the amount previously recognised in share-
based compensation reserve will be transferred to share
premium. Upon the exercise of the share options on or after
the commencement date of the new Companies Ordinance
(i.e., 3 March 2014), the amount previously recognised in
share-based compensation reserve will be transferred to share
capital. When the share options are forfeited subsequent to
vesting or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share-based compensation reserve will
be transferred to retained profits.

Critical Accounting Judgement and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the Directors of the Company are required
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

Critical judgement in applying accounting
policies

The following is the critical judgement, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the Directors have made
in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies
and that have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 March 2014
HE-Z—NF=A=1+—HILLFE

Critical Accounting Judgement and
Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
(Continued)

Critical judgement in applying accounting
policies (Continued)

Deferred tax on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities arising
from investment properties that are measured using the
fair value model, the Group has reviewed its investment
properties and concluded that the Group's investment
properties are held under a business model whose objective is
to consume substantially all the economic benefits embodied
in the investment properties over time, rather than through
sale. Therefore, in measuring the Group’s deferred tax on
investment properties, the Group has determined that
the presumption that the carrying amount of investment
properties measured using the fair value model is recovered
entirely through sale is rebutted.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
material adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Fair value measurements and valuation processes

Some of the Group’s assets and liabilities are measured at fair
value for financial reporting purposes. The management of the
Group determines the appropriate valuation techniques and
inputs for fair value measurements.

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group
uses market-observable data to the extent it is available.
Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group engages
independent qualified valuers to perform the valuation. The
management of the Group works closely with the qualified
external valuers to establish the appropriate valuation
techniques and inputs to the model. The findings are reported
to the Directors every half year to explain the cause of
fluctuations in the fair value of the assets and liabilities.

GOLDIN PROPERTIES HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2014

EXREHHE R & RERAEE
ZEBERR (&)

FEREBER 2 ERHE ()

REMEZELEREA
AEARAFEEAFEREME ZELTHIRA
BEME  AEECRMERENE AR
RAKEREYMENBFELERR (MFE
BIHE) HREENMEMES 2BRBO K
BNz ZRBEARFESR - At - REFER
SEREYME ZRLEHIAE - REBERER
RAFEEAGFEZRENERTEEBH
ERBWE 2 RREEHES

T TABER 2 EZRR

AT RS RARKZ EERIRAREARG
ATHPAZR s AthEBR - HABER
RTEMBRFESEER B ERABELE
RBE 2 EARR -

RFEFERMEEBRRE
AEEETEERABNRAFENENA
RPBHREE R - ARBEEREE A FER
EETERBENERBARE -

HFAEERRBEZATER AEERTHE
ARHREERTS A BREE o HAREER
HE-—R2BARE  AXAKEEREBEY
ARERMGEMETHE AEEEEEGH
REMINSHEMBEZ A HRIAE A
BIENBAEZEL 28R - BHAEER
BEAFERBZRE  HEHEREEEF
AEFE2MH -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Critical Accounting Judgement and
Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation processes
(Continued)

The Group uses valuation techniques that include inputs
that are not based on observable market data to estimate
the fair value of certain types of financial instruments.
Notes 6 (g) and 19 provide detailed information about the
valuation techniques, inputs and key assumptions used in the
determination of the fair value of various assets and liabilities.

Fair value of investment properties

The Group's investment properties are stated at fair values
based on the valuation performed by independent professional
valuer. The valuation of the Group’s investment properties
under construction is determined with reference to the fair
value of the bare land plus construction costs incurred. The
fair value of the bare land has been arrived at by adopting the
comparison approach and making reference to the market
transactions as available in the markets, with adjustments
made to account for various factors including geographical
location of the properties, availability of transportation system
and public facilities and the estimated development period
of the Group's investment properties under construction.
The valuer has also determined on the basis that the Group’s
investment properties under construction will be developed
and completed in accordance with the latest development
proposals and taken into account the construction costs
that will be expended to complete the development as well
as developer’s profit margin to reflect the quality of the
completed development. In determining the fair value, the
valuer has based on the method of valuation which involves
certain estimates of market conditions. In relying on the
valuation report of the independent professional valuer, the
management has exercised its judgement and is satisfied that
the method of valuation and the assumptions used in the
valuation are reflective of the market conditions prevailing
at the end of each reporting period. Any changes in the
market conditions which may change the method of valuation
and the assumptions used in the valuation will affect the
fair values of the investment properties of the Group. The
fair values of investment properties at 31 March 2014 was
HK$14,823,132,000 (2013: HK$10,690,129,000).
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Critical Accounting Judgement and
Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Fair values of conversion option derivative of
convertible bonds

The Directors of the Company use their judgment in selecting
an appropriate valuation technique for financial instruments
not quoted in an active market. Valuation techniques
commonly used by market practitioners are applied.

The fair values of conversion option derivatives of convertible
bonds are subject to the limitation of the Binominal model
that incorporate market data and involve uncertainty in
estimates used by management in the assumptions. Because
the Binominal model requires the input of highly subjective
assumptions, including the volatility of share price, changes
in subjective input assumptions can materially affect the fair
value estimate. Details of the assumptions used are disclosed in
note 35. All convertible bonds were matured and redeemed by
the Company during the year and the fair value of conversion
option derivatives of convertible bonds at 31 March 2014 was
nil (2013: HK$20,022,000).

Income taxes

No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of tax
losses of HK$1,306,889,000 (2013: HK$1,010,998,000) due
to the unpredictability of future profit streams. The realisability
of the deferred tax asset mainly depends on whether sufficient
future profits or taxable temporary differences will be available
in the future. In case where the actual future profits generated
are more than expected, additional recognition of deferred tax
assets may arise, which should be recognised in profit or loss
for the period in which it takes place.

Estimate of the PRC Land Appreciation Tax

The PRC Land Appreciation Tax is levied at progressive rates
ranging from 30% to 60% on the appreciation of land value,
being the proceeds of sales of properties less deductible
allowance and expenditures including sales charges, borrowing
costs and all property development expenditures.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Critical Accounting Judgement and
Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Estimate of the PRC Land Appreciation Tax
(Continued)

The Group is subject to Land Appreciation Tax in the PRC. The
details of implementation have been announced by local tax
bureau in Tianjin in the PRC. The Group has not yet reached
the stage to finalise its Land Appreciation Tax calculation and
payments with local tax bureau in Tianjin in accordance with
the relevant local tax regulations. Accordingly, significant
judgements are required in determining the amount of land
appreciation and its related taxes. The Group recognises these
liabilities based on the management'’s best estimates according
to the understanding of the tax rules. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, such differences will impact the income
tax provisions in the period in which such determination is
made.

Recognition and allocation of construction costs on
properties under development

Development costs of properties are recorded as properties
under development for sale during the construction stage
and will be transferred to completed properties for sale and
charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income upon the recognition of the
sales of the properties. Before the final settlement of the
development costs and other costs relating to the sale of
the properties, these costs are accrued by the Group based
on management’s best estimate. During the development
stage, the Group typically divides the development projects
into phases. Costs that are common to different phases are
allocated to individual phases based on saleable area. Where
the final settlement of costs and the related cost allocation is
different from the initial estimates, any increase or decrease in
the development costs and other costs would affect the profit
or loss in future years.
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For the year ended 31 March 2014
HE-Z—NF=A=1+—HILLFE

Capital Risk Management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of total equity,
comprising issued share capital, reserves and retained profits,
as disclosed in notes 38 and 39 and consolidated statement of
changes in equity, respectively.

The Directors of the Company review the capital structure
periodically. As part of this review, the Directors of the
Company prepare the annual budget taking into account
of the provision of funding. Based on the proposed annual
budget, the Directors of the Company consider the cost of
capital and the risks associated with each class of capital.
Based on recommendations of the management of the Group,
the Group will balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends, new share issues as well as the issue of
new debts or the redemption of existing debt, if necessary.

Financial Instruments

The Group's and the Company’s major financial instruments
include trade and other receivables and deposits, amount
due from a related company, amounts due from subsidiaries,
cash and cash equivalents, trade and other payables, amounts
due to subsidiaries, amounts due to related companies,
bank borrowing, convertible bonds (including conversion
option derivatives), loan from a shareholder and loan from
a related company. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market risk (interest rate risk, foreign
currency risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

There has been no change to the Group’s exposure to
these kinds of risks or the manner in which it manages and
measures.
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6. Financial Instruments (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Categories of financial instruments
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6. ©RIA (&)
(a) &WMTEER

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
AEE NG|
2014 2013 2014 2013
—TmFE —T—=-F ZE-WOFE —T—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
FHET FHBT FExT FAT
Financial assets TEEE
Loans and receivables BER R EWRIE
(including cash and (BiERe
cash equivalents) RIReEED) 1,719,819 1,491,339 14,062,204 10,876,905
Financial liabilities TREE
Amortised cost BN 9,761,044 6,846,962 5,197,768 1,518,559
Conversion option derivatives ~ AI R EZ
of convertible bonds 2 A AR
PTETH - 20,022 - 20,022

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to fixed-rate loan from a shareholder and loan
from a related company (see note 36 for details of the
loans).

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
in relation to variable-rate bank borrowing (see note 33
for details of the borrowing). It is the Group’s policy to
keep its borrowing at floating rate of interests so as to
minimise the fair value interest rate risk.

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
due to the fluctuation of the prevailing market interest
rate on bank deposits. At 31 March 2013, the Group
was also exposed to fair value interest rate risk which
related primarily to the liability component of convertible
bonds issued by the Company. The Group currently does
not use any derivative contracts to hedge its exposure
to interest rate risk. However, the management will
consider hedging significant interest rate exposure
should the need arise.

(b) FIRmEKE
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For the year ended 31 March 2014
HE-Z—NF=A=1+—HILLFE

6.

Financial Instruments (Continued)

(b)

(9]

Interest rate risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for variable-rate
bank deposits and for floating-rate bank borrowing at
the end of reporting period. The analysis is prepared
assuming the amount of assets and liabilities outstanding
at the end of the reporting period were outstanding
for the whole year. A 10 basis points increase (2013:
10 basis points increase) is used for the management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest
rates. It is expected that the interest rate will not
decrease in the next twelve months from the end of the
reporting period.

If interest rates had been 10 basis points higher (2013:
10 basis points higher) and all other variables were
held constant, the Group’s profit for the year ended
31 March 2014 would increase by HK$1,232,000 (2013:
HK$1,088,000).

Foreign currency risk

Certain bank balances, amount due from a related party,
amounts due from subsidiaries, amounts due to related
companies, trade and other payables, convertible bonds
(including conversion option derivatives) and loans from
a shareholder and a related company of the Group and
the Company are denominated in foreign currencies. The
Group and the Company currently do not have a formal
currency hedging policy. However, the management
monitors foreign exchange exposure and will further
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.
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Financial Instruments (Continued) 6. RTE (&)
(c) Foreign currency risk (Continued) (c) sheEmBs (4)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Company’s RBRERH  AEERARBIZERE
monetary assets and monetary liabilities denominated in ErREYaERRETEEZOT (18
currencies other than the respective functional currencies BEEEEMERA2SATEEER
of the relevant group entities at the reporting date are as Gh)
follows:
THE GROUP AEH
Assets Liabilities
BE aE
2014 2013 2014 2013

—ETmFE —FT—-F ZE-0OF —Z=—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000

FHBxT FHT FHT FHET
Hong Kong dollars (“HKD") B ([#x]) 19,583 8,444 3,168 230,937
United States dollars (“USD”) %7t ([Ex)) 96,681 55,465 5,065,813 2,582,178
THE COMPANY AT
Assets Liabilities
BE 8&
2014 2013 2014 2013

—E-OF —T-=F | ZB-@mFE _"—T-=F
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET TAT TET THET
HKD BT 5,952,307 5,996,327 141,869 370,760
usb EW 3,190,510 493,317 5,055,064 1,166,944
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Financial Instruments (Continued)

(c) Foreign currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group’s and the
Company’s sensitivity to a 5% (2013: 5%) increase and
decrease in the relevant functional currencies against
the relevant foreign currencies. 5% (2013: 5%) is the
sensitivity rate used for the management’s assessment
of the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange
rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding
foreign currency denominated monetary items and
adjusts their translation at the year end for a 5% (2013:
5%) change in foreign currency rates. The sensitivity
analysis includes external receivables and payables where
the denomination of the receivables and payables is in a
currency other than the functional currency of the lender
or the borrower.

A positive (negative) number below indicates an
increase (a decrease) in profit for the year of the Group
and a decrease (an increase) in loss for the year of the
Company where the respective functional currencies
strengthen 5% (2013: 5%) against the relevant foreign
currencies.
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Financial Instruments (Continued) 6. RTE (&)

(c) Foreign currency risk (Continued) (c) sheEmBs (4)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued) BREDH (&)
For a 5% (2013: 5%) weakening of respective functional BN B HBAIMNERE5% (ZF
currencies against the relevant foreign currencies, there —=F:5%) K SEHAEEFER
would be an equal and opposite impact on the profit for MEARRBFEBEBRNEERERT
the year of the Group and the loss for the year of the £-
Company.

Hypothetical increase (decrease) in profit for the year/
decrease (increase) in loss for the year

FEBRNZBRLA (TR) FEBBZBRTE (L)

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
FEE EN|
2014 2013 2014 2013

—TmFE —FT—=F ZE-0OF —Z=—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TR FHET TR FHEIT
HKD BIT (684) 9,291 (290,522) (281,278)
usD =T 207,824 99,692 93,228 33,681
In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is EIRERR - BRNFRZ BRI R
unrepresentative of the foreign currency risk inherent in FAZRR  WERESTTAIREKSE
the financial assets and financial liabilities as at the year MEERSRIABNERIMNERR
end exposure does not reflect the exposure during the
year.
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6.

Financial Instruments (Continued)

(d) Other price risk

Conversion option derivatives of convertible
bonds

The Group and the Company are required to estimate
the fair values of the conversion option derivatives of
convertible bonds issued by the Company at the end
of each reporting period, which therefore exposed
the Group and the Company to equity price risk as at
31 March 2013. The fair value adjustment will be
affected either positively or negatively, amongst
others, by the changes in risk-free rate, the Company’s
share price, share price volatility and foreign currency
exchange rate. All convertible bonds were matured and
redeemed by the Company during the year. Details of
the convertible bonds issued by the Company are set out
in note 35.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below had been determined
based on the exposure to the Company’s share price,
volatility and foreign currency exchange rate of 31
March 2013 only as the Directors of the Company
considered that the change in risk-free rate might not
have significant financial impact on the fair values of
conversion option derivatives of convertible bonds.

GOLDIN PROPERTIES HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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6.

Financial Instruments (Continued)

(d) Other price risk (Continued)

Conversion option derivatives of convertible
bonds (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)
Changes in share price

As at 31 March 2013, if the share price of the Company
had been 10% higher while all other input variables of
the valuation models were held constant, the Group’s
profit for the year would decrease and the Company’s
loss for the year would increase as follows:

B £ BV 255 e o Pk

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BHEZ—NF=A=1+—HILFE

TRMITE (&)

(d) HtbERRRE ()

RREF 2 HIREENTETA
(&)

HREDT (&)

REES
R-ZE—=F=A=+—08 " HERQ7
BfE EFA10%  MEEEXAZE
Hibg \BUE BB TE  BIAER
FEERFERL - MARBEEEES
b I

2013
—T—=fF
HK$'000
FAET
Higher by 10% EF10%
Derivative financial instruments: PTESBTA -
Conversion option derivatives of AIRES 2 G EIETET A
convertible bonds (12,974)

As at 31 March 2013, if the share price of the Company
had been 10% lower while all other input variables of
the valuation models were held constant, the Group’s
profit for the year would increase and the Company’s
loss for the year would decrease as follows:

RZF—=F=A=1—H ' HERA
BRETFE10% @ MEEEAN A
Hivt \BIRE BT TE - AIAKE
FEOBRFHEIN - WAL RVEFEEEH
BT -

2013
—E—=F
HK$'000
FAET
Lower by 10% TF£10%
Derivative financial instruments: PTESBMTA -
Conversion option derivatives of AARES 2 AR EEITET A
convertible bonds 9,565

1R A EE P I A ] R — O
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6. Financial Instruments (Continued) 6. LRTEHE (&)
(d) Other price risk (Continued) (d) HaExsRRE (8)
Conversion option derivatives of convertible AMRES ZHGBENTETR
bonds (Continued) (#&)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued) BRREST (&)
Changes in volatility L)
As at 31 March 2013, if the volatility to the valuation RZZE—=F=ZA=+—8 ' [WHEER
model had been 10% higher/lower while all other AP ZKEEFTH10% - A
variables were held constant, the Group’s profit for the Hh BB MR - BIREEFE R
year would (decrease) increase and the Company’s loss 1 O o MARRFEEIEE
for the year would (increase) decrease as follows: (38 BT -
2013
=%
HK$’000
T
Higher by 10% EFH10%
Derivative financial instruments: THESBIA -
Conversion option derivatives of AIRES 2 R EIETET A
convertible bonds (7,673)
Lower by 10% TF%10%
Derivative financial instruments: PTHEEBIA :
Conversion option derivatives of ARES 2 AREEITET A
convertible bonds 7,718
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6. Financial Instruments (Continued) 6. TWMIA (&)

(d) Other price risk (Continued) (d) HibERER ()

Conversion option derivatives of convertible
bonds (Continued)

AR ES 2 RARETETA
(&)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued) HREDT (&)
Changes in foreign currency exchange rate SN 2= S

As at 31 March 2013, if the foreign currency exchange
rate of RMB against Hong Kong dollars had been 5%
higher/lower while all other variables were held constant,
the Group’s profit for the year would increase (decrease)
and the Company’s loss for the year would decrease
(increase) as follows:

RZE—Z=F=A=+—H  HAR¥
HABTLZIMNEER EFtTHE5% - M
A EMBHERSTE - AXAEEFE
mAREIE I OR D) - MARRFEE
B (8o T

2013
—E—=%F
HK$'000
FET
Higher by 5% A%
Derivative financial instruments: PTESBTA -
Conversion option derivatives of AR ES 2 AREREITET R
convertible bonds 1,001
Lower by 5% TF%5%
Derivative financial instruments: PTESBTA
Conversion option derivatives of AR ES 2 AREREITET A
convertible bonds (1,001)

In the opinion of the Directors, the sensitivity analyses
were unrepresentative of the inherent market risk as
the pricing model used in the fair value valuation of
the conversion option derivatives of convertible bonds
involve multiple variables and certain variables were
inter-dependent.

EXRR  GREIMATRKREAT
SRR - RERB AR ESR 2 08
BIUTE TR Z A HEfHEMR 2 EBE
‘t/‘f&yﬁm%{ & TEHZMXE
BREE

1R A EE P I A ] R — O
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6.

Financial Instruments (Continued)

(e) Credit risk

As at 31 March 2014 and 31 March 2013, the Group’s
and the Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk
which will cause a financial loss to the Group and the
Company due to failure to discharge an obligation by
the counterparties is arising from:

o the carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position and the Company’s
statement of financial position; and

o the amount of contingent liabilities in relation to
financial guarantee issued by the Company as
disclosed in note 44.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group is responsible for ensuring that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the
Group reviews the recoverable amount of each individual
debt at the end of the reporting period to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the Directors of the Company
consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly
reduced.

The Group has concentration of credit risk on liquid
funds which are deposited with several banks with
high credit rating. At 31 March 2014, the Group has
deposited an aggregate of more than 90% (2013: 90%)
of its bank balances with two state-owned banks (2013:
one state-owned bank and one major commercial
bank) in the PRC. The Directors of the Company believe
that these bank balances are fully recoverable after
considering the financial position and credit rating of
these banks. Moreover, there is no special restriction on
withdrawal of the balances from these banks.

At 31 March 2014 and 31 March 2013, the Group’s
concentration of credit risk on trade and other
receivables was mainly in PRC.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. Financial Instruments (Continued)

(e) Credit risk (Continued)

(f)

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid funds
which are deposited with several banks with high credit
ratings and concentration of credit risk on trade and
other receivables which were mainly in PRC, the Group
does not have any other significant concentration of
credit risk.

The Company is exposed to concentration of credit risk
on a few operating subsidiaries on the amounts due
from subsidiaries.

Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management
rests with the Board of Directors, which has built an
appropriate liquidity risk management framework for
the management of the Group’s and the Company’s
short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity
management requirements. The Group and the
Company manage liquidity risk by maintaining adequate
reserves and banking facilities.

The following table details the Group’s and the
Company’s remaining contractual maturity for its
financial liabilities (including trade and other payables,
the liability component of convertible bonds, amounts
due to subsidiaries and related companies, bank
borrowing, loans from a shareholder and a related
company, and corporate guarantees) and obligations
under finance leases. The table has been drawn up
based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities and obligations under finance leases based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be required to
pay. The table includes both interest and principal cash
flows.

B 7 B e A P
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6. SETH (&)

(e) FERB (&)

(f)
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6. Financial Instruments (Continued) 6. LEMIEA (&)
(f) Liquidity risk (Continued) ) "BESEMR (F)
THE GROUP rEE
Repayable on Carrying
Weighted ~ demand or 6 months Total  amount
average  less than 36 to 12 25 Over undiscounted at
interestrate ~ 3months  months 1 year years years Syears cashflows 3132014
n-2-pg
REXEE ABRRE ZR=t1-A

nETERE HZREANT  ZEAER ABAE-¥ -EcE CERF O EENE RBEE 2KREE
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK§'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
T T Thn Thrn T T ThL Térn

2014 ZE-mF
Trade and other payables TS
REbERTE - 33240 - - - 1079627 - 4401867 4,401,867
Amounts duetorelated  EREIRATUE
companies - 9,038 35,940 - - - - 44,978 44,978
Bank borrowing Briast 15% 19,580 19371 37,819 750 191,69 14245 355225 295076
Obligations under finance ~~ EARRE
leases 4.7% 2% 2 53 105 174 - 384 30
Loan from a related company  BERFER 8.0% - 162812 202415 5218238 - - 5583465 501913
3350884 218149 240287 5290863 1,271,491 14245 10385919 9,761,374
Repayable on Carrying
Weighted ~ demand or 6 months Total amount
average  less than 3 fo 12 25 Over - undiscounted at
interest rate 3 months months 1 year years years Syears  cashflows 3132013
iom
RETER ARRE ZA=1-A
mETSHE F=@EANT =E5EA ~EAE-F  -RZF ZERE REME REME GRS
HKS000  HKS'000  HK§'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$000
Thn TR TR Thn Thn Thn TEn Tin
2013 g-cf
Trade and other payables TS
REMERE - 3754 5 = - 413797 - 313 3730
Liablity component of ThRES
convertble bonds VALY 8.0% - 5516 2358%0 - - - W% 206130
Amounts duetorelated  ENBERFZE
companies - 1,863 11,019 - - - - 12,882 12,882
Bank borrowing it 18% 6,675 20726 40467 77660 206253 4084 4586 337662
Obligations under finance ~~ BLETEE(EHS
leases 4.7% 26 26 53 105 29 = 489 402
Loan from a shareholder REEH 8.0% E 83333 103603 2,670,880 = - 2857816 2568966

325,088 120620 380003 2748646 680329 74084 7259770 6,847,304
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Financial Instruments (Continued) 6. RTE (&)
(f) Liquidity risk (Continued) f) RBELRAR (&)
THE COMPANY PN
Repayable on Carrying
Weighted  demand or 6 months Total amount
average less than 36 to 1-2 undiscounted at
interestrate 3 months months 1 year years  cashflows  31.3.2014
RZB-mE
RERMKE A¥EES =A=t-A
METHNE F=@AUT ZE2AMER AMERE-£  -E-EF  RBEAHR  ZKEE
HK$'000  HKS$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HKS'000
TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn
2014 Z3-|E
Other payables EfbpEfiava - 2,088 - - - 2,088 2,088
Amounts due to subsidiaries ERHBARZE - 140617 - - - 140617 140,617
Amount due to a related company BN —HEEAT
ey - - 35,940 - - 35,940 35,940
Loan from a related company NG 8.0% - 162812 202415 5218238 5583465 5019123
Corporate guarantees RAER - 2,000 - - - 2,000 -
144,705 198,752 202415 5218238 5764110  5/197,768
Repayable on Carrying
Weighted  demand or 6 months Total amount
average less than 36 to 1-2 undiscounted at
interestrate 3 months months 1 year years  cashflows  313.2013
RIB-=E
BERER ABERE ZA=t-A
MEEARE =@EANT =2 ER AEAE-F 0 -EZF  REE  JKEE
HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
AR TR TR Fin Tin TR
2013 “E-ZF
Other payables LR = 3,485 = k- — 3,485 3,485
Liability component of EkES
convertiole bonds ZAEHD 8.0% - 5516 235880 - M13% 206,131
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERHBARNE E. 140,617 5 = < 140,617 140,617
Amounts due to related companies  EMEREREFUE C L 11,019 d 2 11,019 11,019
Loan from a shareholder RRES 8.0% - 37,541 46672 1203219 1287432 1157307
Corporate guarantees DAER L 2,000 = i - 2,000 -
146,102 54,076 282552 1203219 1685949 1,518,559
Note: Liquidity risk analysis excludes conversion option Wiz MEBE BB TNEERS MR EEE A
derivatives of convertible bonds which do not involve BB AREREITETA -

cash settlements.
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6.

Financial Instruments (Continued)

(g) Fair values measurement of financial

instruments

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities
are determined as follows:

o the fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities (excluding conversion option derivatives
of convertible bonds) are determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models based on
discounted cash flow analysis.

o the fair values of conversion option derivatives of
convertible bonds are determined using option
pricing model.

The Directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities
recorded at amortised costs in the consolidated financial
statements approximate to their corresponding fair
values.

Fair value of the Group’s and the Company’s
financial liabilities that are measured at fair
value on a recurring basis

Some of the Group’s financial liabilities are measured
at fair value at the end of each reporting period. The
following table gives information about how the fair
values of these financial liabilities are determined (in
particular, the valuation technique(s) and inputs used),
as well as the level of the fair value hierarchy into which
the fair value measurements are categorised (Levels 1 to
3) based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair
value measurements are observable and the significance
of the inputs to the fair value measurements.
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Financial Instruments (Continued)

(g) Fair values measurement of financial
instruments (Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s and the Company'’s
financial liabilities that are measured at fair
value on a recurring basis (Continued)

... NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2014
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TRI A (&)

(9) EMITAZDVETE ()

BREMEELUAPEFBEES
RARTEMEEZAFE (B)

Fair value as at Fair value Valuation technique
Financial liabilities 31 March hierarchy and key inputs
=i REA=+—-HZAT¥AE DEESR HETEREERARBE
2014 2013
—E-mF =R
HK$'000 HK$'000
T FET
Derivative components - 20,022 Level 3 Binomial model.

of convertible bonds
classified as derivative
financial instruments

in the Group's consolidated
statement of financial
position and the Company’s
statement of financial
position.

RAE B A B ISR R
RARR B EARRITRE D
ARUTESRTAY
AMRES 2 OTET A

Refer to notes 35
and 6(d), for key inputs
and sensitivity analysis,
respectively.

FE=R ZIEAE o

HEBRARBENGRE
TED RIZH

BiiE35 K 6(d) ©
THE GROUP AND THE COMPANY AEERADT]
Level 3
B
2014 2013
—E-—mEF ZE—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
Financial liabilities cRBeE
Conversion option derivatives of AR E S 2 R EIRELTE T A
convertible bonds - 20,022
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6. Financial Instruments (Continued) 6. LRTEHE (&)

(9) Fair values measurement of financial (9) EMIAZAFENE (&)
instruments (Continued)

BAEHI B AT E BAKE
EARATE@MEBEZATE (8)

Fair value of the Group’s and the Company’s
financial liabilities that are measured at fair
value on a recurring basis (Continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements THIBE B E=RANFETELR

of financial liabilities

Conversion option
derivatives of
convertible bonds

ARRES
HRHETETR
HK$’000
FHET

At 1 April 2012 RZE—=—FMA—H 24,944
Total gains or losses recognised in: T8 B Rz Was s BB AR

— profit or loss - B (4,350)

— other comprehensive income - Bt 2 Es 311
Conversion of convertible bonds RRamRES (883)
At 31 March 2013 R-F—=F=A=t—H 20,022
Total gains or losses recognised in: RT5I1E B Rz W sk B E A

— profit or loss -1Bx (20,549)

— other comprehensive income - Hi 2 EW s 527

At 31 March 2014 R-EBE-NFE=A=+—H .

RIZE—=F ' FREBEERZFER
mokE BB EEmE - B 2,533,000
TCHRIRE AR M ARITE A AR ES 2
HETE T A2 A FEEFKEE
B o ATRRES  HREIETET AR
FERETAGZAEBE KA MRS
WERITET A Z WA -

In 2013, of the total gains or losses for the year
recognised in profit or loss, HK$2,533,000 relates to
gains on changes in fair values of conversion option
derivatives of convertible bonds outstanding at the end
of the reporting period. Fair value gains on conversion
option derivatives of convertible bonds are included in
gains on derivatives in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
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1 "EL e
Ry, A et
R ERRLRIPELL
Revenue 7. HER
Revenue represents revenue arising on sales of properties, ERERTARBHEHENE  BAEEE 5
hotel operation, polo club operation and project management FEEBRIBEEEE W - MAEBRSE
for the year. An analysis of the Group’s revenue for the year is N2 W= T
as follows:
2014 2013
—E-NmEF e DS
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHEIT
Sales of properties MEIHE 2,680,022 =
Advertising, VIP Box and ticketing income ~ RESIRtLEZ EE
from polo tournaments EERE&FIZERA 85,001 105,097
Hotel operation BB 1S 20,991 18,303
Polo club membership income BgeflA 3,180 1,531
Project management fee BEREREHA 4,219 4,045
2,793,413 128,976
Segment Information 8. DEER

Information provided to the Executive Directors of the
Company, being the chief operating decision maker, for the
purposes of resources allocation and assessment of segment
performance focuses on types of properties or services
delivered or provided. This is also the basis of organisation in
the Group, whereby the management has chosen to organise

the Group in different operating activities.

Specifically, the Group’s reportable and operating segments

under HKFRS 8 are as follows:

1. Property development — developing and selling

properties and project management

2. Property investment — leasing of investment properties

3. Hotel and polo club operation — provision of hotel
accommodation and related services, food and beverage
sales and polo club related services and activities

ROEEREFED BERAMAARR BT
B (MEBERERERE) REZOMENE
FRAAZN SRR MR IRGER - HIR
RAKEZEHERE  BEEEEBEZENLUAT
FE G EMAER -

REFZBVHRELENES - ABME
AEE 2 AIHRE REEDEIAT

1. DEZR-BRIHEVERIRBER

2. PERE-BEREME
3. BERSHREEB-RIUBEES KA

R - BRHE AR SRS EERS
KEE)

SR E R A RA T R PO
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8. Segment Information (Continued) 8. EPER (&)
Segment revenues and results D EBUR IR I AR
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results REE 2 EEBREBRAIME REE5HE
by reportable and operating segment: DITEAT
Property Property Hotel and
development investment polo club operation Total
NEBR nERE EERFREER @it
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
2B -F-=F -8-mE “T--F ZR-PE "FT--Ff C-F-BE "T-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

T AL TEn

TR TiEn TR TEn Thn

Revenue HEB

External revenue v ey 2,684,241 4,045 - - 109,172 124931 2,793,413 128,976

Inter-segment revenue Db - 5 - - 18,735 - 18,735 -
Segment revenue Ak 2,684,241 4,045 - - 127,907 124931 2,812,148 128,976
Segment profit (loss) AR (58) 1,187,905 (49,905) 679,505 823,317 (294,823)  (299,709) 1,572,587 473,703
Interest income LN 4,588 3,103
Unallocated corporate AARARER

expenses (171,708)  (174,158)
Finance costs HHER (24689)  (25197)
Gains on derivatives TETAZ NS 20,549 4,350
Profit before tax R ALER 1,401,327 281,801

The accounting policies of the reportable and operating
segments are the same as the Group's accounting policies
described in note 3. Segment profit/loss represents the
profit earned by/loss from each segment without allocation
of central administration costs, directors’ salaries, interest
income, finance costs and gains on derivatives. This is the
measure reported to the chief operating decision maker, being
the Executive Directors of the Company, for the purposes of
resource allocation and performance assessment.

Inter-segment revenues are charged at prevailing market rate.

There was no material inter-segment revenue for the year
ended 31 March 2013.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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; .'?‘--\.:-:"-: : = ﬁi;t-ui:m
Segment Information (Continued) 8.

Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities
by reportable and operating segment:

Property Property
development investment
L nERE

2014 2013 2014

B 7 B e A P

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BHEZ—NF=A=1+—HILFE

7 HRPER (&)

THEERAE

REBZEERBBERAIRERELED IS
i SN

Hotel and
polo club operation Total
EEREREER a5t
2013 2014 2013 2014 2013

“E-ME -“IT--f ZB-NE -—T--f ZF-MF “-T-=F ZE-|mE _-T-=F
HK$'000  HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000

FiEn AR T

Th Fién Thx FiEn AL

Segment Assets THEE

Segment assets DHEE 8314906 7458245 15339027 11141332 2871404 3294694  26,525337 21,894,271

Unallocated corporate assets ~ AAEAFEE

1,488,597 1373241

28,013,934 23,267,512

Segment Liabilities THEE

Segment liabilities nHak (1.214377)  (1,121559) ~ (3,408,606) (1,736,324)  (346,488)  (765730)  (4969.471) (3,623,613)

Unallocated corporate liabilities  RAEAFEE

(7.079,342)  (4,482,785)

(12,048,813)  (8,106,398)

For the purpose of monitoring segment performance and
allocating resources between segments:

° all assets are allocated to reportable and operating
segments other than the Group head office’s corporate
assets, intangible assets, and cash and cash equivalents.
Assets used jointly by reportable and operating segments
are allocated on the basis of the estimated gross floor
areas to be constructed by individual reportable and
operating segments; and

° all liabilities are allocated to reportable and operating
segments other than the Group head office’s corporate
liabilities, amounts due to related companies, bank
borrowing, tax payable, obligations under finance
leases, convertible bonds (including conversion option
derivatives), loan from a shareholder, loan from a related
company and deferred tax liabilities. Liabilities for which
reportable and operating segments are jointly liable are
allocated in proportion to segment assets.

REENHERARDIEERESE DT :

BAEBERI 2 AREE - BVEEMN
MRS MRSEEYI  IBEEEC D
EARERLEDED - I RERLE
2 ERFRIGE A 2 B ERERI AT #RE KA
Lo R At EREN R &

s  KRAKEANZARAE  ENEER
BIFCR - IRITHE - EEHIAE - BEH
EE7% - IRERES (BRI GHEN
ATR) BRER BERRERK
ERERBEEEIN - AIBEREESEEA
FlEfEz BERDBEEELPIDE

SR E R A RA T R PO
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
£ A 25 A B

For the year ended 31 March 2014
HE-Z—NF=A=1+—HILLFE

Segment Information (Continued) 8. EPER (&)
Other segment information Hth 7 ZBE R
Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or loss or FTAD BB D PEEZ KA
segment assets:
Hotel and
Property Property polo club
development investment operation Unallocated Total
HE IEZ BEREREER #3E Eh
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Z3-ME ---F ZB-ME “3--F ZB-MF -Z--F ZE-MF "Z--F CZE-mE ~-T-=F
HKS'000 HK$'000 ~ HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK§'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
Thn Tén T T T Thn T Tikn T Thn
Additions to property RENE
plant and equipment FiR Rikle 826 799 1927 1865 19406 42941 52 1153 2691 57,139
Adtions to ponies AESL - e - - - 261 - - - 261
Amortisation of prepaid BHEESE
lease payments i - & - ks 6,388 6,396 - 5 6,388 6,396
Depreciation of property, % B
plant and equipment G 74 681 1,666 1589 116437 114306 3,69 365 122509 120206
Depreciation of ponies EIfE - - - - 9,049 9279 - - 9,049 9279
Loss (gain) on disposal of RENE FF
property, plant and equipment Rk B
(&) - - - - - - 26 (1) 2% (1)
Ponies written off B - - - - 815 1314 - - 815 1314
Increase in fair value of RENEL
investment properties Y& - - 708312 855332 - - - - 108312 855332
Geographical information wEER

The Group’s operations in property development, property
investment and hotel and polo club operation are principally
located in the PRC, excluding Hong Kong.

Information about the Group’s revenue from external
customers is presented based on the location of the
operations. Information about the Group’s carrying amount
of non-current assets is presented based on the geographical
area in which the assets are located.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e T B 5 R W
1 Trdpetigarm
— d"_i- ] i’ F:T_ For the year ended 31 March 2014

Al BE-F MEZA=t+—AILEE

Segment Information (Continued) 8. ZHWER (&)
Geographical information (Continued) HEER ()
Revenue from Carrying amounts
external customers of non-current assets
REIMBEE 2 Wz FRBEEZREE
2014 2013 2014 2013

=2 QNF —T-—=F| =T NF —FT-—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FHExT FHT THET FAET
Hong Kong B 2,633 2,633 8,004 10,800
Other regions in the PRC PR E i 2,790,780 126,343 17,950,136 14,248,395

2,793,413 128,976 = 17,958,140 14,259,195

Revenue from customers for the year ended 31 March 2014 HE-_ZT-—NF=A=1+—HLFE &
contributing over 10% of the Group’s revenue were generated ZEEAEEEETI0% U LENEF RS
from the property development segment and hotel and polo MEFEUREEREREEBHH (ZF
club operation segment (2013: hotel and polo club operation —=FBREREHEEBHE) 2 WE
segment) at the aggregate amount of HK$2,425,997,000 H /8% 452,425997,0008 L (ZE—=4F:
(2013: HK$88,487,000). 88,487,000/ 7T) ©
Other Income 9. HfA
Other income for the year comprises: FRZHEMBABIE :
2014 2013
—E-IF —T—=F
HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FHETT
Interest received on bank deposits SRITERMELZ F B 4,588 3,103
Government grants NEdiSEGE) 12,490 12,506
Others A, 176 94
17,254 15,703
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
£ A 25 A B

For the year ended 31 March 2014
HE-Z—NF=A=1+—HILLFE

10. Directors’, the Chief Executive’s and Five 10. E5  THABKRALBESHE

Highest Paid Employees’ Emoluments Eife

(i) Details of Directors’ and the Chief () ESRTHARMESFHFENT :
Executive’s emoluments are as follows:
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the ten ENSEN TR (Z2E—=F: +4)
(2013: ten) Directors and the Chief Executive were as FEEFHRITBRBRHE CMenT -
follows:

Fees and other emoluments

HEREfMe
Salaries Retirement  Share-based
and other benefit payment Total
Fees benefits Bonuses costs expenses  emoluments
ek HRG LR
ik AR 4 EHERRE EPA-L HenE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tén Tién TiEn TEn Tén TEn
(note)
(&)
Mr. Pan .yt - 22,500 - 15 - 2515
M. Lai Chi Kin REERE 410 - - - - 410
Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen REXEL 34 - - - - 3
Dr. Cheung Kwan Wi BEREL m - - - - m
Mr. Ting Kwang Yuan, Edmond T ET5E - 3,534 289 15 454 4,292
Mr. Zhou Xiaojun FRELE - 1,942 139 95 454 2,630
Mr. Li Huamao FEREE - 1,346 84 81 454 191
Mr. Wong Hau Yan, Helvin 2ZR%E - 2,183 178 15 454 2,830
Ms. Chan Sau Yin, Anita Teresa* ~~ RAERL* - 370 - 1 10 381
Mr. Lee Chi Chung, Harvey " PEREE" - 2,200 200 1 835 320
Total for 2014 TE-MELE 1,024 34,075 890 235 2,661 38,885
@ Appointed as a Director on 28 February 2014 % RZZE—NF-_A=+/\BEZEA
TH
G Resigned as a Director on 28 February 2014 2 RZZE—NE-_A=+/\HEHIES
—B

132 GOLDIN PROPERTIES HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2014



10. Directors’, the Chief Executive’s and Five
Highest Paid Employees’ Emoluments
(Continued)

: NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B £ BV 255 e o Pk

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BHE_Z-NE=A=+—HIFE

. BEE - THARKRLERRSHE

S (&)

(i) Details of Directors’ and the Chief (i) EZRTHARMESFRNOT .
Executive’s emoluments are as follows: (#&)
(Continued)
Fees and other emoluments
HeRitbHE
Salaries Retirement Share-based
and other benefit payment Total
Fees benefits Bonuses costs expenses  emoluments
HER MR BER
ik A T RRENEA NEvE -G HWews
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tk T T T T T
(note)
()
Mr. Pan BEE - 22,500 - 15 - 22,515
Professor Huang Xiaojian* ~ EZRHE - 880 50 10 401 1341
Mr. Lai Chi Kin BER%EE 410 & = = . 410
Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen REXEL 341 L = 2 = 341
Dr. Cheung Kwan Wai PEFET 73 - - - - 273
Mr. Ting Kwang Yuan, Edmond T 754 = 3,341 138 15 1,267 4,761
Mr. Zhou Xiaojun FBEELE - 1,848 132 15 1,164 3,159
Mr. Li Huamao FERAE - 1,297 80 78 1,164 2,619
Mr. Wong Hau Yan, Hein ~~ EZEB%4 = 2,054 169 15 1,185 3,423
Mr. Lee Chi Chung, Harvey ~ ZEB%4E = 2,400 af 7 2,123 4,530
Total for 2013 —T-CFEE 1,024 34,320 569 {55 7,304 43,372
i Resigned as a Director on 29 November 2012 2 RZTE—ZF+—AZ+NBEEE

Note: The bonuses were determined with reference to the
duties and responsibilities of the Directors, as well
as remuneration benchmark in the industry and the

prevailing market conditions.

Mr. Pan is also the Chief Executive of the Company
and his emoluments disclosed above include those for

services rendered by him as the Chief Executive.

$_

&

st FEAVE2EEF R REEARTT
EHMRERZRITIREERE -

BRENARRBITRAR » LXK
B2 2R EERTRASMREHRE
ZHe -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B £ BV 255 e o P

For the year ended 31 March 2014
HE-Z—NF=A=1+—HILLFE

10. Directors’, the Chief Executive’s and Five
Highest Paid Employees’ Emoluments
(Continued)

(i) Employees’ emoluments:

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments
in the Group, four (2013: five) are the Directors of the
Company whose emoluments are disclosed above. In
2014, the emoluments of the remaining one individual
was an employee of the Group, details of whose
remuneration are as follows:

10. EE THHEABRLBRSEHE

EM<E (&)

(i) EEMSE :
EREBALSSHEALH  WE (=
T-=F:BR) AAREESE - KE
ZHEN EXHE c R-B—0E -
T—HBATATEEES - EBSHE
mE

2014 2013

—Z—MF —E—=fF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAET

Salaries and other benefits e REMER 3,244 -
Bonuses TEAT 210 -
Retirement benefits costs RIREFIBAR 9 -
3,463 -

The emoluments were within the following band:

WEZMESTFTIHE

2014 2013
=k —T-=F
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 87T % 3,500,000 87T 1 -

During both years, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to the Directors of the Company or the five
highest paid individuals of the Group as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of office. None of the Directors of the Company has
waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during both
years.
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11.

12.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B £ BV 255 e o Pk

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BHE_Z-NE=A=+—HIFE

Finance Costs 1. BB ER
2014 2013
—E—OF —T—=%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHT
Interest on: TAREBEZFE
— Finance leases -BMERE (33) (38)
- Bank borrowing - BITEK (24,656) (20,218)
— Shareholder’s loan wholly repayable - AR AERNEBHEER
within five years ZIRERER (92,410) (32,359)
— Loan from a related company - ARAFNEEER
wholly repayable within five years 2 BERAER (138,987) -
Effective interest expense ARES 2 BER A SR
on convertible bonds (35,324) (41,269)
(291,410) (93,884)
Less: Amount capitalised in investment W ERIREME CERN e
properties under construction 200,041 15,111
Amount capitalised in properties HEME BN SRE
for sale 66,680 53,576
(24,689) (25,197)
Note: All capitalised finance costs are related to specific borrowings. Mzt - FTE AL EAEEEEREM -

Gains on Derivatives

12. FTETE2hH

2014 2013
—E-NmEF —T—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHEIT
Fair value change on conversion option AARES 2 SR EEITET A
derivative of convertible bonds (note 35) ZRAFEES (FizE35) 20,549 4,350

1R A EE P I A ] R — O
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
£ A 25 A B

For the year ended 31 March 2014
HE-Z—NF=A=1+—HILLFE

13. Profit Before Tax 13. BRBEADEF
2014 2013
—Z-NmEF —T—=F
HK$'000 HK$’000
FHET FHT
Profit before tax has been arrived at BB AR HBR (A
after charging (crediting): UTEIE -
Auditors’ remuneration = EREMEN & 4,668 4,132
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments T E R 6,388 6,396
Depreciation of property, M - BERRETE
plant and equipment 122,509 120,226
Depreciation of ponies Brcie 9,049 9,279
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, BREWHE - WEL&RE
plant and equipment 2R () 26 (117)
Ponies written off B UT 3 815 1,314
Operating lease rentals in respects of HEMEZKEHERS
rented premises 15,900 15,124
Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments) B LKA (BHEESHE)
Salaries, bonuses and allowances E N A AW =4 257,712 228,675
Retirement benefit cost (note 41) RIREFIBA (HE41) 18,960 17,044
Share-based payment expenses ARR D RERERT R B A 24,470 67,767
301,142 313,486
Less: Amount capitalised in investment W EREREMEZERN TR
properties under construction (36,418) (18,876)
Amount capitalised in properties HEMEZERbEFE
for sale (24,278) (32,279)
240,446 262,331
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14. Income Tax Expense

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B £ BV 255 e o Pk

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BHEZ—NF=A=1+—HILFE

14. FIEHEREX

2014 2013
= Saone ik
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
The income tax expense comprises: FriSHiIEM B1F :
Current tax BNEATTE
- PRC Enterprise Income Tax - R EFEH (193,351) =
— PRC Land Appreciation Tax — B IR ER (187,704) =
(381,055) -
Overprovision in respect of prior periods BT BT AR
— Hong Kong Profits Tax - BENER 12,394 -
(368,661) -
Deferred tax (note 37) FEERIA (5E37) (177,078) (213,833)
Income tax expense for the year FEMSHAX (545,739) (213,833)

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as the
group companies operating in Hong Kong do not have any
assessable profits for both years.

The PRC Enterprise Income Tax is calculated at the rates
applicable to respective subsidiaries. Under the laws of the
PRC on Enterprise Income Tax and Implementation Regulation
of the Enterprise Income Tax Law, the tax rate applicable to the
PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January 2008 onwards.

The provision of the PRC Land Appreciation Tax is calculated
according to the requirements set forth in the relevant PRC tax
laws and regulations. The PRC Land Appreciation Tax has been
provided at ranges of progressive rates of the appreciation
value, with certain allowable deductions.

HRERBEENSEERRRZMEFE
YR ERBGEH - RYBARBENEF
Wik o

FREMSEMSHIZERARSHE R RRRE
T IRBEPESEAMERERDEMEH
EEBEN B ZEENF-A—AREHR
R BEAK B AR E R 25% °

o B S B 2 T B E B o
DR I B2 M frst - o B 5 (B
BREER REHERERE T TS
BaHE -

o SR E PR AT PR A T R — AR
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14. Income Tax Expense (Continued)

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the
profit before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B BB HR B A

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE-T-WE=A=+-AILFE

14. FIEBiAEMX (&)

loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

REFREHRAMX TEGEBER REM
EERETRE 2 RBADENERRAT -

2014 2013
—=—mEF —E—=F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FBT FAT
Profit before tax MR AT 1,401,327 281,801
Tax charge at the domestic income tax BARMPAETE 25%
rate of 25% (2013: 25%) (ZF—=F :25%)
FFE BB (350,332) (70,450)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries ~ fEEfth Bl ARER €& 2 & A A
operating in other jurisdictions [GESRNEE a7 (11,994) (13,396)
Tax effect of income not taxable BRI S BAERTUA
for tax purpose 2B e 5,300 1,047
Tax effect of expenses not deductible FEREL E MR
for tax purpose LSRR (7,929) (24,300)
Tax effect of intragroup profit SRR ZHRIETE = (2,955)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised WEER Z HIBEERZ RiETE (95,258) (101,527)
PRC Land Appreciation Tax PR+ IR E R (187,704) =
Tax effect of PRC Land Appreciation Tax H A B+ IR ER 2 g 2 46,926 -
Overprovision in respect of prior periods ia T HAR R R R 12,394 -
Utilisation of tax losses previously EARIEAARER 2 BIAEE
not recognised 37,035 -
Others Hity 5,823 (2,252)
Tax charge for the year FEREAESH (545,739) (213,833)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ey B 5 A B B
i "*.!"" - For the year ended 31 March 2014
e | BE_F-ME=A=+—HILEE
W
i
e
15. Dividends 15. BRE
No dividend was paid or proposed by the Directors of the AAREFW BN FERRNMEFE 2
Company for both years, nor has any dividend been proposed IRE - B ¥ BAAR PA SR IR A 2 3 IR (<A AT AR
since the end of the reporting period. Bhe
16. Earnings Per Share 16. BRER
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share RABIHEA ABIEEBRERREERAIRE
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the THIBEAE

following data:

2014 2013
—E-ImF —E—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHT
Earnings 27
Earnings for the purpose of basic earnings ~ BREIEBREREF 2 & F
per share (Profit for the year attributable (RATHB AEEFEEHN)
to owners of the Company) 855,588 67,968
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: BE#EEHEE B F &
Fair value change on conversion option TTQHQ{T%ZRTQE%E
derivatives of convertible bonds PTETAREZNFEES) (20,549) (4,350)
Interest on Convertible Bonds due 2012 RZE——F 25
Z AR ESF B - 4,941
Exchange gain in relation to liability EiEEEREARRESEE
component of convertible bonds BB E RS
recognised in profit or loss (5,423) (2,685)
Earnings for the purpose of ARG ESREERT
diluted earnings per share 2 &F 829,616 65,874
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B £ BV 255 e o P

For the year ended 31 March 2014
HE-Z—NF=A=1+—HILLFE

16. Earnings Per Share (Continued) 16. SREF (&)
2014 2013
—E—OF —E-=F
Number Number
of shares of shares
RHEE ghar = ¢E|
Number of shares RHEE
Weighted average number of ordinary AR EBREREF
shares for the purpose of basic earnings 2 B N AR B
per share 3,566,963,841  3,563,646,943
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares:  EEESE B 2 FE
— Share options - MEfeE 24,539,326 23,964,450
— Convertible bonds - AIRRES 38,177,545 53,892,465
Weighted average number of ordinary AR ESREE R
shares for the purpose of diluted 2 B N T IR
earnings per share 3,629,680,712 3,641,503,858

The computation of diluted earnings per share for both years
ended 31 March 2014 and 31 March 2013 does not assume
the exercise of certain of the Company’s share options as the
exercise price was higher than the average market price per
share for both years.
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... NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17. Property, Plant and Equipment

B £ BV 255 e o Pk

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BHEZ—NF=A=1+—HILFE

17. ¥1% - BERR®E

THE GROUP KEH
Hotel and Furniture,
polo club Plantand  Leasehold fixtures and Motor
Buildings  properties  machinery improvements  equipment vehicles Total
BEER i
BT FHENE KERRE AENEEE  ZERRE RE @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TATL TATL TATL TAL TATL TAL TAL
(note)
(3E)
AT COST K&
At 1 April 2012 RZZ-—FMA-H 3,661 2,832,612 748 5,549 106,734 52,299 3,001,603
Exchange realignment X B 51 35,019 10 = 1,389 699 37,168
Additions bl - - - - 46,513 10,626 57,139
Disposals HE = s S E (7,176) (117) (7,293)
At 31 March 2013 RZZ-=F=A=+-RH 3712 2,867,631 758 5,549 147,460 63,507 3,088,617
Exchange realignment  EX 5% (5) (3,239) (1) = (174) (64) (3,483)
Additions SN 9,311 - - - 11,711 1,669 22,691
Disposals & i E = = (501) = (501)
Cost adjustment KAAE = (317,920) = = 3 = (317,920
At 31 March 2014 RZZ-EE=A=+—A 13018 2,546,472 757 5,549 158,496 65,112 2,789,404
DEPRECIATION e
At 1 April 2012 RZE-—FMA—H 223 25,284 748 5443 27,755 14,305 73,758
Exchange realignment  EXBE 3 355 10 - 317 186 871
Provided for the year FRAER 148 76,789 = 106 31,288 11,895 120,226
Eliminated on disposals ~ H&EREH L 2 = = (7,070) (105) (7,175)
At 31 March 2013 RWZZ-=f#=A=+-H 374 102,428 758 5,549 52,290 26,281 187,680
Exchange realignment ~ EX % A (131) (1) = (57) (29) (218)
Provided for the year FERE 185 76,703 - - 33,633 11,988 122,509
Eliminated on disposals L EREH = 3 = L (475) = (475)
At 31 March 2014 RZZ-mE=A=+-H 559 179,000 757 5,549 85,391 38,240 309,49
CARRYING AMOUNTS %R
At 31 March 2014 RZIZ-WE=A=1-H 12,459 2,367,472 - - 73,105 26,872 2,479,908
At 31 March 2013 RZB-=F=A=1+-H 3338 2,765,203 - - 95,170 37,226 2,900,937
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B £ BV 255 e o P

For the year ended 31 March 2014
HE-Z—NF=A=1+—HILLFE

17. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued) 17.

W% - BERRE (&)

THE COMPANY /N |
Motor vehicle
RE
HK$'000
FET
AT COST R
At 1 April 2012 R-ZE——FMA—H =
Addition 0 850
At 31 March 2013 and 31 March 2014 RZE—=F=ZA=+—RAKk=-FT—WF=A=+—H 850
DEPRECIATION e
At 1 April 2012 R-ZT——_FWHA—H =
Provided for the year FEEE 113
At 31 March 2013 R-ZZET—=F=HA=+—H 113
Provided for the year FREE 170
At 31 March 2014 R-E—NFE=A=+—H 283
CARRYING AMOUNT BRE{E
At 31 March 2014 R-E—NE=A=+—H 567
At 31 March 2013 RNEE = SE=1H = 7—H 737

The buildings are located on land held under long lease and

are located in the PRC.

The hotel properties are located on land held under medium-

term lease and are located in the PRC.

The polo club properties are located on land owned by X
EHRMEXEREEEZEE Administrative Committee
of Tianjin Hi-Tech Industry Park. During the year ended 31
March 2009, REHEMEXEREIEZ S E Administrative
Committee of Tianjin Hi-Tech Industry Park had granted the
Group with the right to use such land for 40 years provided
that the Group was committed to construct the polo club
with minimum investment of RMB160,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$180,800,000). The Group had already reached the
committed minimum investment during the year ended

31 March 2010.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)

The carrying amount of the furniture, fixtures and equipment
of the Group in respect of assets held under finance leases was
HK$196,000 (2013: HK$314,000).

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates per
annum:

Over the estimated useful life of
20 years, or the unexpired term
of the relevant lease, whichever
is shorter

Over the estimated useful life of
40 years, or the unexpired term
of the relevant lease, whichever
is shorter

10%-20%

Over the estimated useful life of
5 years or the unexpired term of
the relevant lease, whichever is
shorter

20%-33"/3%

Buildings

Hotel and polo club
properties

Plant and machinery
Leasehold improvements

Furniture, fixtures

and equipment

Motor vehicles 20%

Note: As at 31 March 2014, the carrying amount of hotel properties
of the Group amounted to approximately HK$1,579,875,000
(2013: HK$2,023,821,000) while the carrying amount of
polo club properties of the Group amounted to approximately
HK$787,597,000 (2013: HK$741,382,000).

During the year, the Directors conducted a review of the
Group’s hotel and polo club properties and determined that
those assets were not impaired after the consideration of
the expectations on the market development and business
growth of the hotel and polo club after the completion of the
residential and commercial properties in the same area being
developed by the Group. Accordingly, no impairment loss was
required to be recognised in respect of the Group’s hotel and
polo club properties for the year.

17.

B 7 B e A P

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BHEZ—NF=A=1+—HILFE

W% - BERRE (&)

AEEEZTURMEHEREZGM EER
R 2 BRTEIE A 196,000 (ZT— =4 :
314,000/ 7C) °

EiimE - BERRBABREIZ TIIFEEX
e

BF iy s S AEAIN
FHRHBEREE
H AEEHE
)

m+F 2 EEAER
FHRHBBEREE
B (AEEHE
REE)

10%-20%

hFZEEAIER
FHRHGEREE
HA (AR HE
REE)

20%-33"/5%

BIERSBEEME

s KA
HEMREE

B KERRE

B 20%

i : R=T—mE=A=+—A XEBAED
¥ 2 REEXA1,579,875,000% 0 (=&
— =4 :2,023,821,0007C) * MALES
ey 2 REERL A 787,597,000 T
(ZZ—=% :741,382,000/87T) °

FR - EEOREUARBZEELTHEY
¥ YREBHEERSHRENSHERE
AEERBRA-wEFAZEZETRERYE
ERBREEBIER AR - BERSEE
VEBERE - Bt - FRABARAREE
JE RS E YR ERRERE o

SR E R A RA T R PO
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
£ A 25 A B

For the year ended 31 March 2014
HEZ-NME=A=+—HIFE

18. Ponies 18. BT
THE GROUP
TEE
HK$'000
FAT

AT COST 2%
At 1 April 2012 R-ZT——FmMA—H 64,574
Exchange realignment M N AR 862
Additions o 261
Written off H 5 (1,521)
At 31 March 2013 R=F =F=A=t-H 64,176
Exchange realignment IE V0% (78)
Written off H5H (1,010)
At 31 March 2014 RZEBE—NF=A=+—H 63,088
DEPRECIATION e
At 1 April 2012 RZZE—Z—FMA—H 4,181
Exchange realignment M A B 59
Provided for the year FERE 9,279
Elimination on written off S PR A 8 (207)
At 31 March 2013 R == = = e 13,312
Exchange realignment HE A B (16)
Provided for the year FERE 9,049
Elimination on written off it S RF A 8 (195)
At 31 March 2014 R-_ZE—NFE=R=+—H 22,150
CARRYING AMOUNT BREE
At 31 March 2014 R-ZE—NMF=A=+—H 40,938
At 31 March 2013 RZZE—=%=RA=+—H 50,864
Ponies are depreciated on a straight-line basis at 14.3% per BB REIETF 14.3% ZITERTE -
annum.
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For the year ended 31 March 2014
BHEZ—NF=A=1+—HILFE

“-h-ﬂwi""'"
19. Investment Properties 19. REW=E
THE GROUP
rEE
HK$'000
FAT
At 1 April 2012 RZE——FMA—H 8,087,981
Exchange realignment Rk 109,998
Construction cost incurred and FREEA 2 B A N E bR
capitalised expenditure 1,636,818
Increase in fair value recognised in Es R 2 A FEE M
profit or loss 855,332
At 31 March 2013 RZE—=F=A=+—H 10,690,129
Exchange realignment R (13,314)
Construction cost incurred and FREA 2 BEM AR EREFX
capitalised expenditure 3,438,005
Increase in fair value recognised in PiEmER 2 A EE M
profit or loss 708,312
At 31 March 2014 R-ZE-ME=A=+—H 14,823,132

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties at
31 March 2014 and 31 March 2013 have been arrived at on
the basis of valuation carried out on these dates by Savills
Valuation and Professional Services Limited, an independent
qualified professional valuer not connected with the Group,
who has appropriate qualifications and recent experiences in
the valuation of similar properties in the relevant locations.

In estimating the fair values of the Group’s investment
properties, the highest and best use of the properties is their
current use.

AEBREYMER _FT-—HF=A=+—H
R-_ZB—=F=ZA=+—HAZAFE" T3k
EHEAKEMEREZ BT A EREEM
BEEE - A FRENHEREXERERA
AIRNZERHMAER Z AEFE - ZEEM
REREREUDEAETHABREE
& AT B

REEFAARBEREVEORFER - ZEY
FNESEBEMKERGR/ERKRE -

o SR E PR AT PR A T R — AR
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19. Investment Properties (Continued)

The valuation of the Group’s investment properties under
construction is determined with reference to the fair value of
the bare land plus construction costs incurred. The fair value of
the bare land has been arrived at by adopting the comparison
approach and making reference to the market transactions as
available in the markets, with adjustments made to account
for various factors including geographical location of the
properties, availability of transportation system and public
facilities and the estimated development period of the Group’s
investment properties under construction. The valuer has also
determined on the basis that the Group’s investment properties
under construction will be developed and completed in
accordance with the latest development proposals and taken
into account the construction costs that will be expended to
complete the development as well as developer’s profit margin
to reflect the quality of the completed development.

There were no changes to the valuation techniques during the
year.

All of the Group’s property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals purpose are measured using the fair
value model and are classified and accounted for as investment
properties.

All of the Group’s investment properties are under construction
and located on leasehold lands in the PRC under medium-term
leases.

The following table gives information about how the fair
values of these investment properties are determined including
the inputs used, as well as the fair value hierarchy into which
the fair value measurements are categorised (Levels 1 to 3)
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurements. There were no transfers
between Level 1 and Level 2 or transfers into or out of Level 3
during the year.
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19. REWZ ()

AEBGERREME2GE  N2ERHEE
o2 REASI B BIERAEE - B H
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ZM5ERG  WREZHEREBREYE 2 HE
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19. Investment Properties (Continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2014
BHEZ—NF=A=1+—HILFE

19. REWE (F)

Investment

properties

held by the

Group in the

consolidated

statement Significant Relationship of

of financial unobservable unobservable inputs

position Fair value hierarchy Key inputs inputs to fair value Sensitivity
REBBRRER

AR EEBREN EENTATEEN FEESE R A RS

REMHE DNFEER TE@ABE BWARE BEATFENBERE BRBE

At 31 March

2014

W-ZT—mE

=A=+—8

Investment Level 3 The key inputs are Unit rate of bare land The higher the unit A significant increase
properties under  FE = (1) Unitrate of bare  value, taking into rate of bare land in the unit rate of
construction land value account of location value, the higher the bare land value would
that are (2)  Construction and individual factors fair value. result in a significant

measured at fair
value located in
Tianjin

KR RZERERE

BEMEERAT

=6

cost incurred
FEHABUE
(1) HHMEBEZER
(2) TEBZEERA

such as geographical
location of the
properties, availability
of transportation
system and public
facilities, with the
comparables, at
gross floor area of
RMB6,692 per square
metres.
=BEZEE (EE
FREYE 2B LA
alllzSE=3rak/E Spdikdiva
B FTABNRZBERS
KRR HETET
KBEEEE) AR
#6,692 7T °

Construction cost
incurred, taking into
account of progress
of the properties, at
gross floor area of
RMBS5,020 per square
metres.
EBZZEERRN (BE
M BEER) B
BEHK (BEEE
&) AR¥5,0207T °

ZEE BELR -
RFEBK -

The higher the
construction cost
incurred, the higher
the fair value.

EB 2 EERAYR
DTHEBK ©

increase in fair value
and vice versa.
RMEE EEAE
FIEERANFEAEL
F o RZIRA ©

No sensitivity analysis
for construction cost
incurred since they
are derived from the
existing construction
cost incurred as at the
date of valuation.
HREE Z AT
PTEBREEB RS
= 0f= =90 % ]l
B RUILEBRED T

1R A EE P I A ] R — O
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5 A5 H R i
For the year ended 31 March 2014
HE-Z—NF=A=1+—HILLFE

20. Other Assets

The Group

The other assets amounted to RMB286,335,000 (equivalent to
HK$325,277,000) represented land use rights acquired from
REGFLERERMAR A F Tianjin Hi-Tech Holding Group
Company Limited (“Tianjin Hi-Tech Holding"”) through
the acquisition of assets and liabilities of Goldin Properties
(Tianjin) Company Limited during the year ended 31 March
2009, which would be disposed of within twelve months
subsequent to year ended 31 March 2009 (the "“Disposal”).
The land use rights were located on leasehold lands in the PRC
under medium-term leases and carried at the lower of cost
and fair value less cost to sell. A deposit of RMB270,000,000
(equivalent to HK$306,720,000) was received from Tianjin Hi-
Tech Holding during the year ended 31 March 2009.

At 31 March 2011, the Directors reassessed the probability
of the completion of the Disposal. It was considered that the
Disposal would probably be terminated due to the change
of development plan of the purchaser. Accordingly, the land
use rights amounted to RMB286,335,000 (equivalent to
HK$340,739,000) was classified as other assets under non-
current assets. The deposit of RMB270,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$321,300,000) was classified as deposit received in advance
included in trade and other payables as at 31 March 2011.
Details of trade and other payables are set out in note 31(d).

As at 31 March 2014, 2013 and 2012, the Disposal was not
yet terminated nor completed. Accordingly, the land use rights
subject to the Disposal remained accounted for as other assets
and the deposit received in advance was included in trade and
other payables as at 31 March 2014. As at 31 March 2014,
other assets and the deposit received in advance included
in trade and other payables amounted to RMB286,335,000
(equivalent to HK$357,632,000) (2013: RMB286,335,000
(equivalent to HK$358,091,000)) and RMB270,000,000
(equivalent to HK$337,230,000) (2013: RMB270,000,000
(equivalent to HK$337,662,000)), respectively.
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20. HttEE

AEE

H b & E A R #286,335,0007T (8 % %
325,277,000 L) BEBREBEE_ZEZT N
FZA=+—HLFEARKEERERSE
EERAR ([RESRFER]) WESE
E(X2) BRARZEERAEMESY
T ERE MZIwEREERHEE—Z
ThE=ZA=+—RALFEEET+-_BEARK
& ((HESEE]) - TEMEATSHEERS
B WRRPEBE i F BIRKAREQAF
BERHERAZREEIR REZE=_ZT
NWEZA=Z+—HLEFER  BHXEEHR
PRRZURER IR & A R #E 270,000,000 7T (FAEH
306,720,000587T) o

R_ZE——F=ZA=+—H EFEHTH
SEREERBE AN RAELESEFEE
EEFEEERTMPLL - Bt - BH
A R 286,335,000 7T (#8554 340,739,000
BIL) 2 L REDRE AR EEE
TZHEMEE -RZE—F=ZA=+—
B #%&& A R¥270,000,0007C (% R
321,300,000/87T) EFBEABWIES - 5T A
FERTBR IR R B Ath FE AT 500 » R BRI R EoAth
FERT BB AR FE31(d) °

RZE—WF T =FRk=-_F—=-F=
A=+—RH EEFHEMAKLILERTEX
Hitr W-E—ME=/A=+—08 " B
HEEBET 2 ERENREMEEA
BR - MIBMIR S AIET A B AR AR R H Ath &
NHBE - R_T—NFEF=ZA=+—H H
tEERTABRMERREMENKEZ
AR & o Bl B A R 286,335,000 7T (18
£ 357,632,000 L) (ZE—=F: A
R 286,335,000 T ( 48 % 7 358,091,000
) K& A R #270,000,0007T (18 & %
337,230,000 L) (ZE—ZF: ARK
270,000,000t (#85#2337,662,000/7T) ) °
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For the year ended 31 March 2014
BHE_Z-NE=A=+—HIFE

21. Prepaid Lease Payments 21. ARHEERIE
THE GROUP
REE
2014 2013
—E-IF —E-=F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Analysed for reporting purposes as: BIRE B HIELH DT
Current portion ENE D 6,388 6,396
Non-current portion ERBE D 245,151 251,861
251,539 258,257
The Group’s prepaid lease payments REE 2 ENHEERIEE
represent land use rights in the PRC R B T3t A
and comprise: B
Long lease RS 82,592 84,373
Medium-term lease FRESEE 168,947 173,884
251,539 258,257

As at 31 March 2014 and 31 March 2013, the carrying
amount of land use rights used for hotel operation
amounted to approximately RMB135,266,000 (equivalent to
HK$168,947,000) (2013: RMB139,041,000 (equivalent to
HK$173,884,000)).

R_FE—NF=ZA=+—HBER=_FE—=F=
A=+—H8 #ABAEXEHER 2 LER
HEBREEX A AR 135,266,000 7T (HE
7R 168,947,000/87L) (ZT—=F : AR¥K
139,041,000 (485552173,884,00077T) ) °

1R A EE P I A ] R — O
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For the year ended 31 March 2014
HE-Z—NF=A=1+—HILLFE

22. Intangible Assets 22. B EE
Club
debentures
SFES
HK$'000
FHT
THE GROUP AND THE COMPANY AEERAEALNT
AT COST 2%
At 1 April 2012, 31 March 2013 R_ZE——FMA—H - —FE—=F=A=1+—H
and 31 March 2014 R_ZE-—ME=A=+—H 610
AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT B R REE
At 1 April 2012, 31 March 2013 R-EBE——FWA—H - —T—=F=A=+—H
and 31 March 2014 R—Z—ME=A=+—H 520
CARRYING AMOUNT REE
At 31 March 2013 and 31 March 2014 R-B-=5=A=+-HAR-Z2-H0F=A=+—-H 20
The amount represents the club debentures which are having ZCRA/BMES  BEERAIEAFE
an indefinite useful life because they are expected to generate JRE R B B E 5 T8 5 7] MR HA 2 A 48 % 7
economic benefit indefinitely. The club debentures are tested o BTERRFLEMERITRERR
for impairment annually by reference to the market value.
23. Deposits Paid for Acquisition of Property, 23. BEY% - BERRHFSHRE
Plant and Equipment
The Group TEH
As at 31 March 2014, deposits paid by the Group amounting RZZE-—WFEF=RA=+—H ' A%5EE
to approximately HK$11,289,000 (2013: HK$7,223,000) were 42 & 411,289,000 70 (ZF — =4
mainly in relation to the acquisition of property, plant and 7,223,000/87T) £ B HEpLEE & GG ¥
equipment for hotel and polo club operation. BEVE BMEMREEH -
24. Inventories 24. 78
THE GROUP
REE
2014 2013
—ZT-mF —T=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
Food, wine and beverage and general stores B%) B RKEHAR —RFE 65,333 63,393
Polo products BIREMR 10,249 5,354
75,582 68,747
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25. Investments in Subsidiaries 25. MBARRE
THE COMPANY
FNE|
2014 2013
—E-OF ZE—=F
HK$'000 HK$’000
FHET FHT
Unlisted shares, at cost JE TR - HRAA 1,464,144 1,467,157
Deemed capital contribution in subsidiaries R {E T EME LR (M)
(note) 2,848,605 2,117,111
4,312,749 3,584,268
Less: Impairment loss recognised B BHERZ BB (1,733,291) (1,217,922)
2,579,458 2,366,346
Note: Deemed capital contribution in subsidiaries represented the MiET : ARIET BB R B FE Rt U B A B SRR
adjustments on the carrying amounts of amounts due from EEEHZHZ - ARBREFTEHEAA - 5t
subsidiaries to reflect their new amortised cost, calculated using HE IR E R A EE RAABTEAEROE
effective interest rate and the relevant expected repayment (BN pEURPT B N RIFRIEZ EETFIE) ©
terms (i.e., the imputed interests on amounts due from
subsidiaries).
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at RAAREEZEMBARIRZ-_Z—NF=A
31 March 2014 and 31 March 2013 are set out in note 46. = e R — TR S e a B Bk
During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Directors of the R4 BE_Z-—WNF=A=+—
Company reviewed the carrying values of the investments. HIEFE ARREZEEHZSREZE
The recoverable amounts of these investments for the year HE - FAZSHREZATKRESENS2ZE
are determined with reference to the Directors’ estimate EERBEHREZEIREZRKRBER
of discounted future cash flows and net assets of these ERENEEFEBEZMEEE - Bt -
investments as at the end of the reporting period. Accordingly, 8 B B548518,096,000/8 7T ( =T — =4 ¢
impairment loss of HK$518,096,000 (2013: HK$677,843,000) 677,843,000/870) RARRIER KEMEE

was recognised in the Company’s statement of profit or loss W& AR ©
and other comprehensive income.

o SR E PR AT PR A T R — AR
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For the year ended 31 March 2014
HE-Z—NF=A=1+—HILLFE

26. Properties For Sale 26. SHEWE
THE GROUP
NEE

2014 2013
—F-mF —F—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHEIT
Completed properties for sale BERTHEMSE 372,534 -
Properties under development for sale BRAPGFEYE 7,666,377 7,322,431
8,038,911 7,322,431

The Group's properties for sale are situated in the PRC.
All properties for sale are carried at lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Included in properties under development for sale as at
31 March 2014 are properties which are not expected
to be completed and/or available for sale within twelve
months from the end of the reporting period amounting to
RMB3,740,929,000 (equivalent to HK$4,672,420,000) (2013:
RMB2,727,598,000 (equivalent to HK$3,411,134,000)).

27. Trade and Other Receivables, Prepayments 27.

and Deposits

REBZHEENRUNTE - FIAEHEME
THIRRK AN B A] B3R R E MBI E AR o

R-ZE—ME=ZA=+—8 EETEFED
¥PEBHEINHERRET T -EAR
TR AR E I MENSEAARE
3,740,929,000 7t ( 48 % 14 4,672,420,0007%5
T(ZE—=%F: AR¥2,727,598,0007T
(FZ57143,411,134,00087T) ) ©

PR BR R e H AL R UL RRIR - FAfY
RERES

THE GROUP
REE
2014 2013
—=—mEF —E—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Trade receivables FEUBR R 135,944 19,736
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts B REREE = (1,225)
135,944 18,511
Other receivables and prepayments EL A e WGRIE R IR AN 58 333,605 236,783
Deposits e 11,785 13,049
Total trade and other receivables, JFEE LB R e L A PR UR RO
prepayments and deposits TENFRIBERIZS BT 481,334 268,343
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27. Trade and Other Receivables, Prepayments

and Deposits (Continued)

As at 31 March 2014 and 31 March 2013, other receivables
and prepayments mainly include (i) the amount of
RMB42,929,000 (equivalent to HK$53,619,000) (2013:
RMB42,929,000 (equivalent to HK$53,687,000)) which
represented receivable from Tianjin Hi-Tech Property
Development Company Limited (“Tianjin Hi-Tech Property”)
in respect of the corresponding tax liability paid and payable
in respect of waiver of shareholders’ loans in which Tianjin
Hi-Tech Property has agreed to bear upon the acquisition of
assets and liabilities of X2ZEH B HR /A ] Tianjin Huading
Real Estate Company Limited (“Huading”), a subsidiary
acquired during the year ended 31 March 2009. The amount
is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand; and (ii)
prepayments for construction materials of HK$193,505,000
(2013: HK$106,496,000).

As at 31 March 2014, included in trade and other receivables,
prepayments and deposits of the Group are trade receivables
(net of allowance for doubtful debts) of HK$135,944,000
(2013: HK$18,511,000), of which HK$132,702,000 (2013:
nil) are to be settled based on the terms of sales and purchase
agreements of completed properties for sale and not yet due.

The Group allows an average credit period of 30 days to its
customers for certain services rendered by the Group. The
Group’s trade receivables net of allowance for doubtful debts
from hotel and polo club operation based on the invoice date
at the end of the reporting period, which approximated the
respective revenue recognition dates, was within the age of 60
days.

The Group maintains a defined credit policy to assess the
credit quality of each counterparty. The collection is closely
monitored to minimise any credit risk associated with these
trade debtors.

27.

& WA 5 H R Bt
For the year ended 31 March 2014
BHEZ—NF=A=1+—HILFE

PR BR R e H A FEULRRIR - FAfS
MERES ()

RZE—NWE=ZA=+—HBR-_E—=F=
A=+—H8 HEtEWRBERENRBEEE
BREORXZBEEEHERAZER AR ([X
ERREHE]) ARRBEREZELKEXER
PRI ([ER] —EREBEE-_ZTNF=A
=t+—RALFEREBZHBAR) 2EER
BERREAENERRTEERME M RER
ZAERIBAGEMRRAEERFEIEZ K
TH A R 42,929,000 7T (#8572 53,619,000
BL) (ZE—=9F: ARKR%42,929,0007T
(¥8 % 7153,687,000/8 7T)) » sZ X JE A &
i 2B RIREREERE RHEEYH
8 {5 3 78 193,505,000/ 7T ( — & — =4 :
106,496,000 7T ) °

R-TE—NEZA=+—8  AEEHNER
AR H A U GRIE « B R IERR S BE
FE 4 BR 3R (0 BR R BR 8 48) 135,944,000 7%
T (=T —=4%:18511,000/87T) * EF
132,702,000 (ZE—=F : T) #RE
BHERTMEZEERZNERMEEL
i AREE o

AEERERRZETRELETEL,FEY
=tTRZEEH - REEHR - AEELHN
B R AR B R 2B S RS IR g R AR K
RiFHZEEH (ExhafER BHRY) 28k
BRIEFRANTEA

AEERSAREERR  UFEERSZ7
MEEEE - KRDEBEEEE - ABRE
HZERWSRE BN EEAEER
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27. Trade and Other Receivables, Prepayments
and Deposits (Continued)

In determining the recoverability of a trade receivable, the
Group considers any change in the credit quality of the trade
receivable from the date credit was initially granted up to the
end of the reporting period. The concentration of credit risk is
limited due to the customer base being large and unrelated.
Accordingly, the Directors of the Company believe that there
is no further provision required except for the allowance for
doubtful debts already made as set out below.

27.

P i B K % EL A PE RO - TR
BERES (F

BETE W AR SRR O 2 M B - ANEREE B
WERBNAREEMEERERRZER
BEREME - R EPERBEARE T
= EERRNEREERR - &L - A2
AIEEME - BTSSR 2 RERBEI
BEE— SRR

Movements in the allowance for doubtful RIREEEE
debts

2014 2013
=F-mF —E=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHxT FAT
At 1 April RIUA—H 1,225 1,295
Exchange realignment IE 3 3% - (70)
Written off during the year F S (1,225) =
At 31 March R=A=+—8H = 1,225

The Group’s trade and other receivables, prepayments and
deposits that are denominated in currencies other than the
functional currency of the relevant group entities are set out

NEEEEER 2GRN BB RE
i 2 A< 62 B FE MR 3R % L M e W 3K0R ~ TR A
BRI

below:
usD HKD
EYH BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
At 31 March 2014 RZE—NF=A=+—H 8 14,278
At 31 March 2013 RZE—=FMH—H 8 6,633

None of the Company’s trade and other receivables were
denominated in currency other than the functional currency of
the Company.

GOLDIN PROPERTIES HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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28. Amount Due from a Related Company 28. B —MEEE A RRIEA
The Group rEHE
Maximum
Balance Balance amount
at at outstanding
Name of related company 31.3.2014 1.4.2013 during the year
R-ZB—OF R=Z—=F
SIHIE = MA—H FRARS
BELARER ZEEER ZEERR REBSHE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T THET THET
Smart Edge Limited BEARAA = 864 864

Smart Edge Limited is a subsidiary of Goldin Financial Holdings
Limited (“GFHL"), and Mr. Pan is a non-executive director, the
chairman and the controlling shareholder of GFHL.

The amount due from a related company which was of trade
nature, was unsecured, interest-free and was aged within
30 days based on the invoice date, which approximated
the respective revenue recognition dates, at the end of the
reporting period.

29. Amounts Due from Subsidiaries/Amounts 29.
Due to Subsidiaries

The Company

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured and interest-
free. The effective interest rate used to determine the fair
value of these amounts at initial recognition was 5% (2013:
5%) per annum. The subsidiaries are not expected to repay the
advances within twelve months from the end of the reporting
period and the balances are classified as non-current.

The amounts due to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free
and repayable on demand.

The Company’s amounts due from subsidiaries and
amounts due to subsidiaries of HK$5,947,680,000 and
HK$139,823,000 respectively (2013: HK$5,995,200,000 and
HK$139,823,000 respectively) are denominated in HKD, a
currency other than the functional currency of the Company.

BEERLAASRTH (EE) BRLQA
(IBHREm)) 2MBAR  BRERRER
EMIIFMTESR - TEFRIFRBR -

El—MREQRFBEBE S Y « EIKIE
FeBs  RERBEHRZEZBHZRE
730 AR - BN IR ERR B BT

V& W B R 2 R RRIE PR B R
CIE S|

VNN

FEWHBEARFIEAERIEREE - BIEE
TEZEFBEREBREREZ AFEZERE
FRESY% (ZT—=4F : 5%) Bt EH
BARTeRREHRET - —@EARER
B3R MABRBEHTIEIERBNER

ENMBARFRREER R RARE

AN A B U B A BRI K e B A B3k
I8 % Bl 4 5,947,680,000 7% 7T & 139,823,000
BT (ZE—=%F : 5 5145,995,200,000 %
JCX% 139,823,000 7T) * JILAAKRARIIIEEE
KA INZ EBTLRTE ©
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30. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents

The Group’s cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash, bank
balances and time deposits with original maturity of less than
three months. The Group’s cash and cash equivalents that are
denominated in currencies other than RMB, the functional
currency of the relevant group entities are set out below:

30. RERBFESEEY

RERREEEY

AEERGLRSFEMERERE  RITH
FRERBMAR=EARZEMER - K&
BARBEEEERIEEEAREITUNINZ
ERHEZRE MR SSEMEINMNT

AUD uUsD HKD
BT ES BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHEIT FHEIT FHET

Cash and cash equivalents RekH2EE
At 31 March 2014 R-ZE—NF=A=+—H 54 96,673 5,305
At 31 March 2013 R-ZZE—=%=fF=+—H 61 55,457 1,811

The Company’s cash and cash equivalents that are
denominated in currencies other than RMB, the functional
currency of the Company are set out below:

ARBARNEEEARE AN BB HE
2R MREEEWEINGT

usbD HKD
EH BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT

Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEEFEY
At 31 March 2014 R=-2B-NE=A=+-—H 34 4,626
At 31 March 2013 R-ZE—=%=A=+—H 34 1,127

The Group and the Company’s bank balances carry interest at
market rates which range from 0.01% to 1.49% (2013: 0.01%
t0 0.4%) per annum.
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31. Trade and Other Payables

31.
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PR BRAR R EL b PR FRIR

An aged analysis of trade payables, presented based on the RIWER  BNERFBBEEREHIEZHR
invoice date, at the end of the reporting period is set out as RECO T T -
follows:
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
REE AATF
2014 2013 2014 2013
—ENE —FT—=F ZT-WOFE —ZT—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FAT
0-90 days 0%90H 437,862 1,407,946 - —
91-180 days 91%&180H = Al - _
Over 180 days 180 HEA L - 1,881 - -
Total trade payables JEfTER R4 EE 437,862 1,409,827 - -
Construction cost payables JERT R LA A FRIA
(note a) (Mizxa) 2,101,495 1,192,142 - =
Retention payables (note b) FEFHRE TiE5R0E
(FizEDb) 1,079,627 473,797 - =
Total trade and construction FEFTBR R SRR EE
cost payables AN FRIE B ER 3,618,984 3,075,766 = 5
Dividend payable FERTRR S 1,102 1,102 1,102 1,102
Other payables (note c) HE b 5RIE
(BizEC) 381,523 212,477 986 2,383
Deposits received in advance FElRE (Fid)
(note d) 839,328 337,662 - -
Polo club membership fees B EE
received in advance SHEEH 71,193 61,490 - -
Others (note e) EAth (FfzEe) 59,742 97,047 - &
4,971,872 3,785,544 2,088 3,485
Notes: Mf&E -

(@  Construction cost payables represented the payables on

construction costs incurred for the development of investment

properties and hotel and polo club properties.

(b)  Retention payables are expected to be paid after twelve months

from the end of the reporting period upon the expiry of the

retention periods in accordance with the respective contracts.

(a)

(b)

ISR A SIRIR IR B M LA ROB 5 X 55
BREVEBRATES 2 EEERA -

FERE TR SRR TR M i 3R 5 B R =t
T EARREHIRESAOZIIE (T

SR E R A RA T R PO
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31. Trade and Other Payables (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

()

As at 31 March 2014 and 31 March 2013, the amount of
the Group mainly represented consideration payable of
RMB89,912,000 (equivalent to HK$112,300,000) (2013:
RMB89,912,000 (equivalent to HK$112,444,000)) in relation
to the acquisition of a wholly-owned subsidiary, Tianjin Hi-
Tech Goldin Investment Company Limited (“Tianjin Hi-Tech
Goldin"”) during the year ended 31 March 2009; Tianjin Hi-
Tech Goldin has been merged with Goldin Properties (Tianjin)
Company Limited during the year ended 31 March 2011. The
amount was unsecured and repayable on demand.

Deposits received in advance represented (i) the deposit of
RMB270,000,000 (equivalent to HK$337,230,000) (2013:
RMB270,000,000 (equivalent to HK$337,662,000)) received
from Tianjin Hi-Tech Holding during the year ended 31 March
2009 and details of such deposit received in advance are set out
in note 20; and (ii) deposits received from potential purchasers
of properties for sale. The amounts are unsecured and interest-
free.

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Group received the
amount of RMB80,000,000 (equivalent to HK$100,048,000)
from REFRMEZXEEEEZ EE which represented
the prepayment of construction cost of education facilities being
developed by the Group on behalf of K EFT M7 E % B & &
I Z B E and the project management fee paid to the Group
amounting to RMB77,600,000 (equivalent to HK$97,047,000)
and RMB2,400,000 (equivalent to HK$3,001,000), respectively.
The Group expected to complete the construction on or before
31 August 2014. As at 31 March 2014 and 31 March 2013,
the outstanding balance represented such prepayment of
construction cost of education facilities which is used to offset
the relevant construction costs incurred for the development of
the education facilities by the Group. In addition, the project
management fee received was included in other payables in
which the amount is amortised on straight-line basis over the
construction period to profit or loss as project management fee
income.
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31. BENERARAEMENRE (&)

Mg ()

©

(d)

(e)

\ZE—F=A=+—BR=ZZ—=F=
=t+—H AEEFHSBEEEAREHE
SEANFZA=+—HLEFERARKES
EMBRARREERRRIZLEARAR ([X
EEREER]) 2EMNREARE 89,912,000
7T (%7 112,300,000/ 7T) (ZF—=4F :
AERH 89,912,000 7T (FHZFH 112,444,000 7%
) RESRRBEREE-T——F=
A=+t—BLFEREFRE (K2) R
RNAEH - ZFIBREERRBRERER -

|1 m 5%

=
=
+

=
=

1

BRZREAONBE_STAF=ZA=+—
HIEFERRBEREREDMAIRE ARE
270,000,000 7t ( #8557 337,230,000 % 7T.)
(Z=—=% : AR¥ 270,000,000t (5%
7 337,662,000/ 7)) * ZBHIREFIFH
HTEE20 : R>()IEWEHE 2 BEERK
BEEI € - ZEHENEERRES

HE-_ZT—=F=-A=t+—RALEFERN"
AEBWRRREREIRMELXREE
B & B € AR #¥80,0000007T (%R
100,048,000 jt) < KB D RIERTE
NEAEERRREFRMEXEREE R
ZEGRMBIZHERBZIRERAAR
#77,600,0007C ( 16 & 7 97,047,000%
) RAAREESREBEEERERARE
2,400,000 7T (8 & 53,001,000 JT) ° X
EEEHR ISR -_Z—NENA=+—
Hat Rz - R-ZE—WE=A=+—H
kZZ—=F=A=+—0 " BEAZHAHE
BB BN ENRERE - AURIEHEAER
FEHABEREIEEZEEARERE - B
G IR 2B B BB E AR R IEE Rt
FIEZF - WRBEHBMREREEHEERE
mHRERAEEERBRKA -



31. Trade and Other Payables (Continued)

The Group’s trade and other payables that are denominated in
currencies other than the functional currency of the relevant
group entities are set out below:
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31. ENERARAEMENRE (&)

NAEEEEREESUIN 2B BEN
ZAKBERMNERR R EAMEN KRBT

usb HKD

E BT

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHIT FHIT

At 31 March 2014 R-E-NFE=A=+—H 1,712 2,067
At 31 March 2013 RZE—=F=A=+—H 7412 3,402

The Group has financial risk management policies in place to
ensure that all payables are paid within the credit timeframe.

The Company's other payables that are denominated in

REBREVHEREIBHE - NERDIEN
RENEEHREER -

AARRRINEE R AN 2 B RBRL 2 AR

currency other than the functional currency of the Company AR RN FIAEMNT -
are set out below:

HKD
BT
HK$'000
THET
At 31 March 2014 R-EB-NFE=A=+—H 2,046
At 31 March 2013 R-ZZT—=f=A=+—H 3,402

1R A EE P I A ] R — O
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32. Amounts Due to Related Companies 32. BEYBEQATRNRIE
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
NEME PN
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-mE —T-—fF Z—ZT-NE —T-=fF
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT F#IT FHT THTT
Matsunichi Goldbase Global MAH & EIRER
(Management) Limited (1) BRAH = 1,382 = 1,382
MHEgEER OFY) BRAFR WEEISRE
ORI BRRAE 9,038 1,863 - -
Goldin Group (Investment) Limited ~ =R&EE (18E)
BR AT - 9,637 - 9,637
Goldin Special Situations Limited SRR e
BIRAT] 35,940 - 35,940 -
44,978 12,882 35,940 11,019
The Group rEE

RAEIBERECORY)BRAE] is ultimately owned by Mr. Pan,
the Director and Chairman of the Company, who is also the
ultimate controlling shareholder of the Company.

As at 31 March 2014, the amount of HK$9,038,000 (2013:
HK$1,863,000) is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand.

The Group and The Company

Matsunichi Goldbase Global (Management) Limited
(“Matsunichi Goldbase Global”) and Goldin Group
(Investment) Limited (“Goldin Group (Investment)”) are
ultimately owned by Mr. Pan. As at 31 March 2014, the balance
due to Goldin Special Situations Limited (“Goldin Special
Situations”), in which Mr. Pan has a beneficial interest, a
related company of the Company, represents interest payable on
the loan granted to the Group as at year ended 31 March 2014,
while the balance as at 31 March 2013 due to Goldin Group
(Investment), the immediate holding company of the Company,
represented interest payable on the shareholder’s loan granted
to the Group as at year ended 31 March 2013.

As at 31 March 2014, the amount of HK$35,940,000 (2013:
HK$11,019,000) is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on

contractual dates.
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MAHHERE (RY) BRARIEARRES
REBBRERKER  BELETRARF

BRASTERRAR

A=+4+—H ' 589,038,000
—E— =1 :1,863,000/87T) AELK
G:o)
=

AEBRADT

MESERK (BE) ERAR ((RASE
BB keiREE (RE) ARAR (&8
58 (BB AELEERRER - N _F
—ME=ZA=1+—H8 " E=fREkKes
RAE ([SRSHREE]) (KPR ELAEES
B ARRZHEERR) 2 EHIEE
BE-_ZT--NEZA=1+—HBHUEFERNLEH
ERBEFRZEMFE  mEMNSRER (%
B) (KRR ZEEERAT) 2&BEEHE
—E—=F-A=t+—RHALEFEALEEE
BRREERZERFE -

RZFE-NOF=ZA=+—-HB' KK
35,940,000 7T (= — =4 : 11,019,000
ABIL) REEH - R EMARGNBHEE -
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32. Amounts Due to Related Companies 32. BRBELRNKIE (&)
(Continued)
The Group’s and the Company’s amounts due to related REBRAATIAEBEREEINEE B
companies that are denominated in currencies other than the SN E¥EET A BN BER R RIEES
functional currency of the relevant group entities are set out N
below:
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
TEE ¥ NN
usb HKD usb HKD
E BT E BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT FHT FHT
At 31 March 2014 R-ZT—MmF
=B=+—H 44,978 - 35,940 -
At 31 March 2013 RZE—=%F
=A=+—H 11,500 1,382 9,637 1,382
33. Bank Borrowing 33. RITEN
2014 2013
—ZT—lmF =
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Carrying amount repayable*: JEE BRI E
Within one year —FR 56,205 42,208
More than one year, but not exceeding iR —F B RRE
two years 56,205 56,277
More than two years, but not more than BAMFERIRASE
five years 168,615 168,831
More than five years HiEAF 14,051 70,346
295,076 337,662
Less: Amount due within one year shown & : BB EE R
under current liabilities —FANEIEZFIE (56,205) (42,208)
Amount shown under non-current liabilities FERBIAEE NATRKIA 238,871 295,454

* The amount due is based on scheduled repayment dates set out
in the loan agreement.

x B SR AR R A P S TR & 5K B A
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33. Bank Borrowing (Continued)

33. SRITER (47)

2014 2013

=F—mE ————

HK$’'000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Unsecured bank loan IR I TR 295,076 337,662

At 31 March 2014, the Group has an unsecured bank
loan in the amount of RMB236,250,000 (equivalent to
HK$295,076,000) (2013: RMB270,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$337,662,000)). Such bank loan carries interest at market
rate of 7.53% (2013: 7.82%) per annum and is repayable in
instalments over a period of 7 years to 2019. The proceed was
used to finance the daily operation of hotel and polo club.

During the year, the Group repaid RMB33,750,000 (equivalent
to HK$42,154,000) (2013: nil) based on the scheduled
repayment dates.

The bank borrowing of the Group is denominated in RMB,
which is the functional currency of the relevant group entity.

GOLDIN PROPERTIES HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2014

N-T-—NME=A=+—H0 XEHE
PR ITE A AR 236,250,000 7T (18
%£74295,076,00087T) (ZE—=F: AR
# 270,000,000 7T ( #8 % 7 337,662,000%
TL)) o ZIRITERIEM B FEFE7.53% (=
T—=F:782%) it B WERBEZZT
—NFI-F MRS EIERE - FTSER
REBEEERERG BELE o

FER AEARBHOTERAEREARE
33,750,000 ¢ (85 42,154,000587T) (=
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34. Obligations under Finance Leases
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34. MERERK

Present value

Minimum of minimum
lease payments lease payments
BREXNHEEE BEXNHESEZRE
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-mE —Z-=F ZE-NFE —=-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FTERT FHT TR FHIT
THE GROUP AEE
Amounts payable RIER A S et
under finance leases: rdcx- I
Within one year —FR 105 105 80 72
In the second to fifth year inclusive £ _Z&Eh%F
(BIEEEMTE) 279 384 250 330
384 489 330 402
Less: Future finance charges B RREE A (54) (87) - =
Present value of lease obligations HEBKZRE 330 402 330 402
Less: Amount due for settlement o —EFAEIE
within one year BB (80) (72)
Amount due for settlement —FIEF|H
after one year EENEE 250 330
The lease terms are five years. Interest rates are fixed at the HEBMART - FIEXRNEHNAMBHBE - FTE

contract date. All leases are on a fixed repayment basis and
no arrangements have been entered into for contingent rental

payments.

MEHRRBEEEREE  WEITIERNE
SN SATEE 2 ZHE -

1R A EE P I A ] R — O
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35. Convertible Bonds (Including Conversion

Option Derivatives)

On 28 August 2007, convertible bonds with an aggregate
principal value of approximately HK$1,418,704,000 (the
“Convertible Bonds due 2012") were issued by the
Company to shareholders. The convertible bonds were
denominated in Hong Kong dollars. The convertible bonds
were unsecured, carried interest at 7.5% per annum and
matured on 28 August 2012. Interest was repayable semi-
annually after the date of issue of the convertible bonds. The
effective interest rate was 20% per annum. The Convertible
Bonds due 2012 with principal value of HK$7,479,987 were
converted into 2,137,139 ordinary shares of the Company
during the year ended 31 March 2013 (note 38 (c)). A principal
amount of HK$50,503,000 in outstanding Convertible Bonds
due 2012 was redeemed by the Company at 115% on the
maturity date at approximately HK$58,078,000 during the
year ended 31 March 2013.

On 21 January 2011, convertible bonds with an aggregate
principal value of approximately HK$4,911,339,000 (the
“Convertible Bonds due 2014") were issued by the
Company to shareholders. The convertible bonds were
denominated in Hong Kong dollars. The convertible bonds
were unsecured, carried interest at 8% per annum and
matured on 21 January 2014. Interest was repayable semi-
annually after the date of issue of convertible bonds. The
effective interest rate was 19.41% per annum. No conversion
of Convertible Bonds due 2014 (2013: Principal value of
HK$288 into 60 ordinary shares of the Company) was
made during the year (note 38 (c)). A principal amount of
HK$226,736,000 in outstanding Convertible Bonds due 2014
was redeemed by the Company at 100% on the maturity date
at approximately HK$226,736,000 during the year.
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RRES (BEAREETE
TH)

R-ZZEELFNA=+/\B  KARMRBKRE
BT ARG FBH) A1,418,704,0007 T 2 A
BEES ([ZE——FHTeRES)) -
AR EHABTTEHE - IRKRESFREE
B UAFBTS%AE WRZFE—=FN
AZ+N B2 BETAIRKESER
BE BEYFEENE BEFENXA
20%  HE-_ZE——F=ZA=+—HLHF
€ K&BEARTA79,987 BT _E——F
FEAA MR EHFEHIRAB2,137,139 AR
AL @A (MIFE38(0) - BE=ZZ—=F=A
=+—HIFE  A&%550,503,0008 T2
MAITE T ——F BB ESRAA
TR B HE B #2 115% LA 58,078,000 7% 7T B8
@ °

R-Z—F—A=-+—8  ARAREKEER
BT AR S EEA £4,911,339,00078 T 2 7]
BEES ([ZE—NFAHPTRRES]) -
AMBREFUETE  IRRESFAE
B LFE8%FE R T —HF—
AZ+—HIH - AETIBRRESEB
BE BEYFEENS - BEREENEA
19.41% ° FA » ZE—NFRHRKRES
WARER R (ZF—=F : X&FE288 B L&
HiB60RARARILEAR) (KIFE38() » F
A KN4 226,736,000/ 02 —E —INF
EIEA R # AR T T AJ AR E 5 B A A AR I B
B 1% 100% LA#] 226,736,000 8 T &M o
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35. Convertible Bonds (Including Conversion

Option Derivatives) (Continued)

The proceeds received from the issue of the convertible bonds
had been split into liability component, conversion option
derivative, and equity participant reserve, if any. The excess
of the fair value of the Convertible Bonds due 2012 to all
bond holders over the proceeds received from the issue of
convertible bonds was charged to equity participant reserve.
The liability component and the conversion option derivatives
of the Convertible Bonds due 2012 and the Convertible
Bonds due 2014 were both measured at fair value on initial
recognition. The balance of the equity participant reserve in
relation to the issuance of Convertible Bonds due 2012 at the
amount of HK$7,186,000 had been transferred to retained
earnings of the Company during the year ended 31 March
2013 upon the redemption of the Convertible Bonds due
2012.

35.

B £ BV 255 e o Pk

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE_Z—NF=A=+—HBILFE

RRES (BELRRETE
THR)(&

BEBITARBREHFTRERZ IS RIEES A
BERD  HAMETET ARBRARSEA
& (A) - MEEESFEBEARTZZE
—ZF IR ER AFEBL 88T
T%h1%%%ﬂ%%ﬁﬁ2%ﬁ'm%$
28 A EERINR —ZF B HA R
ﬁ%&_f miﬂ%T%hﬁ%Zﬁii
A RABHEETETEREREREERA
FEFE -BHE_T—=F=ZA=1+—81
FE - BEET=ZZ :EW%T%%%%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2014
HE-Z—NF=A=1+—HILLFE

35. Convertible Bonds (Including Conversion

. AR ES (BELAHE

/\—

PTHE

Option Derivatives) (Continued) TH)&)
The movements of the liability component and conversion AR ESF BESS RAGPETET AR
option derivatives of the convertible bonds for the year are set ZENEBHEHINOT -
out as below:
THE GROUP AND THE COMPANY
AREREAR
Convertible Bonds due 2012 Convertible Bonds due 2014
ZE-CEHBTRRES “E-MENHTRRES
Conversion Conversion
Liability option Liability option
component  derivative  Sub-total component  derivative  Sub-total Total
HAmE HamE
8ERS IR Nt BERS  fTEIR it @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AL Thn T AL T TAL AT
At 1 April 2012 RZE-—§MmA-A 63,826 2,700 66,526 191,411 22,244 213,655 280,181
Interest expenses HEXH, 494 - 4941 36,328 - 36328 41,269
Interest paid/payable B/ EHE (2,139) = (2,139) (21,608) - (21,608) (23,747)
Exchange gain recognised RERERZEXE
in profit or loss - - - (2,685) - (2,685) (2,685)
Exchange realignment B 5 A% L = = 2,685 3N 2,99 2,9%
Changes in fair value DEE 4 (1,817) (1817) = (2,533) (2,533) (4,350)
Converted during the year ERERH
- by issue of 2,137,199 - FR%(72,137.191%
ordinary shares (note 38) L@ (MizE38) (8,550) (883) (9,433) = - - (9,433)
Redemption upon maturity e | (58,078) < (58,078) 5 o S (58,078)
At 31 March 2013 RZF-—=E=R=1-A - - - 206,131 20,022 226,153 226,153
Interest expenses MEz 5 = = 35,324 = 35,324 35,324
Interest paid BRFIE 5 = = (14719) = (14719) (14719)
Exchange gain recognised RERRAER KA
in profit or loss - - - (5,423) - (5.423) (5,423)
Exchange realignment AR ] = = 5,423 527 5,950 5,950
Changes in fair value ND o - = E (20549) (20549 (20,549
Redemption upon maturity i = = - (226,736) - (226736)  (226,736)
At 31 March 2014 R=2-BE=A=t-A 3 = = = = - E

166

GOLDIN PROPERTIES HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2014



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35. Convertible Bonds (Including Conversion

Option Derivatives) (Continued)

The principal terms of the Convertible Bonds are set out as
follows:

Convertible Bonds due 2012
Conversion

At the option of the holders, the convertible bonds would
be converted into fully paid ordinary shares of the Company
on any business day during the period between the third
anniversary of the date of issue of the convertible bonds and
the maturity date, at an initial conversion price of HK$6 per
share (subject to adjustments).

The conversion price should be adjusted downwards on the
date falling 6 months from the date of issue of the convertible
bonds and every 6 months thereafter (the “Reset Date”) to the
arithmetic average price of the Company’s share for each of
the 30 consecutive trading days immediately prior to the Reset
Date, provided that the adjusted conversion price shall never
be below HK$3.5, subject to the customary adjustments such
as for sub-divisions, consolidation and reductions in the share
capital of the Company.

On 27 August 2008, 27 February 2009 and 27 August 2009,
the conversion price had been reset to HK$5.86, HK$4.08 and
HK$3.5 per share, respectively.

Redemption

No convertible bonds may be redeemed by the Company and
the holders prior to the maturity date. Any convertible bonds
which remained outstanding by 4:00 p.m. (Hong Kong time)
on the maturity date (i.e., 28 August 2012) were redeemed by
the Company at 115% of its outstanding principal amount at
HK$50,503,000 during the year ended 31 March 2013.

The conversion option derivative was carried at fair value at
the end of each reporting period with change in fair value
recognised in profit or loss. At 31 March 2013, the fair value
of the conversion option derivative in the convertible bonds
was nil as the convertible bonds matured during the year
ended 31 March 2013.

B 7 B e A P

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BHEZ—NF=A=1+—HILFE

35. ARKRES (BREARAETE

TH)(&)

FHRE S 2 T 2ERETIT -

—E-CHFIHTRARES
%

BEAAZEE  BRRESFATNETAR
ffE AR E = ERAF A EH B HE
EAZERLBASRRR ZBREBE - )
FHWEREREET (AT THE) -

H|E AR BT AHARE S A LR 6 @
AgAREZRE6EA (EEBR)) THE
ARBREREEBAMERIEARZAE
Bz EMFEE  HEEHBELARENST
R 3.587T - WHERIELIFAD - & 6F REDR
ARABRARET RFHE -

RZZEZENFNAZ+EH - ZETNF=
AZ++tHERZZEZAFNA=+tH ' X
BEHREEAEIS.86EIT - 4088 TR
3587 e

e

KRR RFEEATFEREH A ATE R A%
BiEH - BE-_T—=ZF=-A=+—H81
EF TWRIHEBE (-ZE——F /1A
Z+NR) THWEEIE (FEEME) MARTT
F2 A MREFEHARFRREELASRE
50,503,000 % 7T,2 115% f&E °

ST A TAREMERR 2 A FET
R AFEEBNESER AREBE_F

—=F=-H=t—-BLFEZIBREKESC
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
£ A 25 A B

For the year ended 31 March 2014
HE-Z—NF=A=1+—HILLFE

35. Convertible Bonds (Including Conversion 35. AARES (BRELBAHESTE

Option Derivatives) (Continued)

Convertible Bonds due 2014
Conversion

At the option of the holders, the convertible bonds would be
converted into fully paid ordinary shares of the Company on
any business day from the period commencing on the 30th
day from and excluding the date of issue of the convertible
bonds and ending on the 10th day prior to and excluding the
maturity date (both dates inclusive), at an initial conversion
price of HK$6 per share (subject to adjustments).

The conversion price should be adjusted downwards on the
Reset Date thereafter to the arithmetic average price of the
Company’s share for each of the 30 consecutive trading days
immediately prior to the Reset Date, provided that the adjusted
conversion price shall never be below HK$4.8, subject to the
customary adjustments such as for sub-divisions, consolidation
and reductions in the share capital of the Company.

On 20 July 2011, the conversion price had been reset to
HK$4.8 per share.

Redemption

No convertible bonds may be redeemed by the Company and
the holders prior to the maturity date. Any convertible bonds
which remained outstanding by 4:30 p.m. (Hong Kong time)
on the maturity date (i.e., 21 January 2014) were redeemed by
the Company at 100% of its outstanding principal amount at
HK$226,736,000 during the year.
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35. Convertible Bonds (Including Conversion

Option Derivatives) (Continued)

Convertible Bonds due 2014 (Continued)
Redemption (Continued)

The conversion option derivative was carried at fair value at
the end of each reporting period with change in fair value
recognised in profit and loss. At 31 March 2013, the fair value
of the conversion option derivative in the convertible bonds
is HK$20,022,000 (2014: nil), and was calculated using the
Binominal model. Details of the variables and assumptions of
the model were as follows:

35.

B 7 B e A P

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BHEZ—NF=A=1+—HILFE

Rk ES (BREARAETE
THR)(&

—E-NFIHTRRES (8)
EE (&)

mﬁ%ﬂ*&*?ﬁilﬁﬁzxiﬁiﬁﬁEKZ’U?E@J

AN EEHRERER - R_T—=F
:H:+ B AIRESFZ LRI E
T ARF{E 20,022,000 (ZF—MN4F :
) DUAZIEAEAGE - ZEATAEZH
RRBFFBELT -

31 March 2013

e e
Share price A& HK$4.55 % 7T
Exercise price I E HK$4.8 7T
Remaining life FERF A7 0.8 year
Risk-free rate ERERAE 0.14%
Expected volatility TR ER R I8 27.7%
Expected dividend yield TRHARR Sz 0%

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the Company’s share price before the date of
valuation for prior year.

Convertible Bonds due 2014 held by a related
party

As at 31 March 2013, the total principal amount of
the outstanding Convertible Bonds due 2014 was
HK$226,736,000, of which Matsunichi Goldbase Global held
HK$90,000,000. Upon full conversion of the Convertible
Bonds due 2014 at the conversion price of HK$4.80 per share
(as adjusted on 20 July 2011), 18,750,000 shares would be
issued to Matsunichi Goldbase Global. GFHL is the ultimate
holding company of Matsunichi Goldbase Global, and Mr.
Pan is also a non-executive director, the chairman and the
controlling shareholder of GFHL. Accordingly, Mr. Pan was
deemed to be interested in the convertible bonds held by
Matsunichi Goldbase Global. During the year ended 31 March
2014, the principal amount of the outstanding Convertible
Bonds due 2014 held by Matsunichi Goldbase Global at the
amount of HK$90,000,000 were redeemed by the Company
on the maturity date (i.e., 21 January 2014).

FEHIRBRA AR R RENMEER A 2 F
EE LIRIRETE

—URAEALTFEEZ-ZE—NFE
HARRES
R-ZE—Z=ZF=ZA=+—8 BRIFEZ
ZE-OFH A RREFCBAASER
226,736,000/ 7T - EHR MR A & BERKFAR
90,000,000 7T » & — T — P04 B B AT 2 %
BHFRIBHEBEEIRA80BT (R _E——%F
AT BEARE) BB BRE - FRn
E@ﬁhﬁﬁﬂm7momk%1cmﬁ$
BAMASERIRZ ZEERA A - &L
ENESRESEMIIFRNITESE - EFERIER
BRER o« Eitt - BREFEERAEBNLASER
KB RRESEZR - BHEZT—NF
“A=T—HLEFE AR ASHERIKEA
2 KN4 58 /490,000,000 TR — T — IO F
FIEAARITE TR ESEHARRREIRA
(I—ZE—mE—-—A=-+—H) BE -

SR E R A RA T R PO
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36. Loan from a Shareholder/a Related

Company

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Group and
the Company obtained an unsecured loan facility from its
substantial shareholder, Goldin Group (Investment), which
is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Pan at the principal
amount of not more than US$700 million (equivalent to
HK$5,429,550,000 (31 March 2013: HK$5,434,380,000))
which is unsecured, carries interests at a rate of 8% per
annum and is repayable on or before 26 August 2014. During
the year, the expiry date was extended to 26 August 2015
which was classified as non-current.

During the year, the loan of US$426,038,000 (equivalent to
HK$3,303,500,000) together with principal sum advanced
to the Group and the Company from Goldin Group
(Investment) and the respective interest payable was assigned,
and the Group’s and the Company’s rights, benefits and
obligations contemplated under the original loan agreement
and supplemental loan agreements with Goldin Group
(Investment) were transferred to a related company, Goldin
Special Situations, in which Mr. Pan has a beneficial interest.
In addition, the principal amount of not more than US$700
million (equivalent to HK$5,429,550,000) was increased to not
more than US$2 billion (equivalent to HK$15,513,000,000)
during the year, comprising the amount drawn down of
approximately HK$5,019,123,000, which was classified
as non-current liability, together with undrawn loan of
approximately HK$10,493,877,000 as at 31 March 2014.

Goldin Special Situations is a private fund company which
is mainly engaged in the investment in physical assets and
financial instruments, including real estate property, equities,
equity-linked products as well as fixed income bonds. It also
involves in investment relating to mergers and acquisitions of
listed or private companies.

The loan from a shareholder/a related company of the Group
and the Company was denominated in USD other than RMB,
the functional currency of the relevant group entity.
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BRBEQRER

BE_Z—=F=-A=+—HItFE K&
EERAAGIEEFERTSRER (KE)
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N A X A #) — %426,038,0003% 7T (B =
7 3,303,500,0008 7t) ERER K& 5
MEBBAEMSFE  RESRER (KE)
AV RERB#IERERBHRTZA
SEERAQNGMHEBEER - MamkEE-
N—HEEE —REEEQT - SRTHRE
g (HPELEHEBERER) o LHh F
A+ A& %E BT % 700,000,000 T
(18 % 145,429,550,0003 7T) 1 & % %
2,000,000,000 % 7T (#H%5 7 15,513,000,000
BIL) HeFER -_E—WME=A=+—
HE81ELE & €% 45019,123,000% T
(P ERIERDERE) REREARIELD
10,493,877,0008 7T °

SRERREE - FZLEEERA] HI 2
EBRREEREELERTA (BREH
= BERE - #aaiiaEm MEEREES)
ZARNMZEEAHB LT RRHLARE
HIRE -

AEBRARRZBR,BERRERAE
TTMIEARKE HHESEERZIEER) 5t
=



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R

= i :‘?"‘: i_::.
il @ 3

el 3 :':.muth

S

37. Deferred Tax Liabilities
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For the year ended 31 March 2014
BHEZ—NF=A=1+—HILFE

37. EZEHIEBEERE

The movements in major deferred tax liabilities recognised FAEHRZETEREHBELEEHOT
during the year are as follows:

THE GROUP
AEE
Revaluation of
investment
properties
REMES
HK$’000
FAT
At 1 April 2012 R-ZE——4¢=A=+—H 918,159
Exchange realignment M 3 12,880
Charge to profit or loss (note 14) Rz (FiEE14) 213,833
At 31 March 2013 R—EBE—=F=ZA=+—H 1,144,872
Exchange realignment & H AR (1,465)
Charge to profit or loss (note 14) RIEZEF IR (FIEE14) 177,078
At 31 March 2014 R-E—NFE=A=+—H 1,320,485

At 31 March 2014, the Group had unused tax losses of
HK$1,306,889,000 (2013: HK$1,010,998,000) available
for offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has
been recognised in respect of the tax losses due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. Included in the tax
losses are losses of HK$610,218,000 (2013: HK$497,752,000)
that will expire within five years from the end of the reporting
period. Other losses may be carried forward indefinitely. There
were no other significant temporary differences arising during
the year or at the end of the reporting period.

Included in unexpired tax losses are tax losses of
HK$632,543,000 (2013: HK$454,135,000) that are not yet
assessed by the relevant tax authorities.

At 31 March 2014, the Company had unused tax losses of
HK$66,913,000 (2013: HK$64,127,000) available for offset
against future profits. The losses may be carried forward
indefinitely. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of such tax losses due to unpredictability of future
profit streams.

N-ZT—NME=ZA=+—0 XEEXF
Bz % 18 & 18 1,306,889,000/ jt ( — &
— =4 :1,010,998,00058 jT) A {1 4 &
3 R o B3R R 2R v I SROR S B TEOR -
WERHEBEERTMNELHEBEELE -
HEBEEEEBEEREHRETAFAR
W2 B 18610,218,0008 T (Z T — =% :
497,752,000% 7T) o H ff & 18 7] M IR HA 45
o FNRRRERRTBEELHMERY
RER o

KEMRIBBEBE N R EH B ISHEET
& 2 T T B548 632,543,000/ T (ZE—=
£ 1 454,135,00087T) ©

R-ZT—WME=ZA=+—H KAAXHH
T I8 €518 /566,913,000 ¢ (- F — =4 :
64,127,000 7T) + Al K S5 R SR A o &S
IBRER B4R o AR AR B AR A 7B
A - B AR R E R B A B R R
BEE o

SR E R A RA T R PO
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2014
HE-Z—NF=A=1+—HILLFE

38.

Share Capital 38. &7
Number of shares Share capital
RHG#EE i
Notes HK$'000
Mgk FiEr
Authorised: ERE
At 1 April 2012 and 31 March 2013 R=Z2--4MA-A
- Ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each k=E-=%=A=+-H
- BREE0.05 BT
2B Rk 10,000,000,000 500,000
At31 March 2014 RIZ-ME=A=t-R () N/A TER N/A TR
2014 2013 2014 2013
“E-mE It S ~E-MF 2=
HK$'000 HK$'000
THEL TAL
Issued and fuly paid: BEIRSR
At 1 April REA—A 3,566,082,188  3,561,464,226 178,304 178,073
Issue of new shares upon RITEBRERTHR
exercise of share options (b) 1,298,238 2,480,763 65 124
Issue of new shares upon RS AR ERET
conversion of convertible FRM (MiE35)
bonds (note 35) (© - 2,137,199 - 107
Transfer upon abolition of s VNGl ]
par value under the BRRHAEERER
new Companies
Ordinance @ - - 10,745,359 -
At 31 March RZA=+-H 3,567,380,426  3,566,082,188 10,923,728 178,304
Notes: Bt 5T
(@)  The Company has no authorised share capital and its shares (@) BHARGRERBE (AI=FT—ME=A
have no par value since the commencement date of the new =R) & ARAWEETERARERD I
Companies Ordinance (i.e., 3 March 2014). As of 3 March EEHE N NF=A=BIEH K
2014, share premium and capital redemption reserve amounted BIEEEREE% * #910,745,186,000 % 7L 2 %
to approximately HK$10,745,186,000 and HK$173,000, 19358 & 173,000 7 7T 2 IR A BE Bl R 18 9 Bl
respectively were transferred to share capital upon abolition of ERERA -
par value under the new Companies Ordinance.
(b)  During the year ended 31 March 2014, 1,298,238 (2013: ) BEZT-—HNF=RA=+—RHILFE 55l

2,480,763) new shares of HK$0.05 each in the Company were
issued at prices of HK$1.19, HK$3.27, HK$3.14 and HK$2.69
(2013: HK$1.31, HK$3.27, HK$3.14 and HK$3.72) per share
upon exercise of share options granted on 5 February 2004,
3 August 2009, 21 April 2010 and 27 March 2012, respectively
(2013: share options granted on 28 September 2005, 3 August
2009, 21 April 2010 and 10 August 2010, respectively).
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Share Capital (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(0 During the year ended 31 March 2013, the convertible
bondholders converted principal value of HK$288 of the
Convertible Bonds due 2014 issued by the Company into 60
ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each at the conversion price of
HK$4.80.

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the convertible
bondholders converted principal value of HK$7,479,987 of
the Convertible Bonds due 2012 issued by the Company into
2,137,139 ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each at the conversion
price of HK$3.50.

All of the new shares issued rank pari passu with the then
existing shares of the Company in issue in all respects.

Reserves

The Group

Details of changes in reserves of the Group are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 66.

Equity participant reserve represents gain on the surrender
which was granted to an existing shareholder of the Company
as at 24 November 2008, gain/loss on sale of certain assets/
liabilities to a Director and controlling shareholder of the
Company.

The balance of the equity participant reserve in relation to
the issuance of Convertible Bonds due 2012 at the amount
of HK$7,186,000 had all been transferred to retained profits
(accumulated losses) of the Company during the year ended
31 March 2013 upon the redemption of the Convertible Bonds
due 2012 on 28 August 2012, the maturity date.

38.

39.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
£ A 25 A B

For the year ended 31 March 2014
HEZ-NME=A=+—HIFE

39. Reserves (Continued) 39. f#fE (&)
The Company ¥ /N
Retained
Share-based Equity Capital profits
Share compensation participant redemption  Translation (accumulated
premium reserve reserve reserve reserve losses) Total
B REEH

BRORE BROWEHE SHARE ZARRHE BERE (ZHER) @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAn TAR TARL TAn TEL TAR

(Restated) ~ (Restateq)

(&4)) (25))

(note 2) (note 2)

(FzE2) (FzE2)

At 1 April 2012 RZZ-—#mA-A 10,721,416 115,784 (61,950) 173 508,999 435221 11,719,643
Loss for the year RERER = = = = - (454570)  (454,570)
Other comprehensive income AEEEMZENS

for the year - - - - 178,036 - 178,036
Total comprehensive income TEEREYE (RY) 2%

(expense) for the year - - - - 178,036 (454570)  (276,534)
Recognition of equity-settled BRANRAEERIAR

share-based payments BEBEZ IR & 67,767 E S 5 - 67,767
Exercise of share options Tl iEiE 8,010 (2,892) = £ = S 5,118
Lapse of share options BRELT = (8,095) - = = 8,095 =
Conversion of convertible bonds ~~ HEATARES 9,326 = 1,064 5 3 (1,064) 9,326
Redemption of convertiole bonds ~ BEF AR ES e S 7186 = S (7,186) =
At 31 March 2013 RZB-Z#=A=1-8B 10738752 172,564 (53,700) 173 687,035 (19,504) 11,525,320
Loss for the year TERER 5 = ] 2 - (77583) (277,583
Other comprehensive expense FEFAMRERR

for the year - - - - (11,842) - (11,842)
Total comprehensive expense AEEEERXER

for the year - - - - (11,842)  (277583)  (289,425)
Recognition of equity-settled BARAEERARI

share-based payments BEE A 2 24,470 = = = - 24,470
Exercise of share options IR E 6,434 (2,578) = z 4 = 3,85
Lapse of share options BRELH = (2,895) L = & 2,895 e
Transfer upon abolition of RESTARIED

par value under the BRRHEE B

new Companies Ordinance (note 1)~ (MfzE1) (10,745,186) = 5 (173) = - (10,745,359)
At 31 March 2014 RZE-ME=A=+-H - 191,561 (53,700) - 675,193 (294,192) 518,862
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Reserves (Continued)

The Company (Continued)

At 31 March 2014, the Company’s reserves consisted of
accumulated losses of approximately HK$294,192,000 (2013:
HK$19,504,000).

Notes:

1. The Company has no authorised share capital and its shares
have no par value since the commencement date of the new
Companies Ordinance (i.e., 3 March 2014). As of 3 March
2014, share premium and capital redemption reserve amounted
to approximately HK$10,745,186,000 and HK$173,000,
respectively were transferred to share capital upon abolition of
par value under the new Companies Ordinance.

2. The restatement represents the retrospective adjustments
made for prior years in relation to the recognition of exchange
differences arising on translation.

Share-Based Payments

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives or rewards to participants.

Under the share option scheme, the Board of Directors of
the Company may grant options as an incentive to selected
participants, including Directors and its subsidiaries, to
subscribe for shares in the Company at the price determined
by the Directors, but shall not be lower than the higher of
(i) the closing price of the Company’s shares on the Stock
Exchange on the date of grant; (ii) the average of the closing
prices of the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange for the
five trading days immediately preceding the date of grant; and
(iii) the nominal value of the Company’s shares. The maximum
number of shares in respect of which options may be granted
under the Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of the total
number of shares of the Company on the date of adopting the
Scheme. An option may be exercised at any time within ten
years from the date, upon payment of HK$1 on acceptance.

The offer of a grant of share options under the scheme may
be accepted within 28 days from the date of the offer by the
grantee. The vesting and exercisable period of the share option
granted is determinable at the entire discretion of the Board of
Directors but the exercisable period will not exceed a period of
ten years immediate after acceptance of grant.

39.

40.
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For the year ended 31 March 2014
BHEZ—NF=A=1+—HILFE

A (58)

A\ (&)

N-TB-—NE=A=+—8  AQFEES
2 EE#294,192,0008 7T (ZE—=
£ 119,504,000 7T) °

BiaE

1 B ARSI AR B (B =ZZ—WmFE= A
=B) 8 ARRWEETERANRERG I
EEE - R —OF=A=BRIDAIK
PIREEREET% © 4910,745,186,000 8 7L Z %
193518 & 173,000 7 7T 2 BR A BE Bl 5 9 Bl
BRZERAE -

2. REINREMBEFERATERMELRE
HREWZEWAE -

DN & B=S i JrA RN

ARREF—RBEAERE ([F181)) - U&
B EF2EE -

RIEERIETE - ARAESGAMETS
BE (AEEERENBAR) ROBREE
REBE - BTELEENREFET ZERR
BADARG - EFEEERTAMERIA TR
=& ()RR TGP L B HER Pz ik
T{E : () ARRRMHNEEE N A HR A
R 5 B AER P 2 A MTE ¢ R (i) AR
B EE - RIBFTEIIR H 2 BREPS &
Z B EmE A TR AN RN S B R
RARRNDEEN0% - REMKZRN1BT
& - BB RE RIS H A HARE T 10 S N (EfIRY
7T -

RIBA B H A 2 B A N2 B A
28 AAMARARMN - EROBEE 2R
BHRTEHOAETS2ENBEETE @ 817
EHTSHEAZRER AR HR 1051 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2014
HE-Z—NF=A=1+—HILLFE

40. Share-Based Payments (Continued) 40.

The following tables disclose details of the Company’s share
options and movements in such holdings during the year:

Details of share options held by employees (other than
Directors) of the Company are as follows:

R HER 2 IR ()

TEREBEFARRABREFEREERESE

==

MAATRIEE (EERIN) BE 2 BRIENS
T -

Subscription price per share Number of share options
SHIRE BRE"A
After After Outstanding Granted Exercised Lapsed  Outstanding
Before  adjustment  adjustment at during during during at
Date of grant adjustment 2007 2012 Exercisable period 142013 the year the year the year 3132014
R=Z-zF R-2-mEF
ZEBLE ZB-Cf mA-A £ £ Ef  ZA=t-A
RiAH ELE] El2 e GRS HRITE BRI g B4R HRITE
HK$ HKS HKS
T T TiEn
(note 1 (note 1 (note 1
and 2) and2) and2)
(MHRY)  (HHR2)  (WE1R2)
5.2.2004 130 120 119 522005t04.2.2014 678,745 - (50,454) (628,291) -
5220052422014
20.4.2004 154 14 141 2042004 to 19.4.2014 572,945 - - - 572,945
204.2004£19.4.2014
28.9.2005 143 132 131 289.2005t027.9.2015 1,968 - - - 1,968
289.2005%27.9.2015
27.11.2007 - 6.56 650 27.11.20071026.11.2017 8,072,727 - - - 8,072,727
27.11.2007£26.11.2017
382009 - 330 327 3820101028209 1,220,350 - (50,000) (45,409) 1,124,941
3820102282019
3.8.2009 - 330 327 3820110282019 1937450 - - (45,409) 1,892,041
3820112282019
382009 - 330 327 382012t0282019 2,597,362 - - (62,499) 2,534,863
3820122282019
2142010 - 317 314 21.4201110204.2020 1,289,173 - (60,545) (18,163) 1,210,465

21.420112204.2020

1

2142010 = 317 314 21420121020.4.2020 1313821
21.42012%204.2020

2142010 = 317 314 214.20131020.4.2020 1,889,043
21.420132204.2020

10.8.2010 r 3.75 372 108.2011109.8.2020 366,298
108.2011%9.8.2020

10.8.2010 = 3.75 372 108.2012109.8.2020 366,298

108.2012%9.8.2020

GOLDIN PROPERTIES HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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40. Share-Based Payments (Continued)

: NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2014
BHE_Z-NE=A=+—HIFE

40. SR HER 2 (F&)

Subscription price per share Number of share options
EHARE EREHE
After After Outstanding Granted Exercised Lapsed  Outstanding
Before  adjustment  adjustment at during during during at
Date of grant  adjustment 2007 2012 Exercisable period 142013 the year the year the year 3132014
R-g-zf H-g-mF
ZEBLE ZB-Cf mA-A £ £ Ef  ZA=t-A
RiAH Bl L2 e GRE HRITE BRI B B4R HRITE
HK$ HK$ HKS
Thn Thn Thn
(note 1 (note 1 (note 1
and2) and 2) and 2)
(Wi RY)  (HHR2)  (WE1R2)
10.82010 - 375 372 1082013109.8.2020 500,510 - - (12,110) 488 400
10.8.2013%9.8.2020
2732012 - - 269 2790121026320 7,126,644 - - (683,330) 7,043,314
2792012526320
2132012 - - 269 27.1220131026.3.2022 7,126,644 - - (683,330) 7043314
2712.2013%263.202
2732012 - - 269 27320151026.3.2022 7,726,112 - - (683,340) 7043312
273.2015%26.3.2022
2832014 - - 335 28320151027.3.204 - 8,520,000 - - 8,520,000
283.2015527.3.2024
2832014 - - 335 28320161027.3.2024 - 8,520,000 - - 8,520,000
283.2016227.3.2024
2832014 - - 335 283201710223.204 - 11,360,000 - - 11,360,000
283.201722232024

43,986,690 28,400,000 (298,238) (3005,173) 69,083,279

No. of exercisable

share options
AfTRERE R 33,639,907
Weighted average

exercise price
T E HKS3507  HKI33SAT  HKS283BT  HKS243BT  HK$349%T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2014
HE-Z—NF=A=1+—HILLFE

40. Share-Based Payments (Continued) 40. IR AER 2 FF (E)
Details of share options held by the Directors are as follows: HESRHAZEREFEOAT :
Number of share options
BREZA
Subscription price per share Reclassified
SHIRE from
After After Outstanding “Directors” Granted Exercised  Outstanding
Before  adjustment  adjustment  Exercisable at to "Other during during at
Date of grant adjustment 2007 212 period 142013 participants” the year the year 3132014
H-%-zF HIEE] RZB-mE
ZEBLE ZB-If mA-A ENARE £ Ef  =B=t-H
RILAH ELE] EEL e GRE CESTN I BRI Bfif HRITE
HKS HKS HKS
T A Fhn
(note 1 (note 1 (note 1
and 2) and2) and?2) (note 3)
(M RY)  (HHR2)  (WE1R2) (h3t3)
3.8.2009 = 330 327 382010t028.2019 821,581 = 3 (216,127) 605,454
3820102282019
3.8.2009 - 330 327 3820110282019 1,574,180 - - (363272) 1,210,908
3820112282019
3.8.2009 - 330 327 3820121028.2019 2,098,907 - - (87,268) 2,011,639
3820122282019
2132012 = = 269 279201210263.2022 1,999,998 (666,666) 3 (333333) 999,999
219.2012226.3.2022
2132012 - - 269 27.12.20131026.3.2022 1,999,998 (666,666 - - 1333332
27.122013%263.2022
2132012 - - 269 273.201510263.2022 2,000,004 (666,668) - - 1333336
2732015226320
283.2014 = = 335 283.20151027.3.2024 = = 2,700,000 . 2,700,000
283.2015%27.3.2024
283.2014 - - 335 283201610273.2024 - - 2,700,000 - 2,700,000
283.2016%27.3.2024
283.2014 - 5 335 283.201710273.2024 - - 3,600,000 - 3,600,000
283.2017227.3.2024
10,494,668 (2,000,000) 9,000,000 (1,000,000) 16,494,668
No. of exercisable
share options
AfTRERE A 6,161,332
Weighted average
exercise price
TR HKS294T  HKSL69BT  HK$335ET  HKS308ET  HKI3A9%ET

GOLDIN PROPERTIES HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2014



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ANy oy

---'\—'\-ﬂ---\.-:- I s s

iy

40. Share-Based Payments (Continued)

Details of share options held by other participants of the

B £ BV 255 e o Pk

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BHEZ—NF=A=1+—HILFE

40. SR HER 2 (F&)

HAAREMBEERSEZBEREFBLD

Company are as follows: 58
Number of share options
BREYA
Subscription price per share Reclassified
SHIRE from
After After Outstanding ~ "Directors” Granted Exercised Lapsed  Outstanding
Before  adjustment  adjustment  Exercisable at to “Other during during during at
Dateofgrant  adjustment 2007 012 period 142013 participants” the year the year the year 3132014
#-%-2¢  m[EE) HN=%-mf
RHAH BEH  CTRLE ZB-CF mE-A  ENSEE £/ i R ZR=t-A
il ol CEST Lt ERH B BA% WA
HKS HKS HKS
iy iy B
(note 1 (note 1 (note 1
and?) and) and?) (note3)
(BRy) (bR (WEIRD) (H5t3)
5.2.2004 130 120 119 5220050422014 268,037 - - - (2,682,037) -
5.2.2005%4.2.0014
204.2004 154 14 141 204200410194.2014 371,037 = = = = 30,037
0420421942014
38.2009 - 330 327 38201010282019 213305 - - - - 213305
382010228.2019
38.2009 = 330 321 3820110282019 236,132 - = - - 236,132
3820112282019
38.2009 - 330 37 38201210282019 3128182 - - - - 312818
3820122282019
2142010 - 317 34 2142011102042020 3410665 - - - (1.438) 3409227
21.4201122042000
2142010 = 37 34 21142012102042020 3515178 = = & e 3575178
2142012204200
2142010 - 317 34 2142013t02042020 476,984 - - - - 4766984
2142013204200
1082010 - 375 377 1082011109.82020 605454 - - - - 605454
1082012982020
1082010 = 375 372 1082012982020 605,454 - - - = 605,454
10.8.20122982020
1082010 - 375 377 1082013109.82020 807273 - - - - 807273
10.8.2013%9.8.2020
273012 - - 269 2719201210 263202 10,149,989 666,660 - - (66,666) 10,749,989
2790122263202
2132012 - 3 269 27122013102632022 10,149,989 666,060 = : (66,666) 10,749,989
2712201326320

1R A EE P I A ] R — O
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For the year ended 31 March 2014
HEZ-NME=A=+—HIFE

40. Share-Based Payments (Continued)

40. DR HER 2 (F)

Number of share options
BHEHE
Subscription price per share Redlassified
SHRARE from
After After Outstanding ~~ "Directors” Granted Exercised Lapsed  Outstanding
Before  adjustment  adjustment  Exercisable at to "Other during during during at
Dateof grant ~ adjustment 007 012 period 142013 participants” the year the year the year 3132014
R-%-zF HIEE] R=B-mF
BitAM BEA  CBEtE -8 BA-B  ENOEE Eh i §h ZA=t-R
EEL EBE TS HAGE [HtSEE B gk B4R HAGE
HKS HKS HKS
iy i BT
(note 1 (note 1 (note 1
and2) and2) and? {note3)
W1k Wk (KR (H:3)
2773201 - - 289 2732015106320 10,150,022 666,668 - - (66,668) 10,750,022
27320152263.2022
283204 - - 3% 2832015273204 - - 4,650,000 - - 4,650,000
2832015527304
2832014 = = 335 2832016t0273204 = F 4,650,000 S = 4,650,000
8320162273204
283204 - - 3B 8320170273204 - - 6,200,000 - - 6,200,000
B3NTED 3204
54,871,701 2000000 15,500,000 - (2883479 69488226
No. of exercisable
share options
ThRERER 13,038 204
Weighted average
erercise price
IETRE HKS28BT  HKSL697TC  HK$335ET - HSI9BT HKEB0ET
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40. Share-Based Payments (Continued)

Notes:

As a result of the open offer issue of the Company on 22
August 2007 and rights issue on 20 March 2012, the number
of share options and the exercise prices have been adjusted in
accordance with the requirements of Rule 17.03 (13) of the
Listing Rules and the supplementary guidance issued by the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 5 September 2005.

The closing prices of the Company’s shares immediately
preceding the date of grant of 5 February 2004, 20 April 2004,
28 September 2005, 27 November 2007, 3 August 2009, 21
April 2010, 10 August 2010, 27 March 2012 and 28 March
2014 were HK$1.30, HK$1.48, HK$1.43, HK$6.56, HK$3.25,
HK$3.15, HK$3.71, HK$2.69 and HK$3.34, respectively.

Mr. Lee Chi Chung, Harvey resigned as executive Director on
28 February 2014. Therefore, share options held by Mr. Lee Chi
Chung, Harvey were reclassified from the category of ‘Directors’
to ' Other participants’ on the same date.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, options were granted
on 28 March 2014 at the exercise price of HK$3.35. The
estimated fair value of the options granted on that date is
approximately HK$75,012,000. No share options were granted
during the year ended 31 March 2013.

The vesting period ends on the date the exercisable period of
the share options begins.

The vesting period for the share options granted are ranging
from one to three years from the date of grant. In addition,
for certain share options granted on 21 April 2010, 10 August
2010 and 28 March 2014, they were conditionally granted
to certain eligible participants of the Company which were
subject to the achievement of the performance targets as
determined by the Board.

In respect of the share options exercised during the year, the
weighted average share price at the dates of exercise was
HK$4.27 (2013: HK$4.60).

40.
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For the year ended 31 March 2014
BHEZ—NF=A=1+—HILFE

R HER 2K ()
fia -

1. *ETFJ:%%EE'JEEW 03(13) GZRERER

BARSHERATN-BTEFAARA
Btz HEEs %k%%ﬁ&ﬁﬁﬁEl
ARTR-FBLENA - ALHEE
BHRR =B —=F= A= BRTHRET
Rt -

2. AATBRNNERRHEHA —_ZZNFE_ A

AE - ZZEENFENAZ+H -  ZZETRHF
hHAZ+N\B  —ZEZ2+EFE+—A=++
B —2TAFN\AZH  —2—TFMNA

—+—HB Z2—EZEFNA+HRZT—=
F=AZ+tRARZZE—MF=A=+N\H
A2 TES R A1308 T - 148748
1.43%7T 6.567T 3.25%8 7T 3.1587T -
3.7187T ~ 2698 L& 3.34 87T -

3 RZZ—NF-A=+/N\B ' THREEH
EPTERRS - At - TEREEREZ
BRENRASH EE]| EREM I BEEH
fh2EE |

4 HEZZ-ME=ZA=+—HLEFE K=
T—NE=Z A=+ \AREERENTEE
#3358 - NZ A IR EREN G A
FEXE75,012,00087T - BEZT—=4F
ZA=Z+—BILFEIWRBERLERE -

5B N B T IR F e B HIAE R o

BHBERE RERUARLAME—E=

Fotih R=ZE—ZFFMWMA=-+—H -
—E-ZEFENATHE-_ZE-—WOFE=A
ZHN\BREZETERENS - HEEH
EETARBIETAERSEE  HEFE

HEFEMEZRABIRE - TAFE -

%iﬁaﬁ@Z%%%ﬁé'éﬁﬁaﬁz
IEFHRERL27E T (ZF—=F : 460
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B BB HR B A
For the year ended 31 March 2014
HE-Z—NF=A=1+—HILLFE

40. Share-Based Payments (Continued) 40.

Share options granted to other participants are measured
at fair values of options granted as these other participants
are providing services that are similar to those rendered by
employees.

These fair values were calculated using the Binomial model.
The inputs into the model for share options granted on
28 March 2014 were as follows:

IR BEM 2 4R (&)

MRZEFEM2BERTZRGEES AR
HERT - MAEM2RERD 2 BRER
BREZBEREATETE -

ZEAFERA-_BAARAFE R=-F
—HE=ZA-tNBRLZBERERBRBA
EWT

28 March 2014
—E-mWE=A=+NH

Share price as at grant date BB RE
Exercise price I E
Expected volatility TEER R 1
Remaining life Tl eR AP
Risk-free rate ERERE
Expected dividend yield TE EARR B as
Exercise multiple RS

Exit rate REX

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the Company’s share price before the grant date
for previous ten years. The exercise multiple was to account
for the early exercise behaviour of the share options granted
by the Company.

The Binomial model has been used to estimate the fair value of
the options. The variables and assumptions used in comprising
the fair value of share options are based on Director’s best
estimate. The value of an option varies with different variables
of certain subjective assumptions.
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For the year ended 31 March 2014
BHEZ—NF=A=1+—HILFE

41. Retirement Benefit Schemes 41. BRIREFEHE
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RRERIFT B AR
2014 2013
—E-OF —E-=fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHTT
Contributions to mandatory provident AR
fund scheme (“MPF Scheme") ([ELsHEl]) H3 1,543 1,349
Contributions to PRC state-managed FEEREIRR A S5 EIHRK
pension schemes 17,417 15,695
Amount charged to consolidated HaR A B R E A 2 ERE Wk
statement of profit or loss bk 2 Z58
and other comprehensive income 18,960 17,044

The Group ceased to operate the defined contribution scheme
which is registered under the Occupational Retirement Scheme
Ordinance. The assets of the scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in funds under the control of independent
trustee. The Group now only participates in the MPF Scheme
for all employees in Hong Kong which is registered with the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in funds under the control of an independent trustee. Under
the rules of the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the Scheme at rate
specified in the rules. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to MPF Scheme is to make the required contributions
under the Scheme. No forfeited contribution is available to
reduce the contribution payable in the future years.

The eligible employees of the Company’s subsidiaries in the
PRC are members of pension schemes operated by the Chinese
local government. The subsidiaries are required to contribute a
certain percentage of the relevant cost of the basic payroll of
these employees to the pension schemes to fund the benefits.
The only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement
benefit scheme is to make the specified contribution.

AEETFEFERIBRZ R R M
ZAEWRKETE - RETEIZEERAKE 2
BEDHEE YNESHAKBELRXEE
VREAER  AEERKES2RSMER
BREEMRZBESFE - BB IR
FRBHIMERBEREBURDIM R R HIERES
EEBEM - RESHBCEERAEEZ
EENDHRE  UWAESHARBERZHE
TRAEAERE - RIBEBRBESFE2HRA - B
TRERBEFARAMARAEEZLERR
ZETEIHR - ARBERRESF B 2~
BEEASREBEELRE 2HK - REAE
BRI RSN R AR F RN 2

HaK

ARARRRFEZMBARNEEREE BT
B 77 BUTEE 2 RIREF BN E - ZEH
BRRARRZEREZAVELAFEHA
ZAETEDLAZRARSFTEER  (ERE
MES - AREBRENRENFEZHE—&
EREHREZHR -

SR E R A RA T R PO
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For the year ended 31 March 2014
HE-Z—NF=A=1+—HILLFE

42. Operating Lease Arrangements 42.

The Group as lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:

REHERH

REBE/FEBRA

RBERR - ARERETATRELEEE
AHENBEINREREZ AT

2014 2013

—F—mE —T-=F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Within one year —FRA 8,273 9,842
In the second to fifth year inclusive FEZFLF (BREEEMT) 21,355 33,608
29,628 43,450

Leases are negotiated for a term ranged from 1 to 5 years.

The Company had no significant operating lease commitments
at the end of the reporting period.

HEFHERANTI1E5F -

AN B HA ORI B (] B K48 8 TH &

= o

=

43. Commitments 43. EiE
THE GROUP
rEH
2014 2013
—E-IF —T-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Expenditures contracted for but not EATRAMERNER A BB IRKR A
provided in the consolidated TEE B 2 A
financial statements in respect of:
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment A - BE KR 24,459 2,556
Development expenditure of investment EEPREYFE 2 BERAS
properties under construction’ 13,453,928 9,483,643
Development expenditure of properties HEME I BRERE?
for sale? 4,435,282 5,212,613
17,913,669 14,698,812

U Future committed capital expenditures to be incurred up to
2016.

% Future committed capital expenditures to be incurred up to
2015.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Commitments (Continued)

The Company had no significant capital commitments at the
end of the reporting period.

Contingent Liabilities

At 31 March 2014 and 31 March 2013, the Company provided
a limited guarantee of HK$2,000,000 (2013: HK$2,000,000)
to a bank in respect of credit facilities granted to a subsidiary.
The aggregate amount of such credit facilities utilised by
the subsidiary at 31 March 2014 and 31 March 2013 was
approximately HK$89,000 and HK$24,000, respectively.

The Company has not recognised any deferred income in
relation to the above mentioned guarantee issued by the
Company to the bank in respect of credit facility utilised by the
subsidiary as its fair value at initial recognition is considered to
be insignificant and the Directors consider that the possibility
of the default is remote. Accordingly, no value has been
recognised in the Company’s statement of financial position.

43.

44,

B 7 B e A P

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE_Z—NF=A=+—HBILFE

i ()
AATRBERRL BETEREARLE -

HAREE

R-E—NME=ZA=+—BEk-_T—=F
ZA=+—8 ARARBEF-—HHENBA
RIZEERMEEEmR —MIEITIRE—1E
2,000,00078 7T ( =Z — =4 : 2,000,000
) ZBERER RZT—WNE=ZA=+—
ARZFE—=F=ZA=+—08" ZHBAX
REBRACZEHEERERERES AL
89,000 47T I 24,000 74T

ARRLER LRARBRHBELRREBA
ZIEEREREmMMRTEN Z BRERE
MREERA - RESEQFENEXHERE
WRREYTERAEETRREN 2R
o Bk - AN R S E A IR R
RIRREIE -

o SR E PR AT PR A T R — AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2014

BE-T-WE=A=+-AILFE

45. Related Party Transactions 45. BEANLRS
The Group’s transactions with related parties are as follows: AEBHBAEATZZHAT
2014 2013
—F-mE —
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHT
Companies in which the ultimate BAERBRRES
controlling shareholder has BERgER AR
beneficial interests
Goldin Group (Investment) SIRER (&)
— Interest expenses on loan -RERERZFEFHE*
from a shareholder* 92,410 32,359
Goldin Special Situations SRR E
— Interest expenses on loan - BERBER B *
from a related company* 138,987 -
Matsunichi Goldbase Global MBS BRI
— Interest expenses on Convertible Bonds - —Z— U F|#a[ Mk EH
due 2014* Z BRI * 5,839 7,200
Smart Edge Limited HEAR LT
— Project management fee income* (note) - JHEEEERUA * (M) 2,633 2,633
Dynasty Select Limited e EmBEEARAA
— Purchase of wine products* -BEREER* 6,718 7,865
MRAgRSER ORYI) BRAR MBgIEER ORY) BRAF
— Purchase of smart phone products* -EBESRFHER " 6,134 1,593
Goldin Financial Limited DIRMEBR AT
~ Financial advisory fee expense* - UBERERRX - 230
Ultimate controlling shareholder RARZERBRR
Mr. Pan Vit
— Polo club membership fee income * -BkeefEBERRA = 10,000
i These transactions constituted connected transactions or F ZER DB EMRBNE AT RTE 2 H
continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A ERHHFHEBERS °

of the Listing Rules.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ST T - R b O AT

45. Related Party Transactions (Continued)

Note:

During the year ended 31 March 2012, Goldin Properties (Construction
Management) Limited (the “Project Manager”), a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a project management
agreement (the “Project Management Agreement”) with Smart
Edge Limited (the “Developer”), a subsidiary of GFHL which is
ultimately controlled by Mr. Pan, in respect of the appointment of
the Project Manager by the Developer to manage the construction
and development of a piece of land parcel located in Hong Kong
(the “Project”) on behalf of the Developer from 1 November 2011
until the date of settlement of the final account in respect of the
Project which is expected to be a date not later than the end of
February 2017. The estimated aggregate project management fee
paid and payable by the Developer to the Project Manager under
the Project Management Agreement shall amount to approximately
HK$11,700,000.

Details of the Group’s related party balances are disclosed in
the consolidated statement of financial position and respective

B 7 B e A P

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BHEZ—NF=A=1+—HILFE

45. BBEALTRES (&)

ff

m

RBEZE-T——F=A=1+—HLEFE  AQA2
EMBAR =RYE (REIRER) BRAA
(TEEEEA)) BeiRert (BETERKES)
ZBAR BEERAR ((RREE]) 51 LHE
2w ((HEEEHE])  NAFEEEREE
HEEBA REZEFEERUREE 2R
(ZEB ) v EREER BT —F+—A—
HEZZEA 2 KERREMNBE (A TERZ
T—+tFZAK) Ik - BEERBEAEERZAD
NRERTHEEEAZGAEEERESHOA
11,700,000 37T °

BERARKEREANTRBERB L FBENES
SRR MARRAMT R -

notes.
Compensation of key management personnel TEZEAEZEH
The remuneration of Directors during the year was as follows: BENERNZEHOT :
2014 2013
—F-mF e
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Short-term benefits 72 HAtE A 38,650 43,217
Post-employment benefits BBk R 235 155
38,885 43,372
The remuneration of Directors is determined by the EEFMBEFNEE L RENALTZR

remuneration committee having regard to the performance of
individuals and market trends.

BRTTISELEETE o

o SR E PR AT PR A T R — AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2014

BE_T-MF=A=+—HILFE

46. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries

46. TEMB A TFE

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at
31 March 2014 and 31 March 2013 are as follows:

R=

T-mFZA=+-BR-F-ZF=
+—B  ARRAZEEMBAAFESN

Place of Paid up issued/
incorporation/ registered
registration/ ordinary Proportion of
Name of subsidiary operation share capital equity interests held by the Company Principal activities
R/ &R/ freRmT/
WRARER EENY SREERE FAAFERERD L TEER
2014 2013
~E-MF —E-=%
Directly Indirectly  Directly Indirectly
HE B B i
Goldin Properties Group Hong Kong HK$1 100% - 100% - Provision of administrative
Limited h 1A services
ARESEERAR FRATTHRTS
Proman International Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100% - 100% Investment holding and
REERERAT B 1A trading of construction
materials
RERRREERENH
Goldin Properties (Tianjin) PRC* RMB4,975,221,500 - 100% - 100% Investment holding,
Company Limited i+ AR 4,975,221,5007C property development
EfE (K2) BRAR and investment
RERR  DEERIRE
Tianjin Huading Real Estate PRC RMB100,000,000 - 100% - 100% Property development
Company Limited EF AR 100,000,007 I
REERELERAT
Tianjin Goldin International PRC* 1US$168,600,000 100% - 100% - Hotel and polo club
Club Company Limited L+ 168,600,000 7T operation
RERERALTERAR BEREREES
& These companies were established in the PRC in the form of ZEQNTRAIINEBE R ERREFBIKL

wholly-owned foreign enterprise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7 B e A P

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE_Z—NF=A=+—HBILFE

Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries 46. TEME A RFE (F&)
(Continued)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at RZE—WOF=A=+—HERZE—=F=
31 March 2014 and 31 March 2013 are as follows: (Continued) A=1+—H "  AREZ2EENBRRFIBEW
T (&)
Place of Paid up issued/
incorporation/ registered
registration/ ordinary Proportion of
Name of subsidiary operation share capital equity interests held by the Company Principal activities
R/ 2/ #rERT/
WRARER EEHY EfEERE FARFRRER D TEXH
2014 2013
—E2-mF =T =
Directly Indirectly  Directly Indirectly
E# B i il
Fonde Hotels Group Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100% = 100% Provision of hotel
BERFEEREEREARDA Bk 137 management services
REEEERS
Goldin Properties Real Estate Hong Kong HK$1 - 100% - 100% Provision of sales and
Agency Limited Bl 1A marketing services
RRMERBERAR RALHE RIISHEE RS
Metropolo Country Club Hong Kong HK$1 - 100% - 100% Provision of consultancy
Management Company Limited Bl 1A services on polo club
ROSReALNERERAT operation
RS SHREAARS
Goldin Metropolitan International Hong Kong HK$1 - 100% - 100% Provision of polo club
Club (Hong Kong) Limited B 1A membership services
BRRTERERE (BE) BRARA RtEReeRRE
Goldin Properties (Construction Hong Kong HK$1 - 100% - 100% Provision of project
Management) Limited BB 18T management services
SN (RETRER) BRARF RIUERERRY

o SR E PR AT PR A T R — AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
£ A 25 A B

For the year ended 31 March 2014

HE—

46.

47.

T-mE=A=T—ALFE

Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries
(Continued)

Notes:

(a) None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities subsisting at 31
March 2014 or at any time during the year.

(b)  The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the Directors of the Company, principally
affected the results of the year or formed a substantial portion
of the assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of
excessive length.

Major Non-Cash Transaction

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the loan of
US$426,038,000 (equivalent to HK$3,303,500,000) together
with principal sum advanced to the Group and the Company
from Goldin Group (Investment) and the respective interest
payable was assigned, and the Group’s and the Company’s
rights, benefits and obligations contemplated under the
original loan agreement and supplemental loan agreements
with Goldin Group (Investment) were transferred to a related
company, Goldin Special Situations, in which Mr. Pan has a
beneficial interest.

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Convertible
Bonds due 2012 and the Convertible Bonds due 2014 (as
defined in note 35) issued by the Company with principal
amount of HK$7,479,987 and HK$288 had been converted
into 2,137,139 and 60 ordinary shares of the Company,
respectively.
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46.

47.

EFEMBELRAFE ()

fia -

b

(@ NRIZE-—WF=ZA=+—HHFAEME

f - %M‘T BARNEERERES

(b) ARFERRR  LRINBZARFMEA
AATEFEREEFNEASEAEEE
ERELEZRAF - EEZRRIBEBHTE
REIZHEELRRBRITE °

IEFRERS
BE-FT-WE=A=+—BLFE

A
REE (RE) EFAKEREARRIHN—F
426,038,000 3% 7T (18 % 7 3,303,500,000 4
) BRERASHEMEABELSNE - &
HEIREE (8E) ;T2 RERBERET
BERpaE T 2 ASE RARRREBETR -
MEREE T—HEZRE—HEEQA

BIREHREE (HPETEREBEatEn) -

HE-Z-—=F=ZA=+—HBULEE A2
RIBITZAEEBEATAL79987B T2 -
—ZFH A MRES RASFE288 BT

— P EHARTRAR E S (AR 35 72 E)
D RIAFREEIRA2,137,139 1% I 60 JE A&
NRE B -



Year ended 31 March
BE=A=1+—HLFE

FINANCIAL SUMMARY
b aE ff 22

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
—ETmFE = ZT——-F E2—F ZIZT-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHET FHET T FHET
RESULTS ES
Turnover = 2,793,413 128,976 57,079 = =
Profit before tax BR 7% A& F 1,401,327 281,801 467,088 234,543 1,373,801
Income tax expense FrS R (545,739) (213,833) (17,372) (112,619) (444,194)
Profit for the year FE A 855,588 67,968 449,716 121,924 929,607
At 31 March
R=B=+-—H
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
—ENE —T—=F —T——-F —T——F IZT-ITF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&T FHET FAET FAET FET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERE&EE
Total assets BERE 28,013,934 23,267,512 18,221,197 15,108,768 9,630,116
Total liabilities BERE (12,048,813) (8,106,398) (3,413,549) (8,813,135) (3,832,520)
Total equity B 15,965,121 15,161,114 14,807,648 6,295,633 5,797,596

1R A EE P I A ] R — O
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PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES HELD
FFH Z PR

Details of the Group’s properties held as at 31 March 2014 are as

R-ZB-—WF=A=+—R  ~EEFFZYEHF

follows: BT
Approximate  Lease Stage of Anticipated
Location Type Percentage  GFA(sq.m.)  term completion completion date
B4
BREER
2 k] Epili (ERX) HEH TR BHxIAE
Properties held for PRC Commercial/ 100% 1,013,243 Medium Under construction 2016, in phases
investment HE Office HH] T ZTRF AR
FEREBM%E GEYS NS
Properties for sale PRC Residential 100% 709,090  Long Under construction 2013 t0 2015,
HIEHEZ D% H e = e in phases
—E-=F%
—T-nE
AR
Hotel properties PRC Hotel 100% 58,000  Medium Completed 20M1
BIEME HE BIE ] BEK —2——F
Land use rights PRC Commercial/ 100% 108,000  Medium - -
included in H Office ]
other assets mE/WAE
STARMBEZ T
it
1,888,333
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